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Strategic report

Group Business Model and Strategy
The business of Witlington Investments Limited and its

subsidiaries (the "Group') is the management of
investments in a wide range of assets.

The Group's investments are managed in five businesses,
being Luxury Retail, Real Fstate, Hotets, Private Markels &
QOther Investments and Assacialed British Foods plc {'ABF').
The latter refers to the Group's 56.2% shareholding in ABF
(2022: 54 5%}, which is quoted on The London Stock
Exchange.

The Group takes a long-term approach to investment and
is committed to increasing shareholder value thicugh
sound business decisions which will deliver sustainable
growth in earmings and dividends.

Given the matericlity of the ABF business and for ease of
cross-reference to the published financial statements of
ABF, the directors have elected 1o provide additional
information in the notes which follow setting oul the
contribution of the ABF business to the consalidated
financial statemenis of the Group. For clarity, all
references to the ABF business are shown in flalics in the
notes to these statements and are consistent with the
published financial statements of ABF.

The Garfield Weston Foundation ("The Foundation”} is an
English charitable trust, established in 1958 by the late W
Garfield Weston. As al 16 September 2023, the Foundation
holds 683,073 shares {2022 - 683,073} in Wittington
Investments Limited representing 79.2% (2022 - 79.2%) of
the Croup'sissued share capital and is, therafara. the
Group’s uliimate controfling party.

The Trustees of the Foundation made total grants of £21.1
milfion (year to 5 Aprit 2023) in suppor of 2,147 appeals
(2022: £8%.9 milion in support of 1,988 appeals). The
Foundation accepts appeals from UK registered charities.
No applications from individuals are considered and the
Truslees do not typically fund projects outside the UK.

Business Strategies

Luxury Retail

Luxury Retaill comprises Fortnum & pascn plc and Heal &
Sons Ltd, two long cstablished retailers. The aim for each
of these businesses is 16 build a sustainable and profitable
business over the long term by providing an outstanding
customer experience through all channels and by
developing the product offer. They also aim to develop
their respective digital businesses and, where appropriate,
international activities.

Real Estate

The Group invests in high-quality invesimeant properfies in
ihe retail, office and distribution sectors across the UK It
also takes strategic positions in selected development
opportunities, alongside local partners or sector speciatists,
where it can use its patient capital to unlock the potential
in those sifes.

Hotels

As an extension of its Real Estate strategy, the Group
invests in hatels with high-quality rect estale backing and
with a broad mix of customers from corporate, event and
leisure markets.

Private Markels & Other Investments
The Group invests both directly and via externally
managed funds in private equity and private delot

Business Review

markets. Thisis a long-term asset class and exposures are
managed to provide a diverse portfolio by secior,
geography and age of company. it also invests selectively
in special situations,

Qther investments are principally composed of iguid
investrnents in short-dated investment graode bonds as welt
as listed equities, which provides portfolio diversification
and enables liguidity and portfoiio needs to be met.

Associated British Foods plc

ABF is a diversitied international food, ingredients and
retail Group with revenue of £19.8bn, 133,000 employees
and operations in 55 countries across Europe. southem
Africa, the Americas, Asia and Austraka. Further details
can be foundin ABF's Annual Report 2023 which can be
found at www.abf.co.uk.

Luxury Retail
Fortnum & Mason

fortnum & Mason's financial vear saw a continued
recovery in sales with UK store revenue returning to pre-
Covid levels at the start of 2023 and growing 34% on FY22,
driven by a resilient domestic market and increased
internat'onal customer footfall. Online sales saw an 11%
reduction on FY22, not dissimilar to the wider market as
consumers rebalanced their behaviour post-Covid.
Fortnum & tason taced challenging operating conditions
as inflation grew rapidly, particularly in food and labaur.
Total Revenue grew 12% to £208.6m (2022: £186.5m); Profit
before taxation grew to £7.5m (2022: £5.8m) and EBITDA
grew to £16.0m [2022: £14.2m}, Capital investment in the
year amounted to £8.2m (£2022: £4.9m) cenfred on the
refurbishment of the 3rd floor of the Piccadilly flagship
store. Closing cash was £21m (2022 £17m), with no debt.

Heal's

Heal's has experienced a difficult pericd for profitability as
inflationary pressure squeezed margin and increased the
cost base [with 1he exception of its new Tottenham Court
Road lease). Revenue remained materially flat at £37.4m
(2022: £37.0m), however the dual challenges of supply
chain and wage inflation drove a 50% reduction in
operating profit to £0.8m (2022: £1.6m}. Perhaps the
biggest challenge was in dealing with old {returned and
cancelled} stock, which led to o very signiicant write
down which supressed profit. Heals continues to generate
a positive operating profit and EBITDA and the underlying
performance remains sound, Excluding the wilte-down of
stack, profil would have increased from the prior period.
The strategic focus of the company going forward is fo
capilalise onits new store layout an Tottenham Court
Road and to grow its online presence, which now
accounts for half of sales revenue,

Reaql Estate

Three propertfies were acquired during the year with an
aggregate consideration of £33m; one property was sold
for £3m. Income grew to £12.3m (2022 £11.5m) while the
operating loss in the year of £8.3m (2022: profit of £146.3m)
included an aggregate impairment charge of £13.6m
(2022: £5.6m) in raspect of the carrying value of some of
the office and retaill properties and o residential
development. Over the year, 97.9% of rents demanded
weare collected (2022: 99%) comparing very favourably
with the sector as a whole.,
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Hotels
Grand Holel, Brighton

The Grand Hotel, Brighton was sold to the Fattal Group in
ray 2023 for £61m.

Richmond Hill Hotel

Richmond Hill Hotel contfinued to benefit from strong
demand in the leisure market. Revenue for the perod was
the highestin the hotel's history at £10,1m (2022: £9.2m).
whilst current and future bookings remain strong. Changes
to the markel value ot the property resulted in an
operating loss of £2.7m (2022: profit of £13.4m, including a
one-off impairment reversal).

Private Markets & Other invesiments

Over the year the Group invested £200m in investment
grade credit and ¢.$130m into a global public equities
index fund. A furthier £40m was committed to private
equity. The public and private equity funds held broadly
flatin GBP terms over the year, whilst the leveraged loan
partfolio, in which the underlying investments are floating-
rate, benefitted from rising interest rates globally, The
remaining direct portfolio companies posted modest
gains. There was an unredlised FX impact in the year
which suprassed profitability. Profit after tax for the year for
Private Markets & Other Investments was £36.0m (2022:
£28.3m).

Associated British Foods plc

ABF performed extremely well despite facing very
significant economic chollenges caused in part by major
geo-polifical events at the start of the finoncial vear, I1is
noe well positicnad for the finmincinl year ahead.

Trading at Primark was excellent under the circumstances.
At the beginning of the year selective prce increases
were Implemented partially to protect profitability, on the
grounds that the significant input cost inflation was
temporary, That careful pricing delivered as infended,
with customers continuing 1o shop enthusiastically.
Profitability in ABF's food businesses moved ahead as a
result of the appeal of their products and the strength of
its brands, both of which suppeorted the recovery of high
levels of input costinflation without disrupting customer
relationships.

Although consumer demand remains uncerfain, Primark is
as well placed as it has ever been and that its offeris very
atractive not just to existing customers but also to new
customers engaged by its digital platform, new store
openings. and word of mouth which remains as powertul
as ever, With Primark margin now maving back fo is
historic levels, the future for this business is viewed wath
confidance. ABF's food businesses are also in very good
shape, and its Sugar business especially should see much
better profitability in the year ahead.

ABF posted siatutory operating orofit for the year of
£1.383m (2022: £1,178m] after exceptional charges of
£109m (2022; £206m). Given the strength of ABF's balance
sheet and its confidence in the future, ABF announced a
special dividend of 12.7 pence per share and o second
share buyback programme of up to £500m on November
7th 2023.
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Directors’ duties

The directors are required to actin a way which they
consicler, in good faith, is most likely to promote the
success of the Company for the benefit of its members as
a whole and, in doing so, have regard to the malters set
aut in section 1721} {a) to {f} of the Companies Act 2006.

Stakehoider engagement

The Company engages regularly with stakeholders at
Group and/or business unit level, depending on the
parficular issue. Regardless of the legal duties, the
directors consider regular engagement with stakeholders
to be part and parcel of our value of progressing through
collaboration and to be fundamental to the success of
the Group.

The Board has identified the following stakehelder groups
wilh whom engagement is fundamental to the Group's
ongoing succeass:

1. The Garfield Weston Foundation: The largest single
shareholder of the Group is the Garfield Weston
Foundation, a charitable grant-making body which
supports a wide range of causes across the UK. The
Group engages regularly with the Foundation to
understand its grant pipeline and to ensure that it is in
o position to pay dividends to a level commensurate
with the Foundalion's objectives. An additional key
concern for the Foundation is that the Group operate
with high ethical standards so as not to undermine the
foundation's charitable aims and objectives,

2. Governments: The Group is impacied by changes in
laws and public policy. The key issues of concernin
relation to the government are regulatory changes
lincluding tax legislation}. climate and environmental
related matters and support of businesses and workers.
The directars of the Group engage with this
stakehoider group in various ways including meetings,
responding to requests for inputs (e.9. on sustainability
reporting guidelines) and applications to participate in
gavernment schemes.

3. Communities and the environment. As the Group's
controlling shareholder, the Foundation is heavily
engaged in national efforts to mitgate climate
change. This is primnrily achieved through the award
of grants o relevant bodies. Through the ABF business
segment, the Group is also engaged in community
relations at a national and international level and with
he design and implementation of strategres fo
promote climate change mitigation and a circular
economy. ABF engages with these stakeholder groups
in varous ways including coaching and training
programmes and community pragrammes and
schemes.

4. Customers / consumers: The Group depends heavily
on its reputation with customers, in the UK and globally,
across ifs grocery, retail and hotel operations. The key
issues of concemn fo customers are heolth and safety,
products and services, value for meoney, avaitability of
products and services, impact on the environment,
store and hotel environments and customer relations,
The business engages with this stakeholder group in
various ways including customer surveys, labelling.
social media and customer/consumer infarmation
Ines.
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5. Employees: Qur people are central to our success. The
Group employs 134,881 people of which 133,000 are
employed by ABF. Given this, responsibility for
engagement with employees lies principally with the
ABF business segment. ABF engages with its employees
in various ways including emdil, health and sofely
programmes, infranat, newslatters, surveys, fown halls,
training, virtual meetings and notice boards, The key
issues of concarn to employees are health and safety,
engagement & development and diversity & inclusion.

The Group is committed to an active equal
opportunities policy from recruitment and selection,
through training and development, performance
reviews and promaotions fo retirement. 1t is our policy to
promote an environment free from discamination,
harassment and victimisation, whare averyone
receives equal freatment regardless of gender, colour,
ethnic or national origin, disabllity, age. marital stortus,
sexudal orientation or religion. All decisions relating fo
employment practices are objective, free from bias
and based solely upon work criteria and individual
merit. it is our policy that people with disabilities who
fulfil the minimum criteria should have full and fair
consideration for all vacancies. We endeavour to
retain employees in ihe workforce if they becaome
disabied duing employment. It is the Group's policy to
provide continuing employrmeaent wherever practicable
in the same or an alternative position and 1o provide
appropricte training to achieve this aim.

6. Suppliers: Through the ABF business segment, the
Group Is indirectly dependent on many complex
supply chains operating at an international level. The
key issues of concern with regards to supply chains are
payment practices, responsible sourcing and supply
chain sustainakility & responsibility. The Group engages
with this stakeholder group in various warys including
conversations (face-to-face or virtual), training,
communications farq, comespoendence, press releases
and auds.

Principal decisions

An example of a principal decision taken during the year
that took stakeholder views inta account is the decision to
pay a first interim dividend in January 2023 and a second
interim dividend in July 2023, with the primary heneficiary
of the decision being the Garfield Weston Foundation and
~indirectly — the recipients of the grants awarded by the
Foundation.

The Directors agreed a first interim dividend of £78.50 per
share. paid in January 2023 which, together with the
second interim dividend paid in July 2023 of £69.50 per
share, made g total of £148.00 per share for the year,
repraseniing 42% of distributable profit,

The decision to pay both dividends factored in the net
cash position before lease liabilities for the Group of £2.8
b at the 2022 year end.

Non-Financial and Sustainability Information

Statement

The Group Board recognisas that climate change
represents a material risk throughaout its supply chains and
poses challenges to some of its businesscs waordwide. The
Board wholly suppart policies that are aligned with the
goals of the 2015 Paris Climate Agreement to limit the rise
in global femperafures o well below 2°C above pre-
inclustrial levels, and to pursue etforts to mif the
temperature increase even further to 1.5°C.

This year the Witlinglon Group has included cliimate-
related financial disclosures in accordance with the
Companies [Strategic Report] {Climate-related Financial
Disclosure} Regulations 2022 (SI 2022/31).

Governance

The Board is responsible for overseeing climate-related
isses across the Group. The Board reviews each business
segment in depth every year, which will include o review
of material ESG issues.

Risk management

The Board is accountable for effective risk management.
for agreeing the principal, including emerging. risks facing
the Group and ensuring they are successfully managed,

The process for identifying, assessing and managing
climate-reloted nisks is ihe same as for other risks within the
Group and sits with the business where the risk resides.

These risks, including climate risks, are collated and
reviewed at both a business and divisional level, and t1en
reported to the Chief Minancial Officer who roviows the
key risks with the Board,

Strategy and action, mefrics and targets

wittington operates a decentralised business model
because the Group Board believes in giving the leaders of
its businesses the scope and accountability to create and
run the best businesses they can. They are therefore
responsible for identifying and implementing strategies
that both create value and ensure value is protected by
taking action to mitigate or adapt to the impacts of
climate change. Enabling decision-making by ihe people
closest to these issues, with the closest relationships with
the stakeholders affected, provides resilience, agility and
flexibility in planning. allowing tor quick action onimpacts
and opportunities.

Climate risks and opportunifies
The ARF division accounts for the most material climate
risks and opportunities in the Wikington Group.

ABF comprises businesses that provide safe, nutritious and
affordable food. and clothing that is great value for
maney. There wilt be many value creation opportunities
which ABF's businessas will be well positioned to take
advantage of as the waorld transitions to a low carbon
economy. There will also be physical and transitionat
climate risks which they may be susceptible to, pMany of
ABF's businesses rely on agricultural crops with complex
supply chains which are spread across the world. Long-
term climate change willimpact agricuttural crops and
workers while extreme weather events have the potential
to cause disruption across value chains.,

Cross-functional teams within the ABF pusinass worked
with third-party experts to understand climate-related,
physical and transition risks and opportunities. These were
included in the Group’s scenaric analysis.

Wittington Investments Fingncial Statomen's 2023 2
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Non-Financial and Sustainability Information
Statement continued

The scenario analysis included the following scenanos:

Warming Transitional scenarias! Physical
frajectory by 2100 scenarnios”
<2°C CNet Zero Emissions by 2050 RCP2.4
Scenario ['NZE') {1 57 C)
Sustainnble Development
Scenario {'SDS'}
23 C Stated Policies Scenario ('STEPS')  RCP4.5
~-4'C RCP&.51

1 TheInternational Energy Agency’s scenarios have been used to assess transition
impacts with each scenaria built on a set of assumptions on how the energy
systern might evolve, Each scenario has a different temperature outcome. ABF
used scenarios covering 1.5°C, <2 Cand
<3'C

2. ABF used the intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change's Representative
Concentration Pathways (RCP) to assess physical chmate risk. RCPs are commonly
used by climate scientists to assess physical chmate risk, with each pathway
representing a different greenhouse gas concentration trajectory which can then
be translated into global warming impacts ABF used climate data from the World
Climate Rescarch Programmes Couplad Model Intercomparisan Project — Phase 5
{CMIP 5 adjusted for spatial resolution and bias corrected) to do this translation
RCPs feed mto chmate, crop and flood madels, There are four ROP pathways with
RCPR 5 representing the worst case scenario

The impact of compounding means that even small
changes in assumptions can lead to a significant range of
outcomes from climate models and scenarios. ABF
therefore placed more emphasis on projections to 2030,
using them for action planning. and used projections to
2050, where lhere is more uncertainty, 1o check our sense
of direction and consider the resiignce of our businesses
should certain hypothetical scenarios take place.

Risks and opportunities have been cansidered over the
following fime horizons:

Years Rationale
Short-ferm 2025 Mid-decade
Medium- 2030 Cur most financially material businesses,
term ABF Sugar, Primark and Twinings have set

2030 emission targets, which are supported
by emission reduction plans

2050 is consistent with many national and
industry targets. Primcrrk is aligned with the
UNFCCC Fashion Industry Chorer goal of
net zerc emissions acrass all three Scopes
by 2050

Long-term 2050

ABF's risk assessment process identified the fallowing
climate risks and opportunities that may have a significant
impact on A8F; these are denoted in itafics below.
Additional risks and opportunities affecting Fortnum &
Mason {as the only other business materially affected by
climate change in the Wittington Group) are included
elow.

Determining the potential impact of climate risks and the
size of climate opportunities is challenging. Climale
models include several fixed assumptions and there is
significant uncertainty around the impacts of climate
change and how governments will respond 1o its threats,

4 Wittington tnvestments  Financial Statenants 2023

Impact
assessment

Description

Projected impacts from scenaria andilysis are
positive or not significant

Impacts not judged to be significant once
mitigating actions are considered

Impacts judged to be significant even after
mimggjirjg‘c:chons have been considered

Mote: “Sigrificance” refers here to the considered impact of cimmate
risks and poparturiies an the Grous's ingncial pe-ormance and
2osition

I. Climate impact on cotton yields (Primark)

2023 assessm

Short ferm:

ang-term
Metrics for mitigating actions & targets:

Proportion of cotton clothing saies [units) that
contains cotton that is organic, recycled or sourced
from Primark’'s Sustainabte Cotton Programme {%):
100% by 2027,

Number of tarmers trained in Primark’s Sustainatle
Cotton Programme: 275,000 by end of 2023.

2. Climate impact on lllove's sugar yields (Eswatini,
Malawi, Mozambique, South Africa, Tanzania, Zambia)

2023 assessment

Short term:

ong-term
Metrics for mitigating actions & targets:

Sugar production (tonnes).

Volume of water abstracted.

AB Sugar has o target to reduce Tts end-to-end
supply chain water usage by 30% vs 2017/2018

3. Impact of carbon pricing mechanisms (AB Sugar and
Primark)
2023 assessmeni

NEVIREY  Medium |
Metrics for mitigating actions & targets:

- Primark: GHG emissions: Scope 1. 2 and 3 emissions
vs target of 50% absolute reduction in emissions by
2030 vs 2018/19 baseline.

- AB Sugar: GHG emissions: Scope 1 and 2 emissions vs
target of 30% absolute reduction in Scope 1 and 2
emissions by 2030 vs 2017/18 baseline

4. Impact of carbon pricing mechanisms on Forthum &
Mason
2023 assessment
Medum term

Metrics for mitigating actions & targets:

GHG emissions: Scope |, 2 emissions vs target of 25%
absolute reduction in emissions by 2025 vs 2018/19
baseline

We consider that the scenario analysis performed in
conjunction with the mitigating actions undertaken by our
businesses demonstrate that cur business models and
strategy are resilient to climate change in each of the
transition and physical scenanos ouflined above,
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties
The Group's board reviews annually the matenal risks

facing the business together with the intemal control
procedures and resources deveted to them.

The princigal risks currently identified are:

External Risks: the conflicts in Ukraine and the Middle East
theirimpact on the UK and Global economy; events
impacting consumer confidence leading to reduced
consumer spending; moverment in exchange rates; wage
and materials infiation; flucteotons in commodity ang
energy prices; operating in global markets; health and
nutrition concerns.

Operational Risks: supply chain interrupfions and labour
shortages; workplace health and safety; product safety
and guality, use of natural resaurces and managing
environmental impact; ethical business practices; and
breaches of IT and information security.

Energy and Global Greenhouse Gas Emissions
The Group is committed to making year-on-year
improvements in operational energy efficiency.

The Group calculates and discloses GHG emissions based
on the WRI/WBCSD GHG Protocol Corporate Accounting
and Reporting Standard Revised Fdition, except for
alignment with the GHG Protocol’s approach for
determining organisational boundary and limitations for
Scope 3 disclosures. The Group use carbon conversion
factars pubtished by the UK's Department for Business,
Energy and Industrial Strategy [BEIS) in June 2022, other
internationally recognised sources, and bespoke faclors
based on laboratory calculalions at selected localions.
Scope 2 market-based emissions have been calculated in
accordance with the GHG Protocol Scope 2 Guidance
on procured renewable energy.

ABF's emissions (Scopes 1 and 2) reduced by 6% to 2.91
milion tonnes COZe (2022: 3.11 milion tonnes CO2e).
ABF's energy consumption increased by 1% fo 21,183
Gwh (2022: 21,046 GWh]. The principa' energy efficiency
measures to reduce ABF's carbon emissions include the
intraduction of energy monitoring systems; conversions to
LED lighting; and upgrades to production machinery such
as compressors and boilers 1o improve efficiencies,

Fortnum & Mason's ermissions (Scopes | and 2) were 1,859
tonnes CO2e [2022: 1.617 tonnes COZe) and its energy
consumption was 8,489 GwH [2022: 7,922 Mwh)

Fortnum & mMasen is also committed to decreasing ifs
reliance on the planet's resources and is working hard to
ensure that all packaging is either reusable, home
compostable or fully recyclable by 2024,

Corparate Responsibility

The Group's corporate responsibility activities centre on
those of ABF. As o diversified internafional food,
ingredients and retail Group with 133,000 employees and
operations in 55 countries across Europe. southern Africa,
the Americas, Asia and Australia, ABF fakes its
responsibilities to wider society seriously, ABF publishes a
fuli corporate responsibility report every three yaars, most
recently in 2022, Corporate respensibility is a central part
of how the business is run and is incorporoted into the day
to day decision making processes. In the Corporate
Responsibility Report, ABF shares information on its anfi-
bribery and corruption policy. whistleblowing policy.
approach to human rights, social matters, environment
policy, employees and diversily. Further information and o
copy of the 2022 ABF Cormporate Responsibility Report are
available ab www.abf.co.uk/responsibility/cr downloads.

ABF is commitied to gender diversity and, across the
business overall, the gender split is close to equal with 54%
of the workforce last vear being female. The Eguality Act
2010 {Gender Pay Gap Information} Regulations 2017
were infroduced in April 2017, and ABF has collected the
required data for all of its relevant employees. Furlher
details for each of the UK legal entities that are required to
report data is published online ond submitted to the
Government’s Gender Pay Reparting websile in
accaordance with the legislation. Further infarmation can
be foundirtin the ABF 2023 Annual Report at
www.abf.co.uk/finvestorrelations/reports.

Being a responsible company means respecting the
human rights of all the people who interact with the
business, whether they are direct employees, temporary
workers of those in the supply chain. ABF's approach to
human rights and the steps it takes to try to ensure that
modern slavery. in any of its forms, is not present within its
operations or supply chains is set out in the 2023 Modern
Slavery and Human Trafficking Statement. Many of the
businessas have compilled their own statements, and all
published statements can be found af

At/ fweww abf.couk/responsibllity/respaonsibility_policies.

ABF is committed to maintaining the highest standard of
ethics and compliance with all relevant laws wherever it
does businass. Compliance wilh anfi-bribery and anti-
corruplion laws is an essential part of this and ABF
maintains ¢ robust compliance systerm which is designed
to respeact both the spirit and letter of the relevant laws. A
copy of the Group's Anti-Bribery and Corruption Policy is
available at

http:/fweww. abf.couk/responsibility/responsibility_policies.

wittington Investments Financial Statcrmensts 2023 5
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Effective and honest communication is essential if
malpractice and wrongdoing are to be dedalt with
effectively. ABF's Whistleblowing Policy provides guidelines
for people whao feel they need to rdise certain issues in
confidence. A copy of the Whistieblowing Policy 1s
avallable af

http:/fweww . abf.couk/responsibility /responsitility. policies.

Fortnum & Mason, as a business that has been around for
over 300 years, sees ifs pimary responsibility as conducting
business today in a way that fruly considers the next 300
yvaars. Fortnum & Mason's strategy is called Future Matters
within which are four sustainability and social responsibility
pillars: People, Product, Packaging and Planet, These
drive a commitment to doing more things more often to
create long-lasting change, with the help of suppliers,
employees and customers. More information is available
in the Forinuim & Masen PLC Annual Diractors Report and
Consolidated Financial Statements which can be found at
the Companies House website (hitps://find-and-
update.company-informaticn service.gov.uk/}.

Geopolitical uncertainty and Russia’s war in Ukraine

The global inflationary pressures triggered initially by
COVID-1% have been exacerbated by the geopaolifical
uncertainty caused by Russia’s war in Ukraine. For the
avoidance of doubt, the Group does not have any
operations orinvestments in Russio. Nevertheless. the war
has resulted in economic uncertainty in almost all the
markets in which the Group operates and hos adversaly
impacted commodity costs and supply chains as well as
wrge casts. CQur management teams in all business
segrnertls continue to monitar costinflation closely. Whilst
there are early signs of cost inflation decreasing in many
parts of the global economy, the emergence of conflict in
the Middle East has added further risk to an already fragile
geopolitical and economic environment. Hs impacts on
the Group's frading and investing activities will depend on
the duration of the current crises in Ukraine and the
middle East, on geopolitical repercussions and on central
bank responses to inflation,

i
bn

Sir Guy Weslon 15 December 2023
Chairman

wittingten Investments Limited
Registered office:

Weston Centre

10 Grosvenor Street

London

WIK 4QY

Company Number 00366054
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Directors’ report

The directors present their annual report and audited
financial statements for the 52 weeks ended 16
September 2023. in accordance with section 415 of the
Companies Act 2006, The Boord considers that ihe
Group's Report and Accounts 2023, taken as a whole, is
fair. balonced and understandable and provides
information necessary for shareholders to assess the
Group's performance, business model and strategy.

Given the materiality of the ABF [Associated British Foods
plc) business segment and for ease of cross-reference to
the published financial statements of ABF. the directors
have elected to provide additional infermation in the
notes which follow setting out the contribution of the ABF
business segment to the consalidated financial statements
of the Group. For clarity, all references to the ABF business
segment are shown in italics in the notes 1o these
statemenis and are consisient with the published finandcics
statements of ABF.

Results and Dividends
The consclidated income statement is on page 13. Profit
for the period amounted to £1.099m (2022: £783m).
Dividends paid amounted to £128m (2022: £104m).
Dividends are detailed in note 8. Profit for the financial
period atfributable to equity shareholders amounted to
£618m [2022: £445m).

Future business developments

Future business developments are outlined in the Strategic
Report in the sections concerned with Business Strategies
and Business Review.

Directors

The Diraeclors who held office throughout the yearwere as
follows:

Sir Guy wWeston {Chairman)
Ermma Adamo

Sir Harry Djanagly

raartine Hatirel

Anna Cafrina Hobhouse
Charles Mason

Lindsay Peorsen

Alannoh Weston (resigned 12 Decemiber 2023)
Garth westan

George Weston

Graham Weston

The Company Secretary was Jennifer Dooley.

Directors’ Indemnities
The Group has in place appropriate directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance cover in respect of legal action
against its execulive and non-execulive directors
amongst others. The directors of a subsidiary company
that acts as trustee of @ pension scheme benefited from a
qualifying pension scheme indemnity provision during the
financial year and at the date of the ABF 2023 Annual
Report. Other than these, there were no qualifying third-
party indeminity provisions provided by the Group orits
subsidianes during the financial vear and as at the date of
the ABF 2023 Report.

Controlling Shareholder Relationship Agreement

Any persan who excicises or controls, on their own or
together with any person with whom they are acting in
concert, 30% or more of the votes able fo be cast at
general meetings of o company are known as a
‘controlling shareholder” under the Listing Rules. The Listing
Rules require companies with confrolling shareholders to
enter into an agreement which is intended 1o ensure that
the controlling shareholders comply with cerfan
independence provisions in the listing Rules. The Group
and, through their confrol of the Group, the frustees of the
Garfield Weston Foundation are condroling shareholders
of ABF. On 14 Movember 2014 the Group entered into o
relaticnship agreement with ABF and the trustees of the
Garfield Weston Foundation containing the required
undertakings. The Relationship Agreement was amended
and restated on 25 June 2020,

Confrolling Interest

Details of a controlling interest in the shares of the Group
are given in note 32. Other than as noted, so faras is
known, no ofher parson holds oris beneficially interested
in a disclosable holding in the Group.

Branches
The Group. through various subsidiaries, has established

branches in a number of different countries in which the
Group operates.

Engagement with suppliers, employees,
customers and others in a business relationship
with the company

The way the Group engages with stakehalders is oultlined

in the Strategic Report in the section concernad with
drrechors' dulies.

Political donations

During the year, the Group did not make any polifical
donations or incur any political expenditure (within the
cordinary meaning of those words) in the UK. However,
under the wider definition of those terms In Far 14 of the
Companies Act 2004, ABF paid costs totalling
approximately £3.150 during the year for attendance of
employees at the Conservative and Labour Party
Conterences which could potentially fall within that wider
definition. The Group did nat make any contributions {o
non-UK political parties during the year.
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Directors’ report

Research and development

Innovative use of existing and emerging technologies will
continue to be crucial 1o the successful development of
new producis and processes for the Group.

ABF has a technical centre in the UK at the Allied
Technical Centre. R&D facilities also exist across ABF,
including at: ACH Food Companies in the USA; AB Mauri in
Australia and the Netherlands (including the Global
Technology Centre); AB Enzymes in Germany; and the
Roal joint venture pilof plant in Rajamaki, Finland. These
centres support the technical resources of the ABF
operating divisions in the search for new technology and
in monitoring and maintaining high standards of qualily
and food safety. ABF alo acquired National Milk Records
ple {see further details on page 48) which invests in an
innovative range of milk quality, herd health and gencmic
testing services, generating data and building robust
insights that empower farmers o make informed decisions
on cow productivity

Financial risk management

Details of the Group's use of financial instruments,
fcgether with information on our risk objectives and
policies and our exposure to price, credit, liquidity, cash
flow and interest rate risks, can be found in note 28.

Disclosure of information to auditors

The Directors who held office at the date of approval of
this Diractory’ Roport canfirm that, so far as they arc cach
aware, there is no relevant cudit information of which the
auditoris unaware, and each director has taken all the
reasonable steps that he/fshe cught to have taken as o
director to make himself/hersell aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the quditor is
cware of that information. For these purposes, relevant
audit infermation means information needed by the
auditor in connection with the preparation of its report on
pages 10-12.

Auditors

In accordance with section 485(4) of the Companies Act
2006, a resolution tor the re-appointment of Ernst & Young
LLP as auditors of the Group will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

Corporate Governance

mMaintaining effective corporate govemance is
fundamental to the Board's ability to discharge its duties
to shareholders.

The Board acknowledges its responsibilities for the system
of internal control to facifitate the identification,
assessment and managaement of risk Effective controls
ensure that the Group's exposure to avoidable risk is
minimised, that proper accounting records are
maintained. that the financial informaotion used within the
business is relable and that the consolidated accounts
preparation and financial reporting processes comply
with all relevant regulafory reporting requirements. The
direciors confirm that there is o process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the risks faced by the Group
and the operational effectiveneass of the related controls.
They aiso confirm that they have regularly reviewed the
systerm of internal contrals.
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Going concern

The globalinflaticnary pressures triggered initiclly by
COVID-19 have been exacerbated by the geopelitical
uncertainty caused by Russia's war in Ukraine., For the
avoidance of doubt, the Group does not have any
operations or investments in Russia. Neverthaless, the war
has resulted in economic uncertainty in almast all of the
marketfs in which the Group operates, and has adversely
impacted commodity costs and supply chains as well as
wage costs. Qur management teams in all business
segments continue to manitor cost inflation closely. Whilst
there are early signs of cost inflation descreasing in many
parts of the global economy. the emergence of conflict in
the Middle East has added further risk to an already fragile
geopolitical and economic environment, Its impacts on
the Group's frading and investing activities will depend on
the duralion of the cument crises in Ukraine and the
Middle East,on geopolitical repercussions and on central
bank respenses to inflation.

However, the directors believe the Group's resiience has
been evidenced by the year-on-year growih in operating
cash flows in excess of £1on set out in these statements
and believe that the Group is wel placed to trade
through the uncertain times with adequate resources to
continue to meet its commitments when called. As such
these financial statements are prepared on o going
concern basis (see note 1),

VLU Sy

Sir Guy Weston 15 Dacember 2023

Chairman

Wittington Investments Limited
Registered office:

Wweston Centre

10 Grosverior Street

London

WIK 4QY

Compaiy Number 00366054



Statement of directors’ responsibilities

Statement of directors’ responsibilifies in respect of the annual report and the financial statements
The directors are responsible for preparing the Stralegic Report, the Directors' Report and the Group and parent
company financial statements in accordance with applicable UK law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare Group and parent company tinancial statements for each financial
vear. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Group financial statemenis s
applicable law and UK Adopted International Accounting Standards (‘UK Adopted IFRS). The directors have elected fo
prepare the parent company tinancial statements in accordance with UK Accounting Standards and applicable law
{UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 101 'Reduced Disclosure
Framework™ ('FRS 1017).

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are safisfied that they give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and parent company and of their preht or loss for that perod.

In preparing each of the Group and parent company financial statements, the directors are required to:

select suitable accounting policies n accordance with |1AS 8 Accounting Poficies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
ond Errors and then apply them consisiently:

make judgements and estimates thal arereasonable and prudent;

present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable. comparable and
undersiandable information;

- provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific reguirements in UK Adopted IFRS. and in respect of
the parent company financial statements, FRS 101, is insufficient to enalble users to understand the impact of
particular transactions, other events and conditions on the Group and cornpany financial position and iinancial
performance;

for the Group financial statements, state whether UK Adopted IFRS have been followed., subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements:

for the parent company financial staternents, state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards including FRS 101

have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the parent company financial

stalements; and

prapare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group and

the parent company will continue in business.
The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
parent company's and Group's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the parent company and the Group and enable them to ensure that the parent company and the Group financial
statemeants comply with the Companies Act 2004, They have general responsibility for taking such steps as are
reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the parent company and the Group and fo prevent and detect
fraud and other iregularities.

Under applicable law and regulations, the directors are also responsible for preparing a Sirategic Report and Directors’
Report which comply with that law and those regulations. The directors are responsible for the maintenance and
integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the Company's website, Legislation in the UK governing
the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legistation in other jurisdictions.

Responsibility statement of the directors in respect of the annval report
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge:

the financial statements, prepared in accordance with the applicable set of accounting standards, give a frue and
fair view of the assets, tiabilities. financial position and profit or loss of the Company and the undertakings included in
the consolidation taken as a whale; and

— the Strategic report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the position of
the Company and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as whole, together with a description of the
principal risks and uncertainties that they face.

On behalf of the Board

, wittington Investments
N . Limited

w—’\u‘f*\\,_q Registered office:

Weston Centre

10 Grosvenar Streel

Sir Guy Weston London

Chairman WIK 4QY

15 December 2023 Company Number 00366054

fi
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

to the Memibers of Wittington Investmeants Limited

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Wittington Investments Limited { the parent company'] and its subsidiaries
(the "group’} for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023 which comprise the Conselidated Income Statement, the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated and Company Balance Sheel, Consolidated
Cash Flow Statement. the Consolidated and Company Statement of Changes in Equity and the reloted noles 1 to 32,
including a summary of significant accounting polcies. The financial reparting framework that has baen applied in the
preparation of the group financial statements is applicabie law and UK adopted intemational accounting standards.
The financial reporting framework that has been applied In the preparation of the parent company financial stalements
is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 101 "Reduced Disclosure Framework”
{United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In aur epinion:

the financial statements give a true and fair view of the group’s and of the parent company's affars as at 146
Septernber 2023 and of the group's profit for the year then ended;

the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK adopted international
accounting standards;

the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and

the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006,

Basis for opinion
We conducted owr audit in accordance with Infernational Standards on Auditing (UK) [1SAs (UK)) and apphcable law,
Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the group in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financiat statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard,
and we have fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded thal the direciors’ use of the going concem basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. Cur evaluation of the directors” assessment of
the group and parent company's akility to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting included:

Understanding the process taken by managerment to evaluate the operaticnal and economic impacts of
macroaconomic factars on the Group and to reflect these in the group's forecasts;

Challenging the assumplions underpinning the Group's forecasts and going concern period until June 2025;
Confirming the opening cash and cash eguivalents to the financial statements;
Tasting the clerical accuracy of the model used to prepare the Group's going concern assessment:

- Performing a reverse strass test to establish the reduction in cash flows that could lead to aless of liquidity; and
Assessing the appropriatenass of the Group's disclosure concerning the going concern basis of preparation,

Based on the work we have performed, we have natf identified any malerial uncertainties relating 1o events or
conditians that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doutst on the group and parent company's ability fo
continue as a going concern unhl June 2025.

Qur responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect fo going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report. However, because not all fulure events or conditicns can be predicted, this statement is not o
guarantee as to the group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor's Report

1o the Members of Witlington Investments Limited

Other information
The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the tinancial stalements and
our auditor's report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information contained within the annual report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and. except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in this report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so. consicer whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or otherwise appears to
be materally misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required
to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a malerial misstatement of the other information, we are required
1o report that fact.

We have nothing to report in tnis regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, kased on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

the strategic reporl and directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understancling of the group and the parent company and its environment obtained in
the course of the audil, we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report or directors’ report.

we have nothing fo report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2004 requires us to
report 1o you if, in our opinion:

adeguate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company. or returns adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us; or

the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and retums; or
certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made:; or

we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directars’ responsibiliies statement set out on page 9. the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for teing satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial staterments that are free from
material misstatement, whether due 1o fraud or error,

In preparing 1he financial statements, the directors are respansible for assessing the group's and the parent company's
ahility to continue as o going concern, disclosing. as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liguidate the group or the parent company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are fo obifain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
rmaterial misstatement, whether due fo fraud or error, and to issue an quditor's report that includes our opirion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
1545 (UK} wilt always detect a maoterial misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasenably be expected to influence the economic
decisons of users takan on the basis of these financial statemeants.

wittington Investments Financial Staterrents 2023 11



Independent Auditor's Report

to the Members of wittington Investments Limited

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including
fraud

Iregularities, including fraud. are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line
with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detectiregularities, including fraud. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
delberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion. The extent 1o
which our procedures are capable of detecting imegularities, including fraud is detalled below. However, the primary
responsitility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests wilh both those charged with governance of the entity and
management,

Our approach was as follows:

We obtained an understanding of the tegal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the Group and
determined that the most significant framewaorks which are directly relevant to specific assertions in the financial
statements are those that relate to the reporting framework (FRS 101 "Reduced Disclosure Framework™, United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice and the Companies Act 2006) and the relevant tax laws and
regulations in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates. In addition, we concluded that there are certain
significant laws and regulations which may have an effect on the determination of the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements baing thase laws and regulations relating to health and safely, employee matters, food
standards and food safety.

We undersicod how Wittington Investments Limited is complying with those frameworks by making enquiries of
management and observing the oversight of those charged with governance, the culture of honesty and ethical
behaviour and wheather a strong emphasis is placed on fraud prevention, which may reduce opportunities for fraud
to take place, and fraud deterrence. which could persuade individuals not to commit fraud because of the
likelihood of detection and punishment.

We assessed the susceptibility of the Group's financial statements to material misstatement, including how fraud
might occur by meeting with management fram various parts of the business to understand where it considered
there was susceptibility to fraud. We also considered performance targets and their influence on efforts made by
management to manage earnings. We considered the programmes and controls that the Group has established to
address risks identifiad, or that otherwise prevent, deter and detect fraud; and how management monitors those
prugiannies wnd controls, Where Hhe sk was considered te be higher, we performed audit proceduros te addross
each identified fraud risk. These procedurses included testing manual journals and were designed to provide
reasonable assurance that the financial statements were free from material fraud or error.

Based on this understanding we designed our audit procedures to identify non-compliance with such laws and
regulations. Qur procedures involved a focus an journal entry testing and journals indicating large or unusual
transactions or meetling our defined risk criteria based on our understanding of the business and enguiries of
management.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting
Council's website at https:/ fwww fre org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accardance with Chapter 3 of Part 146 of the
Companies Act 2006, Qur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those
mafters we are reqguired 1o state to them in an cuditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by low, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’'s members as
a body, for our audit work. for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Q&//

Simon O'Neill {Senior statutory auditor)
for and an behalf of Emst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
Birmingham

15 December 2023
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Consolidated income statement
for the 52 weeks ended 14 September 2023
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2023 2022
Contnuing coeraiicns Nale £m ir
Revenue 3 20,028 17.258
Opeorating costs before exceptional items 4 (18.698) 115,%6%)
Exceplonditers i “ 009 04
1221 1.083
Share of profit after fax from joint ventures ond associcles 13 124 109
Profils less losses on disposal of non-curent assets . - 16
Operating profit 1,372 1,208
Adjusted operating profit o 3 1,503 1,454
Profits tess losses on disposal of non-current assets 27 14
Amortisation of non operating Infangiolas ? (41} 147)
Acquired inventory far value adjustrments 4 {3) 15)
Transaction casts 4 (5) {4)
_Exceptionditerns ) 4 (107} (206} |
Profits less losses on sale and closure of businesses o 25 1 (28
Profit before interest 1,373 1,185
Finonce income & 116 44
finance expense 6 (131} [116)
Other finoncial income o ) é 24 40
Profi before taxafion 1,384 1,153
Adjusted profit before taxation 1,514 1,424
Profits less lnsses on disposal of non-current assels 27 16 .
Armartisation of non-operafing inlangioles g (an 147} !
Acquired inventory fair volue adjustments 4 (3 (s)
Transaction costs 4 (5) {é)
Exceptional items 4 (109} 1206}
_Profits 1ess losses on sale and closure of busnesses o 2 1 [23)
Taxation - UK {excluding tax on exceptlional ilens) (56) 1é4)
- UK {on exceptional items) 3 3
Overseas [excluding fax an exceptiondt iterms) {164) 1243}
_ Oversaas [on exceptional items] — IO () R -
o o - 7 (285) {370)
Profit for the period 1,099 783
Affributable to
Equity shareholders 618 445
Non-controling interests o ) L 481 338
Profit for the period 1,099 783



Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

for the 52 weeks ended 14 September 2023

2033 0727

Mot £m £m
Profit for the period recognised in the income statement 1.099 783
Other comprehensive income
Remeasurerments of defined berefit schemes 14 (8) 825
Delferred lax associated with defined benefit schemes A 4 (199}
items that will not be reclussified 1o profit or [oss (2) 626
Effect of movements in foreign exchange (473} 445
Net gain/{loss) on hedge of net investment In foreign subsidiares 1 (1}
MNet gain on other invesiments held at fair value through other comprehensive income - 4
Defered fax ossociated with movernents in foreign exchangs (5)
Current tax associated with movements in foreign exchange ]
Movernent in cash llow hedging pesition 28C (260} 419
Delerred 1ox associated with movement in cash flow hedging positicn 7, 28¢ 40 128}
Leierred 1ax assecialed with movement in ofher investments - {1)
Share of other comprehensive (loss)/incame of joint ventures and associales {(18) 28
Effect of hypennflationary eccnomies o 40 46
ftermns thaf are or may be subsequently reclassiied 1o profit or loss (469} 712
Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the period 671) 1538
Total comprehensive"iﬁc:c;r'nwe for the period - B 428 2321
Athibutable to
Equity shareholders 251 1,281
Non-controling interests 177 1,040
Total comprehensive income tor the period 423 2,321
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Consolidated balance sheet
ol 16 Septembear 2023

2023 22

Nate £m £
Non-current assets
Infangible assets ? 1.880 1,879
Property, plant and equipment 10 5834 5.727
Right-ol-use assels 11 2377 2,477
Investment property 12 274 248
Investmenits in joint ventures 13 305 303
rvasimenis in associctes 13 93 a9
Employee benelits assets 14 1,446 1,393
Investments 28 149 142
Incorme tax 7 23 23
Deferrad tax assets 15 195 160
Other recevables - 14 63 58
Tolol non-cumentassels - 12,639 12,457
Current assets
Assels classified as held for sale 17 - 45
Irventones 18 3.244 3296
Biological assets 19 99 105
Trade and other receivatles 16 1,807 1,789
Derivative assels 28 2% 475
Investments 28 1,329 1,243
INCome tox 103 76
Cash and cash equivalents e 20 1,596 2226
Total cunrent assets - B276 9255
Total assets o a o 20915 21752
Current liabilifies
Liabilities classified os held for sale 7 - {14)
Leqse [abilities 1 (338) 1320)
Lo s o wl wverdrafts a {169} 1157)
Trade and other payahles 22 {3.000) 13.145)
Derivartive liabilities 28 (69) [205)
INcome tax (117} {170}
Provisions L 23 {55) 187]
Total current liabilities » o ) (3.748) f4.118]
Non-cumrent liabililies
Lease fabilities 1t (2.852) {2.955)
Loans 2t (394) (481}
Provisions 23 (48) (24)
Deferred tax fiabiifies 15 (642) (664}
Employee bernefits llabimes 7 o 14 (75) (86}
Total hon currenl ffabilities ' o o oy 21
Total ligbiliies - - _ (7.759) (8.330)
Nelassets o T o 13186 13422
Equity
Issued capital 24 - -
Share sremium 382 382
Other reserves 24 101 97
Translation reserve 24 (22) 235
Hedging reserve 24 1 84
Retdined sarnings o ) o _ 7.733 7,308
Tolal equily affributable to equily shareholders - 8195 8106
Non-conlroling inferests o o o 4,981 a3
Tolal equity o ' N 13156 13400

The financial statements on pages 13 to 77 were approved by the Board of Directars on 15 December 2023 and were
signed on its behalf by:

1

[
B

Sir Guy Weston
Chairmar
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Consolidated cash flow statement
for the 52 weeks ended 16 Seplember 2023

023 w07

Hale £m £
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before taxation 1,384 1,153
Profits less losses on disposal of non-current assets 27} [14)
Profils less losses on sale and closure of businesses m 23
Ticnsaction costs 4 5 é
Finonce income [ (116) {44)
Finance expense & 131 114
Other financial incorme 5 (28) 1404
Share of profit afier tax from joint veniures and associates 13 (124) 1109)
Amorfisation 86 71
Depreciation {including depreciation of nght-of-use assets) 815 816
Impairment/{Reversal of impairment) of property, plant & equiprment and right-of-use assets 5 113
Impairment of investment properties 14 4
Exceptional tems 4 109 206
Acquired invenlory fair value adjusiments 3 5
Effect of hyperirflotionary econamies 14 14
Net change in the fair value of current biclogical assets mnm 18)
Share-based payment expense 26 18 19
Pension costs less contributions {8) 7
Increase in inventores (99) [944]
Increase in recevahles (104) 1288}
Decrease)/increase in payables (18) 514
Purchases less sales of current biclogical assets 3] {4}
[Decrease]/incredse in provisions o {27) 7
Cash generated from operoﬂor'{s_ o 2014 1,472
Income foxes poid S . (349) (313)
Net cash generaled from operating activiies 716;‘57 1,186
Cash flow from investing acfivitics
Dividends received from joint ventures and associates 13 109 2?6
Purchase of property, plant and eguipment (1,004) {£83)
Purchase of infangibles {79} 192
Sale of property, plant and eguipment 43 30
Purchase of investment properties (45) [63)
Sale of investment properiies 3 34
Purchase of subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates 25 (74} {154)
Sale of subsidiaries, joint ventures and ossociates 46 2
Purchase of non-current investments (26) {55)
Redemplion of non-current invesiments 19 24
Purchase of current investmenis 27 (1.489) (1.201)
rRedempthon of/decrease in curent investments 27 1,540 1,079
Inferest and dividends received R 54 26
Net cash used in investing acfivifies o (9¥8) 957)
Cash flow from financing activities
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (163) (180)
Dividends paid fo equity shareholders 8 (128} (104}
Interest paic (119} (114}
Lease inceniives received 62 44
Repayment of lease labilities 27 (312) [325)
Decrease in shorf-lem loans 27 (13) [58)
Increase inlong-term loans 27 - 17%
Purchase of shares in subsidiary undertaking from non-conltroling interests 32 {448) -
Movement from changes in own shares held {46} {50]
Net cash used in financing acfivities A o . [1,147) [604]
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 27 (500) 1397)
Cash and cash equivatents at the beginning of the period 2,100 2423
Fflect of movements in foreign exchange I 74
Cash and cash équivaléhis ot the end of the period o7 Tgi“;m 2, 100
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

hNon
Shone Lt 1] Tetal
[HREOTUM ervEr Testal consls oLy
MNole £m £ im £1n i
Balance as at 18 Seplember 2021 o - 382 95 {19] 24 6617 7099 4,598 11.697
Total comprehensive income
Profil for 1he period recognised in the income slatement - - - 445 445 338 783
Remeasurements of defined benefit schemes 14 - - 451 48] 374 825
Defened tax associated with defined benefit schemes - =108 o9 {(%0]  [1%99)
Items that will net be reclassified 1o profit or loss - 342 342 284 626
Effect of movements in foreian exchange 240 - 240 05 445
Net 1oss on hedge of net investment in foreign subsidiares I} - (1} - {1)
Net gain on other investments held at fair value through
other comprehensive income - - 3 - - 3 1 4
Moverment in cash llow hedging position - - - 228 - 228 191 419
Deferrad tax associated with rmovements in cash flow - - [15) - {15} 113} (28}
hedging position
Deferred tax associated with moverments in other - - m - - (1} {1
investments
Share of other comprehensive income of joint venfures - - 15 - 15 13 28
ond ossociates
Effect of hyperinflationary econorries - - - 25 25 21 48
llems that are or may be subsequently reclassified 10 - 2 254 7213 25 494 418 912
profit or loss ] _ o L
Other comprehensive | income - - 2 254 367/ 836 702 1. 538
Total comprehensive income ) - - 2 254 812 1,281 1,040 2321
inventory cash flow hedge movements
Lasses fransferred to cos! of inventory - - [153) - 153y 127y (280}
Total inveritory cash ﬂow hedge movements - - - {153 (153 (127} (280}
Transactions with owners
Dividends paid o equily shareholders 8 - - - - {104]  (104) (104}
Net movement in own shares hald - - - - (18] [14] {150 {31)
Drletied lus wssoiuled will sl e loased paymets 00 {n
Dividends paid to non-controling interests - - - T (180} [180)
Total fransactions with owners - - - - e, Do A21) (121) {195} [31¢),
Balance cs af 17 September 2022 387 97 235 84 7308 8,106 5316 13.472
Total comprehensive income
Profit for the pearicd recognised in the income statement - - - - - 418 418 481 1.09%
Remensurements of defined benefil schemes 14 - - - - - (3) (3} (3) (8)
Deferred jax associcted with defined benefil schemes - - - - - 2 2 2 4
lters {hat wil nof be reclassiied 1o prolif or loss - - - - - m M Q) (2}
Effect of rrovements in forsigh exchange - - - (255} - - (255} (218} (473)
Net 1oss on hedge of net investment in foreign subsiciaries - - - 1 - - 1 - 1
Defered fax associaled with movernents in foreign - - - (3) - - (3} {2} (5)
exchange
Current tax associated wilh movements in foreign - - - 3 - - 3 3 L3
exchonge
Movement in cash flow hedging position - - - - (146) - (144) (114} (240)
Defered tax associated with movements in cash llow - - - - 22 - 22 18 40
hedgihg position
Share of other comprehensive income of joint ventures - - - (10} - - (10) {8 {(18)
and Gssociates
Effect of hypednflationary economies - - - - - - 22 22 18 40
terns Iho? are or may be subsequently reclassified to prom
o loss o - - - (264) (124) 22 (366)  (303) (49)
Other comprehemswe income - - - (264) (124) 21 (367 (304) (671}
Tolal comprehensive income - - - (264) (124) 4639 251 177 428
Inventory cash flow hedge movements
Losses fransferred to cost of invenlory - - - = 38 - 38 30 68
Total \hventory cessh flow hedge movemenfs - - - - 38 - 38 30 &8
Transaclions with owners
Dividends paid 1o equity shareholders 8 - ~ - - - {128) (128) - [128)
Net movement in own shares held - - - - - (18} (18) {12}y (28)
Acquisiion of nor-contreling nterests - - 4 7 3 (71} (57)  (387) (444)
Deferned iox associaled with share-based payments - - - - - 1 1 - 1
Dividends paid to non-conlroling interesls = - - - A A1) B A L))
Total 1ronsochons with owners . - - 4 7 3 {214} (200} (562) (7862)
Bclance asat 16 September 2023 - 382 101 (22) 1 7,733 8,1%5 4961 13,156
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 146 Seplember 2023

1. Significant Accounting policies

Wittington Investments Limited is a private company
limited by shares incorporated and registered in England,
United Kingdom.

The Company's consolidated financial statements for the
52 weeks ended 16 September 2023 comprise those of the
Company and its subsidiaries [the 'Group'} and its interasts
in joint ventures and associates.

The directors authorised the consclidated financial
statements for issue on 15 December 2023,

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared and approved by the directors in accordance
with UK-adopted International Accounting Standards ('UK
Adopted IFRS'}.

Given the materiality of the ABF {Associated British Foods
plc) business segment and tor ease af cross-reference to
the published financiatl statements of ABF, the directors
have elected (o provide additional information in the
notes which follow setting out the confribution of the ABF
business segment to the consolidated financial statements
of the Group. For clarity, all references to the ABF business
segment are shown in ffafics in the notes 1o these
stiatements and are consistent with the pubidished financial
statements of ABF.

The directors have elected to prepare the parent
company financial statements in accordance wilh UK
Accaounting Standards and applicable low (UK Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice}. including Financial
Reporting Standard 101 ‘Reduced Disclosure Framework’.
These are presented on pages 74 to 79,

Basis of preparation

The Company presants its consolidated financial
statements in sterling, rounded to the nearest million
lexcept where otherwise indicated). prepared on the
historical cost basis except that current biological assets
held by ABF {Associoted British Foods plc) and certain
financial instruments are stated at fair value. Assets
classifiect as held for sale are stated of the lower of
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

The preparalion of financial statements under UK-
Adopted IFRS requires management 1o make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the reported amounts
of assefs and fiabilities, income and expenses and the
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on experience.
Actual results may differ from these estimates,

Judgements made by management in the application of
UK-Adopted IFRS that have a significant effect on the
financict statements and estimates with @ significant risk of
material adjusiment next year, are discussedin
Accounting estimates and judgements detailed in note 2.

The estimales and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on aregular basis. Revisions to accounling estimates are
recognised from the period in which the estimates are
revised.

The accounting policies set out below have been applied
to all periods presented, except where stated otherwise.

Detalls of new accounting standards which came info
force in the year are set cut at the end of s note.

The Group's consolidated financial statements are
prepared to the Saturday nearest to 15 September,
Accordingly, these financial statements have been
prepared for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023
(2027 - 52 weeks ended 17 September 2022).

To aveid delay in the preparalion of the consolidated
financial staternents, the results of certain subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates are included up to 31 August
each year and Fortnum and mMason picis included up to ?
July 2023, Adjustments are made as appropriate for
significant transactions or events occurring between 146
September and these other balance sheet dates.

The Group's business activilies, fogether with factors likely
to affect its future development. performance and
position are set outin the Strategic report on pages 1 1o 4.
The Principal risks and uncertainties on page 5 and note
28 on pages 51 to 62 provide details of the Group's policy
on managing its financial and commodity risks. The Group
has considerable financial resources, good access to
debt markets. a diverse range of businesses and o wide
geographic spread. It is therefore well placed to manage
business risks successfully.

Climate change

In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
management has considered the impact of climate
change, particularly in the confext of the Non-Financial
and Sustainability Information $Statement set out on pages
3 to 4 and our sustainability targets, These considerations
did not have a material impact on the financial reporting
judgements and estimates, consistent with the assessment
ihat climate change s not expected 1o have a agrticant
impact on the Group's going concern assessment to June
2025 nor the viability of the Group over the next three
years.

Management has considered the impact of climate
change on a number of key estimates within the financial
statements, including the estimates of future cash flows
used in impairment assessments of the carrying value of
goodwll and other non-current assets. The assessment
with respect to the impact of climate change will be kept
under review by management, as the future impacts
depend on factors ocutside ot the Group’s control, which
are not all currently known,

Going concern

The glokal inflationary pressures friggerad initially by
COVID-19 have been exacerbated by the geopolitical
uncertainty caused by Russia's war in Ukraine. for the
avoidance of doubt, the Group does not have any
operations or investments in Russia. Nevertheless, the war
has resulted in economic uncertainty in almaost all of the
markets in which the Group operates, and has adversely
impacted commodity costs and supply chains as well as
wage costs. Our management teams in all business
segments continue to monitor cost inflation closely. Whilst
there are earlysigns of cost inflation descreasing in many
parts of the global economy, the emergence of conflict in
the middle East has added further risk to an already fragile
geopolifcal and econamic environment, Its impacts on
the Group's trading and investing activities will depend on
the duration of the cument crises in Ukraine and the
middle East,on geopolitical repercussions and on central
bank responses to inflation.

However, the directors believe the Group's resilience has
been avidenced by the year-on-year growth in operating
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

1. Significant Accounting policies continued
cash flows in excess of £1bn sef out In these statements.
After making enquiries, the directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Group has adequate resources to
conlinue In operational existence for the foreseeable
future, For this recson they continue to adopt the going
concern basis in prepanng the consolidated financiol
stafermnents,

Having reviewed the Board's best estimate of future cash
flow to June 2025, and having applied reverse stress tests,
the possibility that the financial headroom could be
exhausted is considered o be extremely remote. The
directors understand the risks, sensitivities and judgements
included in the cash flow forecast and have a high
degree of confidence in these cash flows, There is
substantial financial headroom beatweaean this cash flow
forecast and the cash on hand and funding available 1o
the Group over the period. This is evidenced by the net
cash position before lease liabilities for the Group of
£2.36bn at 16" September 2023 (2022: £2.83 bn).

Basis of consolidation

The consclidated financial statements include tne resulls
of the Company and its subsidiaries from the date that
control commences to the dale thal contral ceases.

They aiso include the Group's share of the after-tax results,
ather comprehensive income and net assets of ifs joint
ventures and assaciates on an equity-accounied basis
from the point at which joiht control or significant
influence respectively commences, to the date that it
cedases.

Subsicliaries are entities contralled by the Company.
Control exists when the Company has the power, direcily
or indirecily. to direct the relevant activitiss of an entity so
as 1o affect significantly the returns of that entity.

Changes in the Group's ownership interest in o subsidiary
that do not resuit in aloss of control are accounted for
within equily.

All the Group's joint arangements are joint ventures,
which are entities over whose activities the Group has joint
control, typically established by contractual agreement
ond requiring the venturers’ unanimous consent for
strategic financial and operating decisions.

Assaciates are those entities in which the Group has
significant influence, being the power to porticipate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the enfity, but
which does not amount to control or joint control.

Where the Group's share of losses excaeds its intarast in a
joint venture or associate, the carmrying amount is reduced
to zero and recognition of further losses is discontinued
except to the extent that the Group has incured legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
aninvestee.

Control, joint control and signiticant influence are
generally assessed by reference to equity sharehoidings
and voting rights.

Business acquisitions

On acquisition of a business, the Group attibutes fair
values to the identifiable assetls, llabiities and contingent
liabililies acquired, reflecting conditions gt the date of
acquisition. These include aligning accounting policies
with those of the Group.

The Group finalises provisional fair values within 12 montns
of the date of acquisition and. where significant, reflects
them by restatement of the comparative perod in which
the acquisition occurred. The Group measures nen-
controlling interests at the proportionate share of the net
identifiable assets acguired.

The Group remedasures existing equity interests in the
acquiree to fair value at the date of acquisition, with any
resulting gain or loss taken to the income stalement.

Goodwill arising on acquisition of o business is the excess
of the remeasurad carying amount of any existing equity
interest plus the fair value of consideration payable for the
additional stake over ihe fair value of the share of net
identifiable assets and liabilities acquired {(including
separately identified intangible assets), net of non-
controlling interests. Total consideration daes not include
fransaction costs, which the Group expenses as incurred.

The Group measures contingent considerafion at fair
value at the date of acquisition, classified as a fiability or
equity {usually as @ liability).

Other than for the finalsation of provisional fair values, the
CGroup accounts far changes in contingent consideration
classified as o liakility in the income statement.

Exceptional items

Exceptional iterms are those items thal, in the judgement
of the Directors, need to be disclosed separately by virfue
of their nature, size orincidence. ltems thal may be
considered exceptional in nature include disposals of
businesses or significant assets, business restruciurings,
significant onerous confract charges/releaseas, debt
repurchase costs, certain pension past service
credits/costs, asset impairments/write-backs and the tox
effects of these items,

The Group distinguishes between exceptional and non-
exceplional impairments/write-backs on the basis of the
underlying driver of the impairment, as well s the
magnitude of the impairment. Drivers that are deemed to
be cutside of the control of the Group give rise fo
exceptional impairments. Additionally, impairment
charges that are of a cne-off nature and significant
enough value fo distort the underlying results of the
business are cansidered to be exceptional

Revenue

Revenue represents the value of sales made te customers
after deduction of discounts, sales taxes and o provision
for returns. Discounts include sales rebates, price
discounts, custormer incentives, certain promotional
activities and similar items. Revenue does not include sales
between Group companies.

The Group recognises revenue when performance
obligations are satisfied, goods are delivered to customers
and control of goods is transferred to the buyer.

In the Food businesses of ABF, the Group generally
recognises revenue from the sale of goods on dispatch or
delivery 1o customers, dependent on shipping terms, and
provides for discounts and returns as a reduction to
revenue when sales are recorded, based on
management's best estimalte of the amount required 1o
meet claims by customers, taking into account
contractual and legal obligations, historical frends and
past experience.

In the Retail business of ABF, the Group generally
recognises revenue from the sale of goods when a

~
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

1. Significant Accounting policies continved
customer purchases goods, and provides for returns as a
reduction to revenue when sales are recorded, based on
management's best estimate of the amount required to
meet claims by customers. taking info account historical
trends and past experience.

Borrowing costs

The Group accounts for borrowing costs using the
effective interest method. The Group capitalises
bomowing costs directly aftributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying items of property,
plant and equipment as part of their cast.

Foreign currencies

Inclivicdlual Group companies record transactions in foreign
currencies al the exchange rate af the date of the
transaction, and transiate monetary assets and liabiliies n
foreign currencies at the exchange rate at the balance
sheet date, with any resulting differences taken to the
income statement, unless designated in a hedging
relaticnship, in which case hedge accounting applies.

On consolidation, the Group translates the assets and
Ilabilities of operations denominaled in foreign currencies
into sterling at the exchange rate at the balance sheet
date. The Group translates the income statements of
ihose operations into sterling at average exchange rates.

The Group records differences arising from the
retransiation of opening net assets of Group companies,
together with differences arising from the restatement of
the net results of Group companies from average
exchange rates to those at the balance sheet date, in the
translation reserve in equity.

Pensions and other post-employment benefits

The Group's pensien and other post-employment benefit
arrangements camprise defined benefit plans, defined
contribution plans and other unfunded postk-employment
plans.

For defined benefit plans, the income staternent charge
comprises the cost of benefits earmed by members and
benefit improvements granted to members during the
year, as well as net interest income/{expense] calculated
by applying the liakility discount rate to the opening nel
pension asset or liability,

The Group records the difference between the market
value of scheme assets and the present value of scheme
liabilities on a scheme-by-scheme basis as net pension
assets (to the extent recoverable) or kabilities,

The Group recognises remeasurements and movements in
irecoverable surpluses in other comprehensive income.

The Group charges contributions payable inrespect of
defined contribution plans to operating profit as incured.

The Group accounts for other unfunded posi-employment
plans in the same way as defined benefit plans.

Income tax

Incorme tax on profit or loss for the period comprises
cunent and deferrad tax. The Group recognises income
tax in the income statement except to the extent that it
relates to items taken directly to equily.

Current tax is the tax expected to be payable on taxable
income for the year, using tax rales enacted or
substantively enacted for the periad, together with any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of prior periods.

w0 Wittington Investments  Finanizial Starements 2023

The Group provides for deferred tax using the balance
sheet liability method, providing for termporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for fax
purposes.

The Group does not provide for the following temporary
differences: inifial recognition of goadwill; inihal
recognition of assels or liabilities affecting neither
accounting nor taxable profit other than those acquired
in a business combination: and differences relating 1o
invastrments in subsidianas to the extent that they will
probably not reverse in the foresesable future.

The Group bases the amount of deferred tax provided on
the expected manner of redlisation or settlement of the
camying amount of assels and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted orsubstantively enacted at the balance sheet
date.

The Group recognises deferred tax assets anly 1o the
extent that it is probable thal future faxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be ulilised.

The Group offsets deferred tax assets and lickilities if, and
only if, it has o legally enforceable right 1o set off current fax
assets and ligkbilities and the deferred tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxalion authorty
on either the same taxable entity or different faxable entities
which intend either to settle cument tax liabilihes and assets
on a net basis, or to redlise the assets and settle the ligkilities
simultaneously, in each future pediod in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expacted to
bhe settled or recovered,

As required by I1AS 12, we have applied the exception to
recognising and disclosing informahon about deferred tax
assets and liabilifies related to Pillar Two income faxes.

The Group recognises income tax arising from dividend
distributions at the same fime as the labitity to pay the
related dividend.

Financial assets and liabilities

The Group recognises financial assets and liakilities whea it
becomaeas a party to the contractual provision of the
relevant financial instument.

Trade and other receivables

The Group records trade and other receivables initially at
fair value and subsequently at amaortised cost. This
generaily results in recognition af nominal value less an
expected credit loss provision, which is recognised based
on management's expectation cf losses without regard to
whether or not a specific impairment trigger has occured.

Other non-current receivables

Other non-current receivables comprise finance fease
receivables due from ajoint venture and minority
shareholdings in private companies. The Group accounts
for finance lease receivables in the same way as for trade
and other receivables.

The Group records minority shareholdings in designated
private compaonies inhally at fair value, including directly
attributable transaction costs, and subseguently at fair
value through other comprehensive income (FYQCI).

On disposal of a minarity sharehalding, the cumulative
gain or f0ss previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is included directly in retained earnings. without
recycling it to the income statement.



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 14 September 2023

1. Significant Accounting policies confinued
Bank and other borrowings

The Group records bank and ather borrowings inificlly at
fair value. which equals the proceeds received. net of
direct issue costs, and subseguently at amortised cost. The
Group accounts for finonce charges, including premiums
payable on settlement or redamption and direct issue
casts, using the effeclive interest rate method.

Trade payables

The Group records tfrade payables initially at fair value
and subseguently at amortised cost. This generally results
in recognition at nominal value.

Other financial assets

Other financial assets are classified, at initial recognition,
as valued at amortised cost or fair value through profit
and loss [FYTPL). The classification of financial assets
depends on the financial asset's cash flow characteristics
and the business model for managing them. Financial
assets at omortised costs are subject to impairments with
gains and losses being recognised in the profit and loss
when the assets are derecognised or impaired. Financial
assets at fair value through profit and loss are typically
held for trading and are carried in the staternent of
financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in profit and 1oss, Equity investments
where the Company does not have significant influence,
control or joint control are measured at FVTPL.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise bank and cash
balances, call depcsits and short-term investments with
original maturities of three months or lass,

For the purpeses of the cash flow siatemeant, the Group
includes bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group's cash
managemant as a component of cash and cash
equivalents.

Intangible assets other than goodwill

Non-operating infangible assets are infangible assels that
arise on business comination: and typically include
technaology, brands. customer relationships and grower
agreements. The Group acquires operating intangible
assels in the orcinary course of business, typically including
computer soffware, land use rights and emissions trading
icences.

The Group records intangible assets other than goodwill at
cost less accumulated amaortisation and impairment
charges.

Amortisation is charged to the income staterment on a
straignt-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
intangible assets from the date they are available for use.
The estimated useful lives are generally deemed o be no
longer than:

Technology and brands
Custamer relaticnships
Grower agreements
Operating inlangitles

Goodwill

Goodwill is defined under 'Business acquisitions’ on page
19. Certain commercial assets associated with the
acquisition of a business are not capatbile of being
recognised in the acguisition Balance sheet. Insuch
circumstances, goodwill is recognised, which may include,

~Jpto 15 years
-up to 10 years
- up to 10 years

up to 10 years

but is not necessarily imited to, workforce assets and the
benefits of expected future synergies.

Goodwillis subject to an annual impairment review,

Impairment

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of its intangible
assets and property, plant and eguipment at eoch
baolance sheet date to determine whather there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indicalion exists, the
Group estimales the indicated asset’s recoverable
amount. For goodwill and intangibles without g finite life,
the Group does this at least annually.

The Group recagnises an impairment charge in the
income statement whenever the carrying amount of an
asset or its CGU exceeds its recoverable amount.

The Graup allocates impairment charges recognised in
respect of CGUs first to reduce the canying amount of
any goodwil relating to that CGU and then o reduce the
canmying amount of the other assets in the CGU on a pro
rata basis.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of assets is the greater of their
fair value less costs to sell and their value in use. In
assessing value In use, the Group discounts estimated
future cash ftows to present value using a pre-tax discount
rate reflective of curent market assessments of the fime
value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

For an asset that dees not generale largely independent
cash inflows, the Group determines recoverable amount
for the CGU to which the asset belongs.

Reversals of impairment

The Group does not subseguently reverse impairments of
goodwill. For oiher assels, the Group does reverse an
impairment charge if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recaverable amount, but
onty to the extent that the new carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no
impairment charge had previously been recognised,

Property, plant & equipment
The Group records property, plant and equipment at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment charges.

The Group charges depreciation 1o the income statement
on a straight-ling basis over the estimated useful
economic lives of each itern sufficient to reduce it to s
astimated residudl value, Land s not depreciated.
Estimated useful economic lives are generally deemed to
be no lenger than:

Freehold buldings up 1o 66 years
Plant and equipment. fixtures and fittings

sugar factories. yeas! plants, mills and up o 20 years

bakeries
cother operctions up to 12 years
Vehicles up 1o 10 years

Sugar cane roots up o 10 years

Leases

Alease is an agreement whereby the lessor conveys to
the lessee, in return for g payment or o series of payments,
the right to use a specific asset for an agreed period.

Where the Groug is alessee. the following accounting
policy is applied.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

1. Significant Accounting policies continued
Right-of-use assels

The Group records right-of-use assels at cost atf the
commencement date of the lease, which is the date the
underlying asset is available for use, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairmeant losses, and adjusted for
subsequent remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Cost includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised.
initial direct costs incurred. and lecse poyments made af
or before the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received.

The Group charges depreciation to the income staterment
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the estimated
useful life and the tease ferm.

Lease liabilities

The Group records leqse liabilities at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease payments
to e made over the legse term, discounted using the
incremental borrowing rate at the commencement date
of the lease if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not
readily determinable.

Lease payments include fixed payments, including in-
substance fixed payments, and variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, less any lease
incentives receivable.

Varigble lease payments that do not depend on anindex
or arate are recognised as an expense in the pericd in
which the event or condition that friggers the payment
OCCUrs.

The Group subsequently measures lease liabilities at
amerised cost using the effective interest rate method.
The Group records the accretion and settlerment of
interest through accruals and reduces the carrying
armount of lease habilities for the capital element of lease
payments made.

The carrying amount of lease habilities is also remeasured
when there is a change in future lease payments due to a
change in the lease term, a change in the in-substance
fixed lease payments or o change in the assessment ot
whether to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not contain
a purchase oplion. It also applies the low-value asset
recognition exemption to groups of underlying leases
considered uniformly low-value.

The Group expanses lease payments on short-ferm leases
and leases of low-value assets in the income statement as
incurred.

Lessor accounting

when sublaeasing assets, the Group assesses the sublease

classification with reference fo the head lease right-of-use
asset, which considers, amang other factors, whether the
sublease represents a majority of the remaining life of the
head lease.

The ratio of rental income to head lease rental payments
is used to determine how much of the right-of-use asset
should be derecognised, taking inlo account whether the
sublecse/head lease are above or below market rate.
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The Group records amounts due from lessees under
finance leases as a receivable at an amount equal to ihe
net investmeant in the lease, calculated using the
incremental borrowing rate at the date of recognition.
The Group recognises any difference between the
derecognised right-of-use asset and the newly recognised
amounts due from lessees under finance leases in the
ncome statement.

The Group recognises finance income aver the lease
term, reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the
netf investment in the lease.

The Group recognises operating lease income as earned
on a straight-line basis aver the lease term.

Inventories

The Group records inventories at the lower of cost and net
redlisable value, Costincludes raw materials, direct labour
and expenses and an appropriate proportion of
production and other overheads, calculated on a first-in
first-out basis.

The Group records retait inventories at the lower of cost
and netreaglisable value using the retail method,

calculated on the basis of selling price less appropyiate
trading margin. All retaill invenicries are finished goods.

On acquisition of a business, the Group records inventories
at fair value, Subseguently, the Group charges the book
valye of the inventories 1o adjusted operating profit as
they are sold or used. Any fair value uplift, if significant, is
charged below adjusted operating profit as the
inventories are sold or used,

Investment property

Investment properlies are held at cost less provision for
impairment. Impairment is determined by reference to the
fair value of property estimated either by independent
valuers or by the directors. Depreciation is provided where
the directors consider that the residual value of major
components of the property is less than current book
value,

The following accounting policies relate exclusively to the
income, expenditure, assels and liabilifies of the
Associated British Foods pic ("ABF") segment within the
consolidafed Group financial statements of Wiltinglon
Investments Limited.

Share-based payments

The Group recognises the fair value of share awaords af
gran! dafe as an employee expense with a corresponding
increase in equity, spread over the period during which
the employees became unconditionally entified to the
shares.

The Group adjusts the omount recogniscd fo reflect
expected and actual levels of vesting except where the
failure to vestis as a result of not meeting o market
condition.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

The Group primarily uses derivatives fo maonoge economic
exposure to financial and commodity risks. The principal
instrurnents uscd ore foreign exchange and commodity
contracts, futures, swaps or options. The Group does not
use denvatives for speculafive purposes.

The Group recognises derivatives at foir value bosed on
market prices or rates, or calculated using discounted
cash flow or option pricing modcis.



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

1. Significant Accounting policies continued

The Group recognises changos in the far value of
denvatives in the income statement unless the derivative is
designated in a hedging refationship, when recognition of
the change in fair volue depends on the nature of the
iterm being hedged.

The purpose of hedge accouniing is to mitigate the
impact on the Groyp of changes in foreign cxchange or
Iinterest rates and commodity prices.

At the incephon of each hedging relafionship, the Group
documents the hedging instrument, the hedged ifem. the
risk management objectives and strategy for undertaking
the hedge ond assesses hedge cffectiveness.

During the life of eqch hedging relationship. the Group
performs festing 1o demanstrate that the hedge rermcains
effective.

For denvatives used as hedges of tuture cash flows, the
Group recognises the change in fair value through other
comprehensive income in either ihe cost of hedging
reserve (for the element of the change in fair value
refating to the currency spread) or in the hodging reserve
{for the remaining change in fair value]. Any ineffective
porfion is recognised immediately in fhe income
stafement.

When the future cash flow results in the recognition of a
non-financial asset or liability, then at the fime that asset
or liapility is recognised, the Group includes the
associated gains ancd losses previously recognised in the
hedging reserve In the inthal measurement of that asset or
licxbifity.

When the future cash flow does nof result in the
recognition of a non-financial asset or liability, the Group
includes the associated gains and losses previausly
recaogniscd in the hedging reserve in the income
statement in the same period in which the hedged item
affects profit or loss,

Hedges of the Group's net investment in foreign
operations principally comprise borrowings in the currency
of the investment's not assets.

For derivative or non-derivative finoncial instruments used
as hedges of the Group's net investment in foreign
operations, the Grayp recognises the change in fair value
through other comprehensive income in the net
investment hedging reserve. Any ineffactive porfion is
recognised immediately in the income statement.

The Group discontinues hedge accounting when o
hedging instrumeni expires or is sold, terminated,
exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting.

At that time, the Graup refains the cumulaiive associated
gain or loss recognised in the hedging reserve until the
forecast transoction occurs. Gains or losses on hedging
instruments relating to an undenying cxposure that no
fonger exists are taken te the income siatement.

The Group economically hedges forcign currency
exposure on recognised monetary assefs and tiabilities Huf
does not normaolly seek hedge accounting. The Group
records any derivatives held to hedge this exposure at fair
value through profit and ioss.

Research and devalopment
The Group expenses research and dovelopment
expenditure as incurred, unless development expendilure

rolctes to products or processes which arc fechnically and
commoercially feasible, in which cose it is capitalised. The
Group records capltalised development expenditure af
cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
charges.

Current Biological Assets
The Group records currant biologicol assets at folr valuc
less costs to sell.

The basis of valuation for growing cane is estimated
sucrose content valued af estimated sucrose price for the
following scason, less the estimated costs for harvesting
and fransport,

wWhen harvested, growing conc is fransfered to inverniory
at fair value less cosfs to sell.

Grants

The Group recognises grants only whon fhere is
reasonable assurance that the Group witl comply with the
conditions attached and that the grants will be received.
Grants receivable as compensation for expenscs already
incurred are recognised in profit arloss in the period in
which they become receivable.

Hyperinflation

The Argentinian economy was designafed
hyperinflationary from 1 July 2018. The Turkish cconomy
was designated hypeorinflationary from 1 July 2022,

The Group has applied IAS 29 Financial Reporfing in
Hyperinflotionary Economics to the Group's Argentinian
operations from the beginning of the 2019 financial year
and for ifs Turkish operations from the beginning of the
2022 financicl yoar. 1AS 29 requires that hyperinflationary
adjustments are reflected from the starf of the reporting
period in which itis applied. For the Group’s Argentinian
operations this was 1 September 2018, and for the Group's
Turkish operations this was 1 September 20217,

The adjustments required by I1AS 29 are sct out below:!

adjustment of histodcal cost non-manetary assets and
liakilities fram their date of inihal recognition to the
balance sheet date to reflect the changesin
purchasing power of the currency caused by inflation,
according to the afficial indices for Argentina
published by the Federacion Argentina de Consejos
Profesionales de Ciencias Econdmicas (FACPCE) and
for Turkey published by Turkish Statisfical Institufc
{'TUK'):

adjustment of the components of the income
staterment and cosh flow statement for the inflation
index since their generation, with o balancing enfry in
the income statement and a reconciling itern in the
cash flow statement, respectively:

adjustment of the income statement to reflect the
impact of inflation on holding manetary assets and
fichilitics in local currency;

the financial statements of the Group's Argentinian
and Turkish operations have been translated into
sterling at the clesing exchange rate at 16 September
2023 (ARS 433.88:£1; TRL 33.45:£1); and

the curmnulative impact corresponding to previous
yvears has been reflected in other comprehensive
income in the year.

In Argenting, the FACPCE index was 9111316 af 31 August
20272 and 2044, 2832 at 31 August 2023, The inflafion index
for the yoaris therofore 2.244.
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far the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

1. Significant Accounting policies continued

in Turkey, the TUIK index was 80.21 ot 31 August 2022 and
58.94 af 31 August 2023. The inflation index for the year is
therefore 0.735.

The Venezuelan econcmy has been designatfed
hyperinfiationary for o number of yvears, buf the impact on
the Group's results remains immateriol.

New accounting policies

The following accounting standards and amendments
were odopted during the year ond had no significant
impact on the Group:

Reference to the Conceptual Framework
{Amendments to IFRS 3)

Property, Piant and Equipment: Proceeds before
intended Use {Amendments to IAS 18]

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract
{Amendments o |AS 37)

Annudl Improvernents to IFRS 2018-2020

The Group is assessing the impact of the following
standards, interpretations and amendments that are not
yet effective. Where already endorsed by the UKEB, these
changes will be adopted on the effective dates noled.
where not yet endorsed by the UKEB, the adoption date s
less cerfain:

- FRS 17 Insurance Contracts, Amendments to IFRS 17,
initial Application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 - Comparative
Information. effective 2024 financial year

Disclosure of Accounting policies {Amendments to IAS
I and IFRS Practice Statement 2), effective 2024
financial year

Definiton of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to
IAS 8), effective 2024 financial year

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabkiities arising
from a Single Transaction (Amendments to 1AS 12},
effective 2024 financial year

Lease Liohility in a Sale and Leaseback (Amendments
to IFRS 168). effective 2025 financial year

International Tax Reform - Pillar Two Model Rules
{Aamendments to IAS 12), effective 2024 financial year

'Classification of Liabilifies as Current or Non-current
and Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
[Amendmenis to IAS 1), effective 2025 tinancial year

- Supplier Finance Arrangements (Amendments o [AS 7
and IFRS 7}, effective 2025 financial year

Amendments to 1AS 21 The Effects of Changes in
Foreign Exchange Rates: Lack of Exchangeability.
effective 2024 financial year (nol vel endorsed by the
UKEB}

2, Accounting estimates and judgements

In applying the accounting policies detailed on pages 18
ta 24, the directors have made estimates in a numiber of
areds. The actual outcome may differ from those
astimates. Key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
balance sheet date, with the potential for material
adjustment to the carmying value of assefs and liabilities
within the next financial year, are set out belaw.

24 Wittington Investments  Fioncial Statements 2023

Forecasts and discount rates

The corying values of a number of items on the balance
sheat are dependent on estimates of future cash flows
arising from the Group's operations and investments
which, in some circumstances, are discounted fo amve at
a net present value.

Assessment for impairment involves comparing the book
value of an asset with its recoverable amount (being the
higher of value in use and fair value less costs 1o sell).
Value in use is determined with reference to projected
future cash flows discounted at an appropriate rate. Both
the cash flows and the discount rate involve a significant
degree of estimation uncertainty.

Further detalls are included in note ¢ for intangible assets,
note 10 for property, plant and equipment and note 12 for
investment property.

The recovery of deferred tax assets is dependent on the
generation of sufficient future taxable profits. The Group
recognises deferred fax assefs to the extent that it is
considered probable that sufficient taxable profils will be
avagilable in the future. This involves a significant degree of
estimation uncertainty.

When considering sources of future taxable profit, the
Group firstly considers existing deferred tax liabilities.
However, the majority of defered tax assels are
recognised based an future profit forecasts, including the
deferred tax assets in ABF's most material jurisdictions of
the United Kingdorn, the United States, Australia, Germany
and Spain.

When relying on profit forecasts, the assessmeant of
whether to recognise deferred tax assefs s based on the
following year's budget and expeciations of the future
performance of individual businesses {or groups of
businesses in the case of nationat tax groups). Where
passible, this is consistent with forecasts used for
impairmeant assessmeants. Forecasts for impairment
assessments are discounted, but this is not permitted for
recognition of deferred tax assets.

Deferred tax assets are reduced when it is no longer
considered probable that the related tax benefit will be
redlised.

The widespread nature of the ABF's activities across
multiple jurisdictions means that it is net practical to
provide detlailed sensitivities in respect of individual
deferred tax assets.

Further details of deferred tax assets are included in nole
15.

Post-retirement benefits

The Group's defined benefit pension schemes and similar
arrangements are assessed annually in accordance with
145 19 Employee Benefits. The accounting valuations,
assessed using assumptions determined with independent
actuarial advice, resulted in a significant net surplus as al
14 September 2023, poncipally relating to the UK defined
benefit scheme, which is separately disciosed.

The net sumplus is highly sensitive to the market value of
schame assets, to discount rates used In assessing
Fabilities, to actuarial assumptions {including price
inflation, rates of pension and salary increases, mortality
and other dermographic assumpticons) and to the level of
contributions.,



Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

2. Accounting estimates and judgements
continved

Further details are included in note 14, including
associated sensifivities.

The following other areas of accounting estimates and
judgements relafe exciusively to the income, expenditure,
assefs and liabilities of the Associafed British Foods plc
{"ABF") segment within the consolidated Group financiaf
statements of Wiltington Investments Limited.

Biological assets

In valuing growing cane, esfimafing sucrose content
requires the Group fo assess expected cane and sucrose
yields for the following scason considering weather
condifions and harvesting programmes. Estimating
sucrose price requires the Group to assess into which
markets the forthcoming crop will be sold and assess
domestic and export prices as well as related foreign
currency exchonge rates. The canying value of growing
cane and associated sensifivities is disclosed in nofe 19

Income tax

The Group is exposed to a range of uncertain tax
positions. it provides for open tax matters, where it
believes it is probable that payments will be required.
including those for roufine tax audits, which are by nafure
complex and may take o number of years 1o resolve.
Uncertainty is driven by the resolufion of fhe issuc ond
estimation process in arriving at the amount. The Group
has recognised potentiol cument corporate fox liabilities
for @ number of uncertain tax positions, none of which are
individually material. The provision for these uncertain fax
posifions was 2023 - £55m (2022 - £102r). The reduction in
the provision is due to the conclusion of UK tax audits
covefing scveral businesses and years. The majority of the
remaining provisions relate fo transfor pricing risks across o
number of jurisclictions in which the Group has operations.
Transfor pricing is o complex area with resclution of
matters taking many years. Given the underlying nature of
these risks, the timing of when they will resolve is uncertain.

The Group applies IFRIC 23 Uncerfamnty over Income Tax
Treatments fo measure uncertain tax positions. The Group
calculates each provision using management's besft
estimate of the fiability based on interpretation of fox law
in each jurisdiction and ongoing monitoring of tax cases
and rufings. The Group befieves if has adequate provision
for these matters, Final conclusion of each matter may
resUlt in an outcome diffcront to any amounts provided,
but the Group has concluded that this is unfikety toc have o
material impact,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 14 September 2023

3. Our businesses

ABF has five operating divisions, as described bofow, plus Central ABF, These are ABF's operating divisions, based on the
managemeant and infornal reporting structure, which combine busincssces with common characteristics, primarily in
respect of the fvpe of products offered by cach business, but also the production processes involved and the manner of
the distibution and salc of goods.

inter-division pricing is defermined on an arm’'s length basis. Division result is adjusted oparating profit, as shown on the
face of the consolidated income staterment. Division rasults include iterns directty aitribufable to o division as well as
those that can be allocated on & reasonable basis. ABF is comprised of the following operating divisions:

Grocery

The manufacture of grocery products, including hat beverages, sugar and sweeteners, vegaifable oils, balsamic
vinegars, bread ond baked goods, cereals, ethnic foods, and meat products, which are sold to retail, wholesale and
foocdservice busmnaosses.

Sugar
The growing and processing of sugor beet and sugar cane for salc to industrial users and to Silver Spoon. which is
included in the Grocery operaling division.

Agriculture
The manufocture of animal feeds and the provision of other products and servicos for the agriculture sector.

Ingredients
The manufacture of bakers' yeast, bakery ingredients, enzymes, ipids, yeost exfrocts and cereal specialitios.

Retail
Buying and merchandising valuc clothing and accessoties through the Primark and Penneys retail chains.

In additicn to ABF, the Group prasents the revenue and adjusted operating profit of 'Luxury retail’ and 'Other'. The latter
includes the Group's '‘Real Estate’, 'Hotels' and 'Private Markels & Other Investments' businesses, none of which are
individually material for separate disclosure. For more information see pages 1-2.

Adjusted operating profit

Adjusted operating profit is a key alternative performance measure used in the ABF performance framework as oullined
in the Remuneration Repart in the annual repart and aceaunts of ARF an pages 10 to 115, Adjusted operating profit is
stated before amortisation of non-operating intangibles. fransaction costs, amortisation of fair value adjustments made
to acquired inventory, profits less losses on disposal of non-current assets and excepticnal iterns.

Items defined above which arise in the Group's joint ventures and associates are also treated as adjusting items for the
ourposes of adjusted operating profit.

A reconciliation of this measure is provided on the face of the consalidated income statement.

R IO Adjasted operatng {-:-r-Zj-l-u‘;_r_
2023 022 2023 22
£m £ £m &ir
Grocery 4,178 3,735 448 397
ingredients 2157 1.827 214 15%
Agricutiure 1,840 1.722 4] 47
Sugar 2,547 2016 169 162
Retal 9,008 7.697 735 736
Cenirol ABF - - (94y __ 158
ABF Total 19,750 16.997 1.513 1,435
Luxury retail 245 224 2 7
Other 2y 4
Group Total 20,028 17.258 1,503 1,456
fecenus
2023 2022
£m £m
Geographical information
United Kingdom 7537 6,628
Europe. Middle East & Africa 7,653 6,252
The Amerncas 2421 2,029
Asia Paciic 2517 2.30%
Group Tolal 20,028 17.258
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 14 Seplember 2023

4. Operating costs

ARl

. Lernolidareo Soup

2023 o2 2023 a2

Note £m £ £fm L
Operaling cosls
Casts of sales {including amortisartion of infangibles) 15,587 13.21%9 15,725 13,349
Distribution caosts 1.603 1,485 1,623 1,481
Administration expenses 1,220 LO45 1,350 1.13%
Exceptional iterms 109 206 109 204
' T 18519 15,935 18807 16175
Operaling costs are stated alfer charging/(crediting):
Employee benefits expense 5 3,158 2812 3,222 2,876
Arnorisation of non-operating intfangibles 9 338 44 38 44
Amorisation of cperating infangibles 9 44 24 48 27
Accuired inventory far value adjustments 3 5 3 ]
Depreciation of owned property, plant & equipment 10 531 521 538 530
Depreciation of right-of-use assets and non-cash lease
adjustments 11 273 281! 277 284
Impairment of properly, plant & equipment and right-of-use
cssets - - 5 113}
Impairment of investmenl property 12 - - 14 b
Transacthion costs 5 & 5 4
Effect of hypernflationary economies 14 14 14 14
Other operaling income (35) (25) (34) 131}
Research and development expenditure 42 37 42 37
Fair value gains on financial assets and liabilities held for frading {19 (23] 1% 123)
Fair value losses on financial assets and liabiliies held for 22 17 23 17
trading
Foreign exchange gains on operating activities {48) {36) {48) [37}
Foreign exchange losses on operating aclivities &2 37 42 37

Amortisation of non-gperating intangibles of £41m {2022 - £47m} shown gs an adjusting item in the income statement,
includes £3m (2022 - £3m) incurred by joint ventures. in addition to the amounts shown above.

;Audiior's remuneration A0 R T Conoidalsd HG-IOL;'J
2023 2072 2023 i
£m LT £m im
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor and its asscciates in respect of the
audit
Group audit of these financicd statements - 0.2 0.2
Audit of Company's subsidiaries pursuanf 1o legiskafion 10.2 9.2 104 9.8
Total audit remuneration 10.2 2.2 10,6 10.0
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor and its associates in respect of non-
audit related services
Audit-related assurance services 0.4 C.4 0.4 0.4
Allother services 0.6 0.5 0.6 0.5
Total non-audit relate remuneration 1.0 0.9 1.0 0.9
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

4. Operating costs continued
Exceptional items

2023

The income statement this year included a non-cash exceptional impairment charge of £109m. In the ABF Grocery
division, the Don business hias been adversely affocted by inflafionary pressures, a surplus supply of fresh pork in the
market, labour constraints and equipment reliobility causing production shortfalls and additional transportation costs
fallowing the unforeseen liquidation of its distribution partnor. As a result, the Group has recognised impairmont write-
downs of £39m against property, plant and equipment, £1m against right-of-use assets and £1m against intangiblc
asscis.

In the ABF Sugar division, north China recognised a £15m imparment wrife down against property. plant and
equipment. This business was classified as held for sale in the previous year, but the potential buyer withdrew their offer in
the second half of the year. Due to the severe flooding in Mozombigue, the related damage fo the sugar crop ficlds
and the inabilify fo plant for the foreseeable future, illovo Mozambigque recognised a £25m impairment write-down
againsi property. plant and equipment, £7m against current biofogical assefs, provided £2m for personnel costs and
wrofe down inventory by £1m.

In the ABF Retail division, the Group recognised £13m of exceptional impairment charges relating to the German stare
portfolic. This primarily reigted to stares impaired in the previaus year after addifional righf-of-use assefs wore recognised
due to rent indexation adjustiments. The Group also recognised a £4m charge including a £3m exceptional impairment
for the write-down of property, plant and equiprnent for the right-sizing of four further ABF German stares and £1m o
wiite down o freehold sfore.

2022

The income statement included an exceptional impairment charge of £206rm comprising non-cash writedowns of £72m
against property, plant and equipment and a write-down of £134m of right-of-use assefs refating to the capitalisation of
store leases for Primark, Also £49m of the £63m exceptional charge included in the Group's total fax charge for this
tinancicl year was the de-recognition of the ABF deferred fax assets relating fo Germony.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 14 September 2023

5. Employees and directors

Came T o " Comelidared Groap
2023 7597 2023 7007
£m £n £m £m
Average number of employees
United Kingdom 42,071 41,526 43,407 43,084
Europe & Afica 73411 73,155 73.411 73,155
The Americas 6,769 &, 102 6,749 6,102
Asia Pacific o ML236 1asn 11,294 11,552
S 133,487 132,273 134,881 133.895
ABS Consoldaled Greun
2023 2022 2023 2022
Moo £m £m £m £m
Employee benefits expense
Wages and salares 2,657 2,350 2714 2.406
Social security contfributions 55 an 350 314
Contributions to defined contribution schemes 14 95 87 97 89
Charge for defined benefit schemes 14 33 45 33 46
Equity-setiled share-based payment schermes 26 18 19 18 19
B 3,158 2812 3,202 2876
- 2023 2022
£'000 £000
Directors' remuneration
Aggregate directors’ emoluments 6,374 6,095

The aggregale emoluments of the highest paid direcior were £4.100,000 (2022: £2,286.000C). He is a member of a Group
pension scheme and his annual accrued pension at the period end was £754,991 [2022: £719.918).

Numoer ol crectors

2023 2922
Retrement benefits are accruing to the folowing numiber of directors under:
Defined benefit schemes 4 4
&. Interest and other financial and expense
»BFE T ensolidared Group
2023 2022 2023
Soter £m £m £m i
Finance income
Cash and cash equivalents 48 1% 58 24
Far value gains on investmeants - - 57 18
Dividends receivable -2
S 48 19 114 44
Finance expense T o
Bank loans and overdrafts (23) f20) (23) (20
All other borowings {1 18) (11) 18)
Foir value losses aninvestments - - (2) (4}
Lease liabilities (*1) {81} (92) (82)
Ofher payables e 3 (2} &) 12
] (128) {111 (131 16}
Other financial (expense}/income
Inferest income on employvee beneafit scheme assets 14 185 84 185 34
Interest charge an employee benefit scheme liakilities 14 (123) {74} {123) {74)
Inferest charge on irecoverable surplus 14 {2} {1} (2) {1
Net financial income in respeact of employee benefit schames &0 9 60 9
Net foreign exchange (losses)/gains on financing activities ) ) {20) 4 ~ (34) ) 31
Tolat other financicl incorme 40 13 26 40
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 14 Sepfember 2023

7. Income tax expense

Y Consghooted Croun
2023 7677 2023 2072
£m £ £m i
Current tax expense
UK corporation tax ar 21 8% (2022 - 19%) 26 44 A 55
Chverseaqs - corporation fox 249 244 249 244
UK - {over)/under provided in prior periods (14) {12 (15) {13)
Overseos—unc}er[(ovor) provided in prior periods 18 ] I
S o 279 277 292 287
Deferred tax expense
UK defered Tax 54 18 51 22
Overseaqs defered 1ax 23 72 28 72
UK — aver provided in prior periods (28) {3 {23) {3]
derseos —over provided in prior periods (63} {5} {43) 8]
o . (7) A {7) 83
Total income fax expense inincome statement 72 36 285 370
Reconciliation of effective lax rate
Profit before taxction 1,340 LO7é& 1,384 1.153
Less share of profit ofter lax frorm joint ventures and associates {124) (109} (124) [107)
Profit before taxation excluding share of profit after tax from joint ventures and
associates 1.216 P67 1,260 1,044
Nominal fax charge at UK corporation tax rate of 21.8% (2022 - 19%) 265 184 274 198
Effect of higher and lower tax rates on overseos eomings {16) 4 {16) 4
Effect of changes in tax rafes on the income statement 5 2 5 3
Expenses not deductible for fax purposes &6 &3 -1 &0
Disposal of assets coverad by tax exemptions or unrecognised copitatiosses 2} 6 (2) 6
Deferred fax not recognised 39 120 40 e
Adjustments in respect of prior penods {85) {23} {83) (23]
Other tax adjustments - - o 3
272 356 - 285 370
Income tax recognised directly in equity
Deferred tax associated with defined benefit schemes 4 198 {4) 199
Deferred tax assccioted with share-based payments (1) ! (1) 1
Deferred fax associoted wilh movements in cash flow hedging position {40} 28 (40} 28
Deferred tax associated with movement in fareign exchange 5 - 5 -
Current tax associated with movement in foreign exchange (é) - {8) -
Deferred fax associated wihmovemenls in other investmenis - = 1
S {46) 228 {4é) 229

The UK corporation tax rate of 19% increased fo 25% from 1 Apnl 2023, The legislation to effect these changes was

enacted before the balance sheet date and UK deferred tax has been calculated accordingly.

In April 2019 the European Commission published its decision on the Group Financing Exemption in the UK's contralled
foreign company legislation. The Commission found that the UK law did not comply with EU State Aid rules in certain
circumstances. The Group has arrangements that may be impacted by this decision as might ather UK-based
muliinational groups that had financing arangements in line with the UK's legislation in force at the time. The UK
Government, the Group and g number of other UK companies appealed against this decision 1o the General Court of
the European Union ("GCEU'). On & June 2022, the GCEU found in favour of the Commission's original decision. Asa
result of this, in August 2022, the UK Government, the Group and various other UK companies appealed GCEU's decision
to the Court of Justice of the European Union. We have calculated our maximum potential liability to be £26m (2022 -
£24m}), however we do not consider that any provision is required in respect of this amount based on aur current
assessment of the issue. Following receipt of charging notices from HM Revenue & Custams ("HMRC'], we made
payments to HMRC in 2021, Ouyr assessment remains that no provision is required in respect of this amount. We will
continue to consider the Impact of the Commission’'s decision on the Group and the potential reguirement to record a

provision,

In the second half of last year o defered tax asset arose mainiy in relation to the charge taken for the impairment of
property, plant and equipment and store leases in Primark Germany. A significant proportion of this asset was deemed
not fo be recoverable and was written off as an exceptional tax charge. Since then, further work has been undertaken
to assess the amount of the defered tax asset that is expected to be recoverable. This work determined ihat the

deferred tax asset at last year end was understated in error.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

7. Income tax expense conlinued

The directors believe that this understatemeant of the deferred tax asset was not malerial to the prior perod financial
statemernts. Accordingly, an exceptianal tax credit of £58m has been recognised in this year.

We recognise the importance of complying fully with all applicable tax laws as well as paying and collecting the right
amount of taxin every country in which the Group operates. Gur tax strategy, approved by the Board, is based on
seven tax principles thal are embedded in the financial and non financial processes and controls of the Group. This tax
strategy is available in the Policies section of the Group’s website.

Deferred taxation balances are analysed in note 15,

8. Dividends

2023 202z
pence per DerUe Der 2023 2022
share shicire £m L
First interim 78.50 71.25 48 62
Second inferim B B 69.50 49.00 &40 42
) 148,00 120.25 128 104

9. Intangible assets

Conszdated ;Cg

NEn ORCTaTng 'ﬁ)’pe'n'"';;-
Cusramar (arower
Goodw Tachno oay Broarms relationships agreerieeds Oreer Othgar latal
£ Fall £ £ L LM i rr

Cost
Al 18 Septemiber 2021 1,234 214 429 271 109 5 606 2870
Acquisitions — externaly curchased - - - - 141 141
Acquired through business combinations 85 49 33 é - - - 173
Other disposals - - - - - 149) [49)
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale - - - - - 18] 114
Effect of hyperinflationary economies G — - - _ 9
Effect of movernents in foreign exchange 84 22 264 13 1 - a3 17%
a117 September 2022 ' Corad T T8s 488 Cwo o 5 715 2307
Acquisitions — externally purchased - 4 - - - 144 150
Acqured through business combinations 39 2 g 21 - - 3 74
Cther disposals - - (15} - {5) 149} 189)
Transfer from assets classified as held for sale - - - - - 15 15
Effect of hyperinflationary economies 2 - - - - i
Elfect of movements in foreign exchange 79} (15) (15} oy {16) - {23} {161)
At 14 Seplember 2023 T 1,378 272 486 285 94 - 785 3298
Amortisation and impairment
Al 18 Seplember 2021 112 195 372 200 109 5 284 1,279
Amarlisction for the year 7 22 15 - - 27 71
Other disposals - - - - (2} 12}
Transfer 1o assels classified as held for sale - - - (4) 14}
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 10 19 21 11 1 -z 84
Ai17 Seplember200z T T 122 Tt 4 226 o 5 329 1428
Amortisation for the year - 9 15 14 - 43 84
Other disposals - - {15} - (5] {20)
Transfer from assets classified as held {or sale - - - - - 4 4
Imocirment _ - - . - 1 1
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 112 [13) 1) (3 [16) - {21] {81)
At 16 Seplember 2023 T 110 217 My 217 94 - 381 1418
Net bodicvulue Y T e
A7 Seplernber 2022 O iowm 64 73 4 - 38 1879
At 16 September2023 1,288 T 58 &7 8 =z Z 424 1,880

I All Goodwilland Non aneraling Infangible assets oo AJF asses, OF ‘he otal Opgrating Intangitle asises of 424 [2322: £386m) £414 12022:
£375m) are ABF asscts,

In addition to the amounts disclosed above, thera are no intangible assets (2022 - £12m) classiied as assets held for sale
[see note 17}, Amorlisaiion of non-operating intangibles of £41m (2022 - £47m) shown as an adjusting item in the income
statement includes £3m [2022 - £3m) incurred by joint ventures. in addition to the amounts shown above.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 14 Seplember 2023

9. Intangible assets continuved

Impdirment

As at 16 Septemnber 2023, the consolidaled balance sheet included goodwill of £1,2466m (2022 - £1,292m}. Goodwillis
dllocated to the Group's cash-generating units (CGUs). or groups of CGUs, that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the business combination that gave rise to the goodwill, as follows:

Primary rezariing

segmen wilhin A3F 1 ounil 2023 2022
CoUorGrovp o’ TGS nLsness segmond che £m m
Acetum Grocery 13.5% ?1 93
ACH Grocery 13.4% 193 208
AB Mauri Ingrecients 12.8% 267 289
Twinings Ovaltine Grocery 13.6% 119 119
llovo Sugar 237% 8y 106
AB World Foods Grocery 12.5% 78 7%
Other [nol individudlly significant) Varous various 429 3 399
T 1266 1,997

A CGU, or group of CGUs, to which goodwill has been allocated must be assessed forimpairment annually, or more
frequently if events or circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverabte. There has been no
change in CGUs or group of CGUs from the prior year,

The carrying value of goodwill is assessed by reference 1o its value in use reflacting the projected cash flows of each of
the CGUs or group of CGUs. These projections are based on the most recent budget and reflects management's
expectations of sales growth, operating costs and margin, based on past experience and external sources of
information. Long-term growth rates for periods not covered by the annual budget reflect the producis, industries and
countries in which the relevant CGU, or group of CGUs, aperate.

Management expects to achieve growth over the next three to five yaars in excess of the long-term growth rates for the
applicable country orregion. In these circumstances. budgeted cash flows are extended, generally to betwesn three
and five years. using specific growth assumptions and taking into account the specific business risks.

The key assumptions in the most recent annual budget on which the cash flow projections are based relate 1o discount
rates, growth rates and expected changes in volumes, selling prices and direct costs.

The cash flow projections have been discounted using a pre-tax weighted average cost of capital for each business,
adjusted for country, industry and market risk. Inflation assumptions used to calculate discount rates are aligned with
those used in the cash flow projections. The rates used were between 10.2% and 23.7% (2022 - between 9.8% and
23.4%).

The long-term growth rates beyond the initial budgeted cash flows, applied in the value in use calculations for goodwill

allocated to each of the CGUs or groups of CGUs that are significant to the total camying amount of goodwill, were in a
range between 0% and 6.0%. consistent with the inflation factors included in the discount rates applied (2022- between
0% and &.7%).

Changes in volumes, selling prices and direct costs are based on past results and expectations of future changes in the
market.

Sensitivity to changes in key assumptions

Impairment testing is dependent on management's estimates and judgements, particularly as they relate to the
forecasting of future cash flows, the discount rates selected and expectad long-term growth rates. Each of the Group's
CGUs had headroom under the annual impairment review.

In light of the supply side inflationary pressures combined with the cost of living pressures faced by our UK Grocery
business, management performed ¢ detailed impairment review of Jordans Dorset Ryvita, and concluded that no
impairment was required. Key drivers of the forecast improvement in performance include annualisation of price
increases, completion of a number of margin improvernent initiatives, implementation of planned strategic initiatives
and the complehon of ongoing new product development. Headroom was £59m on a CGU camying value of £137m
(2022 ~ headroom of £26m on a CGU carmrying value at £147mj. The discount rate used was 12.2% and would have to
increase to more than 15.7% before value in use fell below the CGU canying value. The long-term growth rate applied
into perpetuity was 2.8%. based on forecast industry growth of 2,.5% for breakfast cereals and 3.3% for biscuits.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 14 September 2023

10. Property, plant and equipment

Corsolda'ed Gloup

Lered and Plan® aridl Fetures ond A3 fer SGIr Canie
Bavdnigs MAck Nizry httings consleachoe el Toter
£ L Lm £ir £m £r
Cost
Al 18 September 2021 2,828 4018 4,080 441 92 11,459
Acquistions —externally purchased 40 78 204 421 1 754
Acquired through business combinations ] 4 ] - _ 4
Other disposals {14} {3) [(20) - (4} (41}
Transfers from assets under construction 33 164 94 (293} - -
Transter to assels classfied as held for sule {32) [53) (2) - - 87}
Effect of moverments in foreign exchange 78 223 119 7 e 483
A7 Seplember 2022 2954 4431 2,478 06 03 12574
Acquisitions ~ extermally purchased 21 84 434 454 16 1,011
Acquired through business combinations 4 - - - 4
Businesses dispossed of {52 AR 4 - - {47}
Other disposals (46) 157} %) - m (113}
Transters from assefs under construction 35 1?1 89 (315) - -
Transfer from assets classified as held for sale 37 75 2 - - 114
Fffect of movements in hyperinflation - 78 19 - - 97
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 99) (257} (84) {34) {19} [493)
Al 16 September 2023 2,850 4,540 4,925 711 101 13,127
Depreciation and impairment
Al 18 September 2021 792 2.834 2,378 - 51 6053
Depreciation for the year 48 176 296 - 10 530
Impairment (&) - 72 - 66
Impairment on sale and closure of business 11 19 - - 30
Other disposals {1} - (19} - 14) {24]
Iranster to assets classified as held for sale {1 [&0) {2 - 7%
Effect of movernenis in foreign exchange 35 160 73 - 3 271
At 17 Septermber 2022 862 3.129 2796 - &0 6.847
Depreciction for the year 52 184 293 - g 538
Impairment 27 56 3 - 2 5]
Businesses dispossed of (1 8) {3) - - {12}
Other disposals (34) [47) 9 - {1} 91}
Transfer from assets classified as held for sale 20 75 2 - - 97
Effect of movements in hyperinfiaiion - 64 17 - - 81
Effect of movements in foreign exchange (37) [158) 1503 - (10} {255)
At 14 September 2023 889 3,295 3,049 - 60 7293
Net book value
Al 17 September 2022 2092 1,302 1,682 606 45 5727
At 16 Sepiember 2023 1,961 1,245 1.876 711 a1 5,834
T 2023 7127
£m im
Capilal expenditure commitments — contracted but not provided for 493 364

In addition to the amounts disclosed above, no property, plant and equipment (2022 - £18m of which £18m is freehoid
land and buildings) is classified as assets held for sale {(see ncle 17},
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

10. Property, plant and equipment continued

Toror

£m

Cast
Al 18 Sepfermber 2021 2,707 4,008 4,019 440 Q2 11,266
Acciuisitions — extermnaty purchased 32 75 203 421 i 743
Acquired through business combinahons i 4 ! - &
Other cisposals {14} {17} - 14) {38)
Transfers from assels under construction 33 24 {293] - -
Transfer 1o assels classified as hold for sale (32} 2} - - {87)
Elfect of movements in foreign exchange 08 e 37 <} 483
Al 17 September 202 2825 4419 605 105 2373
Acquisitions — externaty purchased 20 43} 452 16 1,005
Acquired through business combinations - - - - 4
Other disposals (34) 3 - f1) {95}
Transfers from assets under construction 335 &7 {313} - -
Transfer from assets classified as held for sale 37 2 - - li4
Effect of movements in hyperinfiakon - 19 - - o7
Effect of movements in foreign exchange {99) {257) {84) {34] {19) [493}
Af 16 Seplember 2023 2,784 4,539 4871 710 101 13,005
Depreciation and impairment
Al 18 Sepfembor 2021 759 2,827 2,343 - 51 5,980
Depreciotion for the vear 47 174 290 - 10 521
Imparment - - 72 - - 72
Impairment on sole and closure of business 1 19 - - 30
Other disposals {1} - f17) f4) {22)
Transfer (to}ffrom assels classified as held for sale {17 {60} 2) - - 7%

ffect of movernents in forgign exchange o 35 160 4 - 3 272
AT 17 September 2022 ’ ‘834 3120 2760 - 0 6,774
Depreciation for the year 52 183 287 - 9 531
Impairment 22 56 3 - 2 83
Other disposals {22) 46) {3 - 1) {72}
Transfer from assets classified as held for sale 20 73 2 - - 97
Effect of movements in hyperinflation - 64 17 - - 81
Effect of movements in foreign exchange {37) {158) 150) - {10) {255}
Al 16 Sepfember 2023 _ 869 3294 3016 - 60 7239
Netbook value T
Al 17 September 2022 1,991 1.299 1,659 603 45 5,599
At 16 Sepfember 2023 1L.915 1,245 1,855 710 41 5746
Impairment

The methodology used fo assess property, plant and equipment for impairment is the same as that described for

impairmant assessments of goodwill. See note 9 far further details. In addition where the fair value less costs of disposal is

higher than value in use, this methodology has been used to delermine the recoverable amount. This method uses
inputs that are unobservable, using the kestinformation available in the circumstances for valuing the CGU, and

therefore falls into the Level 3 category of fair value measuremeant.

In Grocery. the Australion Don business has been adversely affected by inflationary pressures, a surplus supply of fresh
pork in the market, labour constraints and equipment reliakility causing production shortfalls and additional
transportation costs following the unfareseen liquidation of its distibulion partner. Management therefore performed a
detailed impairment review and concluded that an impairment of A$72m (£39m) should be recognised, A&2m (£34m)
agains! plant and equipment and A$10m [£5m} against buildings. The impairment model assumed long-term growih

rates beyond the forecast period of 2.0% (2022 - 2.0%) and a discount rate of 12.6% (2022 - 11.9%).

The sugar business in north China recognised a £15m write down against property, plant and squipment. This business
was classified as held for sale in the previous year, bul the polential buyer withdrew their offer in the second half of the

year,

Due tosevers flooding in Mozambique, the related damage to the sugar crop fields and the inability to plant for the
foreseeable future, llovo Mozambique recognised g £25m write: down against property. plant and equipment. Primark
recognised a £3m write down against fixtures and fittings for the right-sizing of four German stores and £1m to write down

a freehold store.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 waeks ended 16 September 2023

11. Leases
tost of the Group's right-of-use assets are associated with ABF's leased property porffolio in its Retail segment.

Right-of-use assets

Censolidated Group

Lond cnd Pla~ and Fictures and Tatal
buldings machirery inggs £
imn £m £

Cost
Al 18 September 2021 3,294 63 7 3.359
Additions 161 10 - 171
Lease incentives {44) - 144}
Acguired through business combinafions 3 - - 8
Other dispposails A M 1] {3
Other movements 12 2 - 14
Effect of movements in foreign exchange: o - 108 2 : 110
A7 September 2022 S 3,535 76 1 3613
Additions 193 17 - 2i0
Lecse incenlives 153} - - 153}
Acquired through business combinations 1 1
Other disposals 12 4] - 18)
Other moverments 80 5 - 85
Effect of movements in foreign exchange {72) [6) - {78)
Al 14 September 2023 3,683 as 1 3,772
Depreciation and impairment
Al 18 September 2021 652 32 ] 485
Depreciation for the year 268 18 - 284
Impairment 134 - - 134
Other disposals {1} 1y m 13}
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 33 B RO .
A7 September 2022 1.084 50 1.136
Depreciation for the year 261 16 - 277
mparmeant 13 1 - 14
Other disposals (1) 14) - {5)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange {23 {4) - [27)
At 14 September 2023 1,336 59 - 1,395
Net book value T
At 17 Septembzer 2022 2,450 26 I 2,477
At 14 September 2023 2,347 29 1 2,377
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 wesks ended 16 September 2023

11. Leases continued

Right-of-use assefs continued

Teabeal

Lanad ol
L, £m
LT

Cost
Al 18 September 2021 3247 43 2 3,326
Addihans 167 0 - 171
Logse incentives {46) - f44)
Acqguired through busingss combinations 8 - - 4
Other clisposals i) i) {1) {3)
Oher movements 12 2 14
Effect of mavements in foreign exchange 07 2 - 109
At 17 Sepiember 2022 ’ 3502 76 ] 3,579
Adlditions 183 17 200
Lease incenfivas {534 - {53}
Acguired through business combingtions ! - - !
Cther clisposals {2) i4) - f5)
Other movernents 80 5 - 85
Effect of movements in foreign exchange _{.?g) ) e - {78}
Al 16 Seplember 2023 S 3,639 88 1 3728
Depreciation ond impairment
At 18 Seplember 2021 644 32 i 677
Depreciation for the year 243 18 - 281
Impacirment 134 - 134
COithor disposals i 1) r} {3)
Effect of movemens in forcign exchange 33 ] 34
Al 17 Septermber 2022 1.073 50 1,123
Depreciation for the year 257 16 - 273
Impairment 13 1 - 14
Ofher cisposals (1) {4) - {5)
Effec! of movements in foreign exchange {23} {4) - {27)
Af 16 Seplember 2023 1319 59 - 1,378
Net book value
Al 17 Septernber 2022 2,429 26 i 2456
At 16 September 2023 i 2,320 29 1 2,350

Impairment

The methodology used to assess right-of-use assets for impairrment is the same as that described for impairment
assessments of goodwill. See note 9 for further details.

In the year there was a £14m (2022 - £134m) impairment of right-of-use assels related to Primark and the Don business

{included wilhin exceptional items).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weaeks ended 16 September 2023

11. Leases contlinved

Lease liability

. Comoldated Goun

Fla~1 and Fiatiozs qnd TTalal
rcchingry frings Lm
£ra £
Cost
At 18 Septernber 2021 3,289 34 3.323
Additions 161 ? - 170
Inferest expense relating to lease liabilities 81 1 82
Repayment of lease labilities 13%0) 118 - 1408}
Acquisition of businesses 8 - 8
Other movements 14 2 16
Effec! of movements in foreign exchange 97 I 98
At 17 September 2022 3,260 29 3.289
Adiditions 191 18 - 209
Interest expense relating fo lease liabilities 90 2 - 92
Repayment of lease liabilities {378} 8) - [396)
Clher movements 80 5 35
Chher disposals {5) - - {51
Effect of movements in foreign exchange (60) (3} - [63)
Af 16 September 2023 3,178 33 - 321
- T - Corsolidated Gro.n;nwww N
2023 2022
£m £
Current 359 334
Non-curent o 2,852 2.955
- —— - . 3'2] l 3““2’"'89
Lease liabilities comprise £3,190m (2022 - £3.275m) capital payable and £21m (2022 - £14m} interest payabla. The
interest payable is alf curent and disclosed within trade and other payables. Repayments comprise £312m (2022 -
£325m) capital and £84m ({2022 - £83m) interest.
Lond and Bl
Eronietinngy rags Torai
fin im £
Cost
Af 18 Soptember 2021 3.262 34 3296
Additions 161 @ 170
Intcrest cxpense relofing to lease liabilities 80 I gl
Repayment of leasc fabilifies {385} {18) {403)
Acquisition of busincsses 8 - 8
Other movements 4 2 16
Effoct of movements in foreign exchange 97 I - 98
At 17 Seplfember 2022 3237 29 3266
Adlclitions 180 18 - 198
Inferest expense relgting to lease liabilities 89 2 2l
Repayment of lease fabiffics {373} {18) - 3g1
Other movermneants 80 N - 85
Other clisposals {5) - - {3)
Effect of moverneniis in foreign exchonge {60} {3) {63}
AF 16 September 2023 3,148 33 - 3,181
- T " aBF o
2023 2097
£m im
Cument 356 330
MNon-curent 2825 2936
oo T B ] 3,181 3266
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
tor the 52 weeks ended 16 Septemider 2023

11. Leases continved
Other information relating to leases
The Group had the following expense relating to short-term leases and low-value leases:

ARF o oty Groop
2023 2022 2023 2522
£m £m £m im
Land and builckngs 2 - 2 -
Plant and machinery 1 2 1 2
Frdures and fitings e - ! - !
3 3 3 3

The Group expensed £1m (2022 - £1m) of varable lease payments that do not form part of the lease liakility. Cash
outflows of £2m (2022 - £4m}) that do not form part of the lease liability are expecied to be made in the next 12 maonihs.

Rental receipts of £3m (2022 - £4m) were recognised relating to operating leases. The total of tuture minimum rental
receipts expected 1o be received is £43m (2022 - £36m). £10m (2022 - £11m} is due to be received inrespect of sub-
leasing right-of-use assets.

12. Investment property

T Comsolidered

Sroup
£
At 18 Seplemper2021 L
Addifions T . T o1
Disposcils (25}
iment lasses . )
AT 17 Sepiember 2022 o - 246
Adlctitions o 45
Disposals (3)
Impaiment losses N (14}
AP16 Seplember 2023 S 274

Impgirment losses were recorded in both 2022 and 2023 to reflect where the fair value of investment properties was
below cost as determined by an independent valuer. The impairments reflect prevailing market conditions.

13. investments in joint ventures and associates

ABF L Cormahdaled Croue

Jonnd wend res .onl senlures acsociotes

£ im Ln

Al 18 Seplember 2021 278 278 &7
ACqUisSItons 4 - 4 -
Profit for the penod 90 19 20 19
Dividends received (88} (5) (88) (8)
Effect of mavermnents in foreigh exchange 17 N v o 11
Al'17 Seplember 2022 o o a1 85 303 87
Acquisifions g - 9
Profii for 1he period 106 8 106 18
Dividends received (102} (5) (102) 7)
Effect of movements in foreigh exchange {11} {7} (1) i {7]
At 16 Seplember 2023 oo T 303 91 305 93

Details of joint ventures and associates are listed in note 32.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 146 Seplember 2023

13. Investments in joint ventures and associates continued
Included in the consolidated financial statements are the following items that represent the Group's share of the assets,
licxbilities and profit of joint ventures and associates:

ABF __[;Qf%s;]![r“i;l‘?—t-:gj Graup .

. N . _dointventaras Asncates .

2023 2022 2022 2023 vl 2023 2022

£m £m im £m &ir £m £

Mon-curent assets 222 202 464 222 202 47 48
Cunent assets 541 oAl 500 427 555 643 505 432
Curent liabilifies (414) {473} (454) (386 (428) (475) (456} [289)
Nor-curent liabilities 67) {371 3 {3) (67) (87 {4) {3
Goodwil 25 20 1 i 25 20 1 1
Non-controling interest (4) - - - 4 - - -
Nel cssets T 303 301 91 85 305 303 93 87
Reverue 2,539 2,165 1.605 1.313 2,540 2,165 1,614 1,343
Profit for the period 106 90 18 19 106 20 i8 1%

14. Employee enfitlements

The Group operates a number of defined benefit and defined confribution retirement benefil schemes in the UK and
overseaqs.

The defined benefit schemes expose the Group to a variety of actuarial risks including demographic assumptions such
as mortality and financial assumptions such as discount rate, inflation sk and market (investment] risk. The Group is rot
exposed to any unusual, entity-specific or scheme-specific risks. All schemes comply with local legislative requirements.

UK defined benefit scheme

The Group's principal UK defined benefit scheme is the Associated British Foods Pension Scheme (the 'Scheme'), which is
a funded final salary scheme that is closed to new rmembers. Defined contnbution arangements are in piace for other
employees. The UK defined benefit scheme represents 0% (2022 - 90%) of the Group's defined benefit scheme assets
and 8b% (2072 - 86%) of defined benefit scheme liabililies. The Scheme is governed by a trustee board which is
independent of the Group and which agrees a schedule of contributions with the Company each fime o formal funding
valuation is performed.

The most recent tiennial funding valuation of the Scheme was carried out as at 5 April 2023, using the curreni unit
method, and revealed a surplus of £1,013m. The market value of the Scheme assets was £3,648m, representing 138% of
members' accrued benefits after alliowing for expected tuture salary increases.

The Scheme's assets are managed using a risk-controlled investment strategy. which includes a liability-driven
investment policy that seeks 1o match, where appropriate, the profile of the liabilities. This includes the use of derivative
instruments to hedge inflation, interest and foreign exchange risks. The Scheme utilises both market and solvency triggers
to develap the level of hedges in place. To date, the Scheme is fully hedged for 75% of inflation sensitivity and 76% of
interast rate risk. it is intended to hedge 80% of total exposure.

The Scheme is forbidden by the trust deed from holding direct investments in the equily of ABF. although it is possible
that the Scheme may hold indirect interests through investments in some equity funds.

Overseas defined benefit schemes

The Group also operates defined benefit retiremeant schemes in o number of overseas businesses, which are primarily
funded final salary schemes, as well as o small number of unfunded post-retirement medical benefit schemes, which are
accounted forin the same way as defined benetit retirement schemes.

Defined contibution schemes
The Group operates a number of defined contnbution schemes for which the charge was £49m in the UK and £48m
overseds, totaling £97m {2022 - UK £44m, overseas £45m. totaling £89m).

Actuarial assumptions
The principal actuarial assumptions for the Group's defined benefit schemes at the year end were:

2023 2023 2022

1.4 Overseas IS

% 2, %

Discount rate 55 1-15.8 4.4
inflation 27-34 0-17.4 2.6-3.4
Rate of increase in salaries 3.7-4.3 0-150.0 3743
Rate of increase for pensions In payrment 1.9-3.1 0-4%.0 1.9-3.2
Rate of increase for pensions in deferment (where provided) 25.2.8 0-3.9 2528

Discount rates are determined by reference 1o market yields at the balance sheet date on high-quality corporate bonds
consistent wilh the estimated term of the obligations. This has been done in conjunction with independent actuaries in

eqch junsdichon,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 14 September 2023

14, Employee entitlements continued

The UK inflation assumption includes assumphons on both the Retall Price Index and Consumer Price Index measuras of
inflation on the basis that the gap befween the two measures is expected to remain stable in the long term.

The mortality assumptions used to value the UK defined benefit schemes in 2023 are derived from the $3 mortalily tables
with improvements in fing with the 2022 projection moedel prepared by the Continuous Mortality Investigation of the UK
actuarial profession {2022 - S3 mortality tables with improvements in ine with the 2020 projection model}, with a O-year
rating movement for males and females (2022 - O-year rating movement for males and females), both with along-term
frend of 1.75% (2022 - 1.5%). These mortality assumplions fake account of experience to date, and assumptions for
further improvements in lite expectancy of scheme members. Examples of the resulting life expectancies in the UK
defined benefit schemes are as follows:

L Taog T wm o T
Ule gxpeclansy rom age 85 [inyeas| Male Femala wols Ferrale
Member aged 65 in 2023 {2022 218 242 221 243
Member aged 65 in 2043 {2042) 23.7 26,2 237 261

A allowance has been made for cash commutation in line with emerging scheme experiencea. Other demaographic
assumptions for the UK defined benefit schemes are set having regard to the [atest trends in scheme experience and
other relevant data.

The assumptions are reviewed and updated as necessary as part of the periodic funding valuation of the schemes.

For the overseas schemaes, regionally appropriate assumptions for mortality, financial and demographic factors have
been used.

A sensitivity analysis on the principal assumptions used to measure UK defined benefit scheme liabilities at 16 September
2023 is:

Ch(1[1ge’.—“i’ﬁi”:€$"’r:pmo" I~ :}oc‘.i on 'scﬁér".;_m
Discounl rate decrecse/increqse by 0.1% Increase/decrease by 1.2%
Inflation increase/decrecse by 0.1% increase by 0.6%/decrecse by 0.9%
Rate of realincrease in salaries increcse/decrease by (11% increase/decraase by 0.9%
Rate of mortality members assumed to be one increase/decrecse by 2.9%

year younger/older

A sensitivity to the rate of increase in pensions in payment and pensions in defermeant is represented by the inflation
sensitivity, as all pensions increases and deferred revaluations are linked to inflation.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on reasonably possible changes in the respective assumptions
sccurring af the end of the period and may not be representative of the actual change. It is based on a change in the
specific assumption while halding all other assumptions constant. When calculating the sensitivities, the same method
used ta calculate scheme llabilities recognised in the balance sheet has been applied. The method and assumptions
used in preparing the sensitivity analysis have not changed since the prior year.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

14. Employee enfitements continued

Balance sheet

Consolidaled Groun

2623 - o
UK Overseas Totai L= Crveewsear Tatal
£m £m £m L £ £m

Equities 1.020 172 1,192 1.135 188 1,323

Government bonas 455 a9 544 308 92 400

Corporale and other bonds 519 55 674 767 A7 814

Properiy 314 34 350 398 37 435

Cash and other assets L L1457 1,202 Mgz 583 L179

Scheme assets - 3,553 409 3,962 3734 47 415)

Scheme labilties (2,182) (373)  (2555) (2357 [405)  (2802)

Aggregate nef surplus 1,371 36 1,407 1.337 17 1,349

Irecoverable surplus* - (38) (36) - ~[49) (42)

Net pensicn asset/ (icibilly) - 1,371 - 1371 13w (30) 1.307

Analysed gs

Schemss in surglus 1,397 49 1,446 1,364 27 1,393

Schemes in deficit (28) (49) @8y 2 157) (86)

o T L - 13N 1237 a0 1.307

Unfunded liability ncluded in the present vatue of scheme

liatilifies ohave [26) (32) (58) {29) i52) (81

T The sumpluses in the plans are only recoveratile o the oxtent tha the Group can benefit fram either -elunds formally agrecd or from furure

contibution reduchions.

UK Scheme

Scheme assets include £64m (2022 - £50m) of derivalive instruments, £409m {2022 - £441m) of carporate debt
instruments and £1,119m (2022 - £861m) of governmenit delot.

Corporale and other bonds assets of £619m [2022 - £747m) include £235m (2022 - £248m)] of assets whose valualtion is
not derived from quoted market prices. The valuation for all other equity assets. government bonds, and corporate and
ofher bonds is derved from quofed market prices. The carrying value of UK property assets is based cn o 30 June market
valuation, adjusted for purchases, disposals and price indexation between the valuation and the balance sheet date.
Cash and other assets includes £888m {2022 - £820m) of assets whose valuation is not derived from quoted market

pICes.

For financial reporting in the Group's financial statements, liabiliiies are assessed by actuaries using the projected unit

method.

The accounting value is different from the result obtained using the funding basis, mainly due to different assumptions

used 1o project scheme liabilities.

The defined benefit scheme liabilities comprise 18% (2022 - 24%) in respect of active participants, 21% {2022 - 20%) for

deferad participants and 61% (2022 - 56%) for pensioners.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit scheme liabilities ot the end of the year is 12 years for both UK
and overseas schermes (2022 — 15 years for both UK and overseas schemes).

The Group recognises the accounting surplus as it has the ability to use the surplus fo meet employer contributlions to the
UK Scheme, covering both the defined benefit and defined conhibution sections. This has been agreed with the
independent Trustee Board for the new financial year. See the Cash flow section below for further details.

Income statement

The charge to the income statement for employee benefit schemes comprises:

(:oﬂschdé‘éd Gioup

2023 oz
Em £
Charged o operating profit:
Definred benefit schemes
Curenl service cosl (31) [44)
Past service cost (2) -
Defined conlibution schemes N 97) (89)
Total operating cost ‘ T N (130) (133
Reported in other fnancial (expense)income:
Net interest income on the net pension asset 42 10
Interest charge onirecoverable surplus o 2) (1
Nel impact on profit before fox ) 12¢)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 146 September 2023

14. Employee entittements continved

Cash flow

Group cash flow inrespect of employee benefits schemes comprises contfributions paid to funded schemes of £36m
{2022 - £36m) and benefits paid in respect of unfunded schemes of £5m (2022 - £2m). Confributions te funded defined
benefit schemes are subject fo perodic review. Contributions to defined contribution schemes amounted o £27m (2022
— £89m).

Total contributions to funded schemes and benefit payments by the Group in respect of unfunded schemes in 2024 are
currently expected o be approximately £3m in the UK and £10m oversegs, totalling £13m (2022 - UK £29m, overseas
£10m, totalling £39m).

As part of the hiennial funding valuation of the UK Scheme as ot 5 April 2023, which was finalised with the independent
trustee board in September 2023, the Company has agreed an acbatement of ail UK employer contributions to the UK
Scheme, covering both the defined benefit and defined contnbution sections from the start of the new financial year.
The employer contributions will instead be met from the surplus in The UK Scheme. This is subject to a solvency check,
assessed annually by the Scheme Actuary. This s expected to result in approximately £70m cash flow benefit for the
Group in the new financial year.

Other comprehensive income
Remeasurements of the net pension asset recognised in other comprehensive income are as follows:

C‘c";ohd-c}red Group

2073 2022
£m im

Return on scheme assefs excluding amaounts included in net inferest in the income statement (238) 1582)
Actucricl gains ansing from changes in financial assumptions 24685 1,444
Actucrial gains arsing from changes in demographic assumptions 18 11
Experience losses on scheme liabilities (57) 138)
Change in unrecognised surplus ) ] 10
Remeasurements of the net pension (iabiity)/asse! o (&) 825

Reconciliation of change in assets and liabilities

Consonaagt

2023 7027 2023 3

assets insels ftabliities liaks e net aet

£m im £m £ £m imr

At beginning of year 4,151 4,728 (2,802) 14,219 1,349 509
Curent service cost - - (31 (48] (31} 146}
Ernployee confributions 7 8 7 {8) - -
Ernployer contibutions 36 34 - - 35 36
Benefit payments (141) (154) 164 156 5 2
Past service cost - - (2) - (2) -
Interest income/|expanse) 185 84 {123) (74] 62 10
Loss on scheme assets less interest Income (238) (582) - - (238) {58%)
Actuandl gains ansing from changes in financicl assumpiions - - 265 1,444 2465 1,444

Actuanct gains ansing from changes in demographic
assumptions - - 8 il 18 11

Experence losses on scheme liabilities - - {57) {38) (57) {38}
Effect of movements in foreign exchange sy 3 18 (28] - 3
At end of year 3,942 4,151 (2,555) (2,802} 1,407 1,349

Reconciliation of change in irrecoverable surplus

Comoldted Groun

2023 232

£m £m

Al beginning of year (42) [26)
Change recognised in other comprehensive incomes ] 1oy
Interest charge on imecoverable surplus {2} i)
Fffect of movements in loreign exchange ) o S 2 15)
At end of year {348) (42}
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

15. Deferred tax assefs and liabilities

T Ccorsoligated Gioun

Froamons  ~ux v
Properly, g ather Corry-
3% sl I gl Emo'oy e SEMIROIY
FOU e asses Lecres berehls chiflerencs ot
im £mi £m £m m Fl

Al 18 September 2021 140 90 1101} 125 (81} 136} 155
Amounl credited to the income statement 34 15 27 1 - 13 8 78
Amount credited to equity - - - 155 28 2 - 185
Acquired through business combinalions 22 .- - - 2 24
Effect of changes in fax rates on the income 2 - - - - - 2
stelerment
Effect of changes in iax rates on equity - - 44 - - 44
Effect of hyperinflationary economies taken
to operating profit 3 - - - - - 3
Transfer to assels/liabilities held for sale 5 - - - - - 5
Effect of moverments in foreign exchange 4 10 {4 - - (4] - 3
At 17 September 2022 190 17 {78) 325 46 (58] 28} 504
Amount credited to the income statement 7% {3} 30 10 18] (8) (31} 12)
Arnount credited to equity - - - {5 {40} 5 1404
Acquired through business combinalions - 7 - 1 - (1) 1} 6
Effect of changes in tax rates on the income 3 - - 2 - - - 5
statement
Effect of hyperinflafionary economies taken 4 - - - - - - 4
to operating profit
Transfer from assets/licbilities held for sale (5) - - - - - 15)
Effect of mavements in foreign exchonge (19} (3) 3 - - 2 2 115)
Al 14 September 2023 ) 249 118 {105) 333 - (70} (78} 447

Provisions and other temporary differences include provisions of £{103)m (2022 - £{93)m). biclogical assets of £33m (2022

- £32m}, tax credits of £(9)m (2022 - £{18)m] and other temporary differences of £9m (2022 - £9m).

T

[ileteist

gsseTs ond?

felinl o Empicyoe temponmy,
equpmenrt Leeisns bonalls haloutes ailferences (R Taren
£ £ri im Zm im I I
Al 18 Septoember 2021 137 o0 {101} 125 12 184} {34) 145
Amount credifed o the income stafement 34 {5) 27 ] - 13 8 78
Arncunt crodifed to equity - - 154 28 2 - 184
Acquired through business combinations - 22 - - - 2 24
Fflect of changes in fax rates on the income
staterment 2 - - - - - 2
Effect of changes in tax rates on equify - - 44 - 44
Effect of hypennfiofionary economies faken
io operating profit 3 - - - - - 3
Transfer fo assefsiabiities hold for sale 5 - - - 3
Eifect of movemenis in foreign exchange ¢] 10 ) 4 - - 18} -4
AL 17 September 2022 h 187 117 {78} 324 40 (75 (26} 439
Amouni credited to fhe income statement! 73 3) (30 12 - {11) (53) (12)
Amouni credited o cquity - - - (5) {40) 5 - (40)
Acquired through business comibinations - 7 - ! - (1 {1) [}
Effect of changes in tax rates on the income
stalerment 3 - - 2 - - _ 5
Effect of hyporinfiationary econormies taken
fo oporating profit 4 - - - - - - 4
Transfer from assetsfiabilifies held for sale {5) - - - - - - (5)
Effect of movemenisin foreign exchonge  {19) {3) 3 - - 3 2 (14)
Al 16 September 2023 243 118 {105) 334 - {79 (78~ 433
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

15. Deferred tax assets and liabilities continued
Certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset in the table above. The following is the analysis of the
deferred tax balances {after offset) for financial reporting purposes:

___:_W Agk : _ _._Consoldated Groun 7”
23 2027 2023 022
£m L £m i
Defered 1ax assets 193 158 195 140
Defered tox liabilfies o {626) {647) (4642) [664]
(433) 148%) (447} 1504)

In addition to the amounts disclosed above, there are no deferred tax assets (2022 — £5m) classified as assets held for
sale (see note 17).

Defered tax assets have nol been recognised in respect of tax losses of £360m {2022 - £348m). Of these tax losses,
£186m (2022 - £188m} will expirg at various dates between 2023 and 2028 (2022 - 2023 and 2027). Deferred tax assets
have also not been recognised in respect of other temporary differences of £348m (2022 - £520m), This includes £160m
(2022 — £378m) relating to property, plant and equipment and leases in Germany which were deracognised following
the impairmeant in 2022 {sce nates 10 and 11 for further details). Thase deferred tax assets have not been recognised on
the basis thal their future economic benefit is uncertain.

In addition, the Group's overseas subsidiaries have net unremitted earnings of £2,527m (2022 - £2.029m). resuliing in
temporary differences of £1.424m (2022 - £1.495m). No deferred tax has been provided in respect of these differences
since the fiming of the reversals can be controfled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable fufure.

146. Trade and other receivables

ABF i Consohdated Gloup
2073 7527 2023 1037
£m Zm £m L
Non-current — other receivables
Loans and receivables 31 29 3N 29
Investments designated FYOCI 32 29 32 29
B o 3 58 43 )
Current — rade and other receivables
Trade recelvables 1.319 1311 1,330 1,321
Other recevables 223 218 234 232
Accrued income 26 7 35 29 38
' T 1568 1564 1593 1597
Prepoyments and other non-financial receivables 210 194 214 198
' 1,778 1758 1,807 1,789

In cddition to the amounts disclosed above. thaere are no trade and other receivables (2022 - £3m) classified as assets
held for sale (see note 17).

The directors consider that the carrying amount of receivables approximates fair value.
For details of credit fisk exposure on trade and other receivables, see note 28.

Trade and other receivables include £32m (2022 - £29m) inrespect of tnance lease receivables. with £28m in non-
current loans and receivables and £4m in current other receivables (2022 ~ £25m in non-current loans and receivables
and £4m in curent other receivables). Minimum lease payments receivable are £4m within cne year, £11m between
one and five years and £17m in more than five years (2022 - £4m within one year, £16m between one and five years
and £9min more than five years).

The finance lease receivables relate to property, plant and equipment leased to a joint venture of the Group (see note
30).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

17. Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale

The Group has no assets and liabilities classified as held for sale at year end. In the prior year, the Group's north China
sugar business was classified as held for sale. The proposed buyer withdrew their offer in the second half of this year and
the Group has since recognised a £15m non-cash exceptional impairment charge 1o write down the property. plant

and equipment in that business.

18. Inventories

L L. ABf Consclacten Grous
2023 2522 2023 3072
£m im £m m
R materick and consurmables 599 607 405 07
Work In progress 78 70 78 70
inshed goods and goods held forresale 2530 2582 2563 2617
3,207 3.259 3,246 3296
write down of inventaones (123) fi15) (124} {115}

in addition o the amaounts disclosed above, there are no inventones (2022 — £7m} classified as assets held for saie [see

note 17},

19. Biological assets

onsolidaled Sroup

Other Tolal
£ £
At 18 Seplember 2021 79 4 85
Transfered fo inventory 13) (13 [126)
Purchases - 5 5
Other disposals - ) {n
Changes in fair value 124 10 134
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 7 1 8
AT 17 Septamber 1172 T 07 8 105
Transfered to inventory 121) N4 [135)
Purchases 3 ] 9
Impairment 171 - {7]
Changes in fair value 135 11 144
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 119} - 19
Al 16 September 2023 a8 11! 29

Impairment

The methodology used to assess curent biological assets for impairment is the same as that described for impairment

assessments of goodwill, See nate 9 far further details.

In the year there was a £7m (2022 - £nil) impairment of current biological assets in llova Mozambigue due to the severe
flooding and damage to the sugar crop fields (included within exceptional items).

Growing cane

The fair value of growing cane is determinad using inputs that are uncbservable, using the best information avaiable in
the circumstances for valuing the growing cane, and therefore falls into the Level 3 category of tair value measurement.
The following assumptions were used in the determination of the estimated sucrose fonnage at 16 September 2023

" South Afica Malawl Zambia Eswatini Tanrania Mozambique
Expected area to harvest (hectares) 5,729 18,819 15,700 10,580 9,578 -
Estimated yield (lonnes cane/hectare} 67.9 100.1 114.0 92.0 80.2 -
Average maturity of growing cane 46.47 67.4% 65.7% 67.7% 4427, -

The following assumptions were used in the determination of the estimated sucrose fonnage at 17 September 2022:

Sobi ATice

Eswecaling Tarrarg tAD2arm

Qi3

A FisTyaloll]
Expected area to harvest {hectares) 6,028 19 207 16,163 8,419 2412 5,802
Estimated vield [tonnes cane/hectare) 679 103.7 1159 99.5 72.6 710
Average maturity of growing cane 47 6% &7.4% 65.7% 67 7% 46,2% 72.4%
A 1% change in the unctservable inputs could increase or decrease the fair value of growing cane as follows:
o oo — 2023 T T T 022
% -1% +1E e
£m £ £ fim
Fslimated sucrose content 1.6 (1.6} 12 1.2
Estimated sucrose prce 1.9 (1.9} 1.4 11.4)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 14 Seplember 2023

20. Cash and cash equivalents

_____ ABT Corse dated Groop,
2023 2027 2023 2072
Nate £m £m £m im
Cash
Cash ot bank and in hand 4317 779
Cosh equivalenis N 976 1,447
Comh ondeasireqiaients | ® e 2
Reconciliafion fo the cash flow statement
Bank overdrafts o 21 (6%) (128) {49) (126)
Cash and casn eqivalents in the casn flow statement 1,388 1,995 1.527 2,100
Cash and cash equivalents on the face of the balance sheet 1.457 2,121 1,596 2,226
e 1.457 2,121 1596 2228

Cash at bank and in hand generally earns interest at rates based on the daily bank deposit rate.

Cash equivalents generally comprise deposits placed on money markets for periods of up to three months which earn
interest at o short-term deposit rate; and funds invested with fund managers that have a maturity of less than or equat to
three months and are af fixed rates.

The carrying amount of cash and cash eguivalents approximates foir value,

21. Loans and overdrafis

AT Censoldated Gloun
2023 2022 2023 20232
hore £m L £fm £
Current loans and overdrafis
Secured loans - i 1 ]
Unsecured loons and overdrafts 1468 156 1468 156
158 157 169 157
Non-cumrent loans
Secured loans - - - 1
Unsecuredloans 394 X 480 394 480
L 374 480 3%4 481
28 562 637 563 4638
o AR Consclaated Croup_
2023 2027 2023 w0
Nl £m £m £m Lin

Secured loans

- GBP floaling rate - 1 1
- Cther floating rate - I - 1
Unsecured bank leans and overdrafts

- Bank overdrafts 20 &9 126 49 126
- GBP fixed rale 392 390 392 390
- USE floating rate 8 8 8 8
- USD fixed rate -4 87 81 87
- EUR floating rate ! Z2 1 2
- Other floating rate 9 13 9 13
- Other fixed rate 2 10 2 10

T o 78 562 637 563 )

Secured loans comprse amounts barrowead Trom commercial banks and are secured by floafing charges over the assefs
of subsidicies. Bank overdrafts generally bear interest at floating rates.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

22. Trade and other payables

~ - . Comsoldoted GoLn .

2023 PSR 2023 2022

£m £ £m im

Trade payables 1,177 1.362 1171 1.377
Accroets R 1.271 1225 1,286 1296
2,448 2,637 2,477 2,673

Deferad income and other non-financial payables o o 505 477 523 497
2,953 3704 3.000 3.165

In addition to the amounts disclosed above, there are no frade and other payables (2022 - £14m) classified as liabilties
held tor sale (see note 17).

For payables with aremaining fife of less than cne year, carrying amount is deemed fo reflect fair value.

In a small number of busingsses, the Group ulilises supplier financing arrangements to enable participating suppliers, at
ecch supplier's sole discrefion, to sell any or all amounts due from the Group to a third-party bank earlier than the
invoice due daote. af better financing rates than the supplier alone could achieve. Payment terms for suppliers are
identical, irespective of whether they choose to participate. The Group recewves no benefit from these arrangements.
Contractual terms and invoice due dates are unchanged and the Group considers amounts owed to the third-party
bank as akin fo amounts owed to the supplier. Such amounts are therefore included within frade payables and
associated cash flows are included within operating cash flows, as they continue o be part of the Group's normal
operating cycle,

Al year end, the value of invoices sold by suppliers under supply chain financing arangemeants was £75m (2022 — £45m).

23. Provisions

Cor\sohaa?ea_" :

Dererred
Resructanng consideil on Orrar Total
£m Zm L I
AL 17 Seplember 2022 55 20 38 13
Crealed 21 2 &7 70
Utilsed {39 &) 7} [64)
Relecsad {18) - (13} (30
Effect of movements in foreign exchange S () - (4) 15)
Al 16 September 2023 o 8 4 79 103
Curent 18 3 34 55
Non-curent ) . - 3 45 48
T 18 § 79 103

Financial ligbilities within provisions comprised deferred consideration in both years {see note 28).

Restructuring

Restructuring provisions include business restructure costs, including redundancy, associated with the Group's
announced reorganisation plans. These restructuring provisions are largely expected to be utilised in the next financial
yeqr.

Deferred consideration
Deferred consideration comprises estimates of amounts due to the previous owners of busingsses acquired by the Group
which are oftan linked to performance or othar conditions.

Other

Other provisions mainly comprise litigation claims and warranty claims arsing from the sale and closure of businaesses. The
extent and timing ot the ulifisation of these provisions is more unceriain given the nature of the claims and the period of
the warranties.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 14 September 2023

24, Share capital and reserves

Share capital
At 17 September 2022 and 14 September 2023, the Group's issued and fully paid share capital comprised 862,022
ordinary shares of 50p. each carrying one vote per share, Total nomingl value was £431,.011.

Other reserves
Other reserves are non-disiributable and materially arose from the cancellation of share premium account by ABF in
1993,

Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all toreign exchange differences arising from the franslation of the financial statements
of foreign cperations. as well as fram the transtation of liabiities that hedge the Group's net investment in foreign
subsidicries,

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comprises all changes in the value of derivatives to the extent that they are effeclive cash flow
hedges, net of amounits recycled from the hedging reserve on occurrence of the hedged fransaction or when the
hedged transactionis no longer expected to ocaur.

25. Acquisitions and disposals

Acquisitions

2023

in the first half, the ABF agnculture division acquired Kite Consulling. Advance Sourcing and Progres. Kite Consulfing is @
specialist dalry consulfant and Advance Sourcing provides spocialist products o create value by improving herd
performance and supports dairy farmers to improve herd efficiency and build resiience across the agri-food supply
chain. Progres in Finland uses a patented additve to supporf good health, reduce inflormmation and stimulafe recovery,
which improves gut infegrity and the performance of animals.

in April. the Ingredicnts ABF division acquired Vital Solutions, a German company specialising in natural science-based
ingredients for application in dietary supplements and functional foods.

The ABF Agriculture division acquired IFCN AG, o dairy research and consulting company in June ond in August
acquired National Milk Records plc (INMR) for £48m. NME s the leading agn-tech supplier of management informafion
and festing services to the UK dairy supply chain, developing technofogy used fo intorm farming efficiency and animal
welfare, and quantify food provenance.

The acquisitions had the following effect on the Group's assets and liabilities:

Tre . Ferogmwdwauesoncoguaion
acguizton
Carrg Tarled
wvoalues £ irn
Net assets
Intangible assets 3 23 12 35
Property. plant and equinment and right-cf-use assets 5 4 1 5
Investment in joint ventures 3 ? - 9
Cash and overdrafis 1 - 1 1
working capital Rk - (1) [}
Loans 12) 7] - [2)
Taxation 1 (4] {2 _ 18)
Netidentifioble assels and liooities N T no A
Goochwil 8 21 29
Total consideration 48 32 20
Safisfied by: i
Crash corsideration 78
Deferred consideration 7 S B 2
- . e . o 2
Net cash:
Cuash consideration 78
Cash and cosh equivalents acquired . m
77
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

25. Acquisitions and disposals continued

Pre-acquisition camrying amounts were the same as recognised values on acquisition apart from £32m of non-operating
intangibles in respect of brands, fechnology and customer relationships, a £7m related deferred tox fiakility, @ £6m uplift
to the investment in joint venturcs and goodwill of £39m. Cash flow on acquisition of subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates of £94m comprised £78m cash consideration loss £1m cash and overdrafis acquired, £16m of deferred
consideration relafing fo previous dcquisitions and o £1m contribufion 1o an existing ABF joint venture in China.

2022

in January, the Group acguired 100% of Fytexia, a B2B specialfy ingredienfs business in France and ffaly producing and
formulating polyphenols-based active ingredients for the dietary supploemaents industry. In July, the Group acquired
Greencoat, o UK-based animal supplemaont and core business. During the year, the Group also acquired o small
grocery company in Now Jealand, a small agriculfurce business in Finlond and a small ingredients business in Australia.

Pro-agoguisttion carrying amounts were the same as recognised values on acquisition apart from £88m of non-operating
infangibles in respect of brands, technology and custamer relationships, an £8m uplift to inventory, a £16m rclated
defered tax liability and goodwill of £85m. Cash flow on acquisition of subsidicries, joinf ventures and associotes of
£154m comprised £153m cash consideration foss £10m cash and overdrafis acgutred, £7m of deferred consideration
refating to previous acquisitions and a £4m contribution fo an exisfing joint venture in China.

Disposals

2023

The Group agreed to sell propetty, plont ond equipment fo its Chinese joirtt venture partner. Profit on sole was £3m. In
March Gledhow, the Group's 30% equity-accounted associate in llove South Africa. formally wenf info business rescue.
A non-cash provision of £6m was booked on the tinancial guarantee held on this business' liabilities.

The Grand Hotel, Brighton was sold to the Fatial Group in May 2023 for £61m.

2022

The proposed sale of an ABF yeast company fo the joint venturc with Wilmar infermational in China {classificd as held for
safe af the 2021 year end} is not going ahead. The £10m non-cash impairment reversed in 2021 through profit/{loss) on
sale and closure of business hos been reinstated at o cost of £11m.

The Group's investment in north China Sugar is classiffed as held-for-sale at vear end and an associated £19m nen-cash
wiilte-down hos been charged o loss on safe and cfosure of businass.

The Group ofso refeased £3m of closure provisions in Vivergo in the UK and £4m of warranty provisions no longer required
for o disposed Ingredients business in the United States.

24. Share-based payments

The cannual charge in the income statement for equity-settled share-based payments schemes was £18m (2022 - £19m}.
The Group had the following principal equity-setiled share-based payment plans in eperation during the period:

Associated British Foods 2014 Long-term Incentive Plan (‘the 2014 LTIP')

The 2016 LTIP was approved and adopted by the Group at the ABF AGM held on 2 December 2016. I takes the form of
conditional allocations of shares which are released if. and to the extent that, performance targets are satisfied,
typically aover a three-year vesting period.

Associated British Foods 2014 Short-term Incentive Plan ('the 20146 STIP’)

The 2016 STIP was approved and adopted by the ABF Board on behalf of the Group on 2 November 2016, It takes the
farm of conditiona! allocations of shares which are released at the end of a three-year vesting period If, and io the
extent that, performance targets are satisfied, over a one-year performance periad.

Further information regarding the operation of ihe above plans can be found in the Remuneration Report in the annual
report and accounts of ABF on pages 100 ta 115,

Total condiitional allocations under the Group's equity-settled share-based payment plans are as follows:

Grantoal Tepady

o d veutod lapsed o the e
2023 3,113.056 (607.140) (1,618,739) 4,977,182
2022 5,419,237 2445814 [718.185]  [1.056.861) 6,090,005

Employee Share Ownership Plan Trust

Shares subject to allocation under the Group's equity-seltled share-based payment plans are held in o separale
Employee Share Ownership Plan Trust funded by the Group. Voling rights attached to shares held by the Trust are
exercisabla by the trustee, whois entifled to consider any recommendation made by a committee of ABF. At 16
September 2023 the Trust held 4,734,992 (2022 - 3,042,132) ordinary shares of ABF. The market value of these shares at the
year-end was £99m {2022 - £40m). The Trust has waived its right to dividends. Movaments in the yvear were a release of
607,140 shares and the purchase of 2,300,000 shares (2027 - release of 718,185 shares and the purchase of 2,413,228
shares).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
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26. Share-based payments continved

Fair values
The weighted average fair value of conditional grants made was determined by taking the market price of the shares af
the time of grant and discounting for the fact that dividends are not paid during the vesting period. The weighted
average fair value of the conditional shares cilocated during the year wos 1,544p (2022 - 1.660p) and the weighted
average share price was 1,925p (2022 - 1,975p). The dividend yield used was 2.5% (2022 - 2.5%).

27. Analysis of net debt

Consolaaled Group

;\T_ o h T MNe e l20nns o . -_"-_-““-A-f--

17 Sembemler i Exchange 14 September

027 Tenbr e aopsiments 2023

LT £m im £m
Shor-term foans [3n 13 7 {100}
Long-term locns [481) - (394}
Lease liabiihes (3275, 312 43 {3,190}
Total lictifities from fincncing activities (3.787) 325 0 - (3.684)

Coash ot bank and in hand, cash equivalents and

overdralls 2100 (550) - - 173) 1.527
Curent investments designated FVTFL 1243 49 51 [14) 1,329
{444) {126) (2) {239} 117) (828)

A1 T At

1B Septemoer 17 Seoemoear

202 | Casr How 2027

£ £ £

Short-term loans [290) 58 (23} 224 137)
Long-term loans 176) (179 (224) 12} (481}
Lecseliabillies o (3.308) = ) R 1 98] {3.275]
Tolat liokiliies from financing aclivities [3.674) 204 [31) [184) (100 [3.787)

Cash af bank and in hand, cash equivalents and

averdrafts 2,423 1397} - - 74 2100

Curent investments designated FVTPL 193 122 - S - 1 1,243
(158) 71) 131] {189} 5 [444)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise bank and cash balances, call deposits and short-term investments with criginal
maturities of three months or less. £69m (2022 - £126m) of bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand form an
integral part of the Group's cash management and are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the
purpose of the cash flow statement (see note 20 for a reconciliation).

Net cash excluding lease liakilities is £2,362m (2022 - £2,831m) comprising cash af bank and in hand, cash equivalents
and overdrafts of £1,527m, short-term loans of £100m. long-term loans of £394m and current invesiments designated
FVTPL of £1,329m (2022 - £2,.100m, £31m, £481m and £1,243m respectively).

£69m (2022 - £126m) of bank overdrafts plus the £100m {2022 - £31m) of short-lerm loans shown above comprise the
£169m {2027 - £157m] of current loans and overdrafts shown on the face of the balance sheet,

Current and non-current lease liabilities shown an the foce of the balance sheet of £338m and £2,852m respectively
(2022 - £320m and £2.955m respectively} comprise the £3.190m (2022 - £3,275m) of lease liabilities shown above.

Current investrnents designated FYTPL comprise term depaosits and short-term investments with original rciturities of
greater than three months but less than one year.

Interest paid is included within tinancing aciivities. The roll-forward of the liabilities associated with interest paid 15 an
opening balance of £{18)m, expense of £{129)m, payments of £119m, effect of hyperinflationary econemies of £3m and
a closing balance of £{25)m {2022 - opening balance of £{20)m, expense of £{112]m, payments of £114m and a closing
balance of £{18)m]. Qutstanding balances of interast payables are included in accruals in note 22,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 32 weeks ended 16 September 2023

28. Financial instruments

Fingncial instruments include £nil (2022 - £3m) of trade and other receivables and £nil (2022 - £14m) of trade and other
payables which are classified as held for sale (see note 17). all disclosures in this note are given gross, before the held-

for-sale reclassification is madle,

a} Carrying amount and fair values of financial assets and labilities

AT . ___ Comoidaled Group
2023 2079 7023 2027
£m £m £m i
Financial assets
Financial assetfs at amortised cost
Cash and cash equivalents 1.457 2121 1,594 2,226
Investrnents - 4 - 4
Trade and other receivables 1.568 1,567 1,593 1.594
Other non-current recelvables 31 29 3 29
At fair value thraugh other comprehensive income
Investrments 32 29 32 79
Ad fair value through profit and loss
Ivestmeants - - 1,478 1.381
Derivotive assets not designated in a cash flow hedging
relationship:
- currency denvafives 17 50 11 50
- commodity derivatives - 3 - 3
Designated cash flow hedging relationships
Derivative assets designated and effective as cash flow
hedging instrumeants:
- currency derfvatives (excluding cross-currency swaps| 40 7 40 70
- CIOss-CUMENCyY swips 24 29 24 29
-interest rale derivatives 4 - 4 -
- commaodity derivatives 17 323 17 323
Total financial assels 3,184 4,225 4,826 5738
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities al amortised cost
Trade and other pavables (2,448) f2.651} (2477) {2.687)
Secured loans - 1} m 12)
Unsecured loans and overdrafls {fair value 2023 - £470m; 2022
Z£571m) (562) {636 (562) {630
Lease fiabilties [fair value 2023 - £3,208m; 2027 £3,494m} (3.160) {3,252} (3.190) (3.275)
Defered consideration (6} 20} (&) 120)
At fair value through profit and loss
Derivative liablities not desionated in a cash flow hedging
relationshio:
- cumency dervatives {excluding Gross-currency swaps) (4} 5} O] (5}
- commaodily derivatives - 13} - 13
Designated net investment hedging relationships
Derivative liabilifies desgnated as net investment hedging
irstrurmentls:
- CIOSS-CUTENCy SwWass (7} {7} {7} {7}
Designated cash flow hedging relationships
Dervative liabilities designated and effective as cash flow
hedging mnstiruments:
- currency derivatives (excluding Cross-currency swaps) {4} {17} (4) {17]
- inferest derivatives - (3) - (3}
- commodity dervatives (52} {170) (52) {170)
Totalfinancial liabilities (6.245)  [6753) (6.305) (4,525)
Net financial liabilities B - (3.061) (2.540) (1.479) {1.087)
Except where stated. canying amount is equal to fair value.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 146 September 2023

28. Financial instruments continued

Valuation of financial instruments carried at fair value

Financial instruments carried at fair value on the balance sheet comprise derivatives and investments. The Group
classities these financial instruments using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the relalive significance of both objective
evidence and subjective judgements on the inputs used i making the far value measuremenls:

Level 1! financial insfruments are valued using observable inputs that reflect unadjusted quoted market prices in an
acctive market for identical instruments. An exaomple aof an ifem in this category is a widely traoded cquily instrument with
a normal quated market price.

Level 2; financial instruments are valued using techniques based on observable inputs, either directly [i.e. market prices
and rates) or indirectly fi.e. derived from market prices and rates). An example of anitem in this category is a currency
derivative, where forward exchange rates and yield curve data, which are observable in the market, are used to derive
fair value.,

Level 3: financial instruments are valued using fechnigues involving significant unobservable inputs.

The table below analyses the level in the fair value hierarchy into which their fair value measurement method is

Conao daled Groue

2023 . [ . 2077 PR
level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total K%l Lnwe! 2 lowel 3 lalal
£m £m £m Em £m im im £m
Investments designated FYTPL 1,175 29% 4 1,478 695 682 4 1,381

Included within the level 2 investmenis is the Group's aggregate £145m interest (2022: £138m) in 40 {2022; 46} separate
Partnerships, each of which held investments in ungquoted investments. Such investments represent the Group’s
cllocable share of Partnership investments and include inferests in non-redeemahble, closed-end private investment
fundls that da nof rade in an active morket and represent iliquid long-term investments that generally require future
capital commitments,

The fair value of such investments are determined by the General Partners of the funds invested in. Unguoted
nvestments are valued in accordance with the International Private Equity and Venture Capital Voluations Guidelines
as enclorsed by the pritish venture Capital Associanon, 1he basis ot valuation in these guidelines Include valuing
investments at the price of recent comparative indusiry price earnings ratics discounted for marketability and
performance of the investment, by review of comparable M&A deals in appropriate sectors, and net asset valuations for
asset based investments.

Because of the inherent uncertainties of valuing unguoted investmeants, the eventual realisation proceeds may differ
from the estimated fair value and the difference could be significant. Appropriate provisions are made against all
individual values where neceassary to reflect unsatisfactory financial performance or a fall in comparable ratings, leading
to impairment in value.

b} Derivatives
All derivatives are classified as current on the face of the balance sheet. The table below analyses the carying amount
of derivatives and their contractual/notional amounts, together with an analysis of derivatives by the level in the fair

value hierarchy intfo which thel fair value measurement method is categorised.

Cansohdalen Groun

2023 L X —
Cantractual,/ Coanlrcelyald
notional notiano!
amounts Level 1 levei 2 fotal [CANTSTTIAEN Leswel 1 _ovel 2 lexlaal
£m £m £m £m 1 Irn i Im
Financiol assels
Cumency derivafives 2,402 - 51 1
texcluding cross-cumency swaps) 2193 - 120 120
Cross-Cumency swaps 84 - 24 24 94 - 2% s
Interest rate dervatives 400 - 4 4 - _ _
Commeodity derivatives 163 5 12 17 o 439 3 ) 323 ) 326
L o 3,049 5 Kl 96 272 3 472 475
Financial liabilities
Currency derivatives 626 - (10} (10}
lexcluding cross-cumency swaps) 721 [22) [27)
Cross-Cumrency swaps &5 - )] (7} 48 - 17} 7
Interest rate derivatives - - - - 400 13} 13)
Commodity dervatives 25 (2 {50} {52) U | Vi) BV
966 {2) (67) (67) 1,755 (205} [205)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

28. Financial instruments confinued
c} Cash flow hedging reserve
The following table identifies the movements in the cash flow hedging reserve during the year, and the periads in which

the cash flows are expected to occur. The periods inwhich the cash flows are expecled to impact profit or loss are
rmatenally the same.

Consoldaled Grous

2023 T~ S
Cuntency Sy
dervafives o
{excluding Cross-
CIGss- cumency Interest Commadity cecst Cooneee fy
curency) Swaps Derivatives derivalives Total v [+I0 bSO PR Tt
£m £m Em £m £m I L ] PN
Opening baance (41) - 2 {(1158)  (154) 114} n - {28) 143)
Losses/{gains] recognised in the
hedging reserve 73 5 (5) 337 412 {295] 120 3 |234) (548}
Amount removed from ihe hedging
reserve and included in the income
slatement:
—revenue (8) - - @) (13} 5 - (4] |
—costof sales - - - (132) (132) - - 105 105
—other financial {income)/expense - {7} - - 7} - i - 21
Amount removed from the hedging
reserve and included in a non-
financial asset:
—inventory (52) - - {14} (68) 258 - - 22 280
Defered tax {2) - - (39} (400 5 ) 24 28
Closing balance (28) {2} (2) 30 (2} 141 2 [115) 1154)
Cash flows are expected fo occur:
—within six months (15) - - 25 10 136} - 2 (105) {139}
- between six months and one year (13) {2} 2 4 (13} [&) - {10} (16}
-between one and wo years - - - 1 1 ] - - - 1
(28) {2} (2) 30 (2) 141} 2 [115) (154}

Of the closing balance of £12)m. £(1)m is attributable to equity sharehclders and £{1)m to non-cantroling interasts {2022
- £(154)m. £{84)m attributable to equity shareholders and £{70}m to non-controlling interests]. Of the net movement in
the year of £152m, £83m is attributable to equity shareholders and £69m 1o non-controling interests {2022 - £{111}m,
£{60)mis attributable to equity shareholders and £{51)m to nan-controling interests).

The balance remaining in the commaodity cash flow hedge reserve from hedging relationships for which hedge
accounting is no longer applied is £3m {2022 - £1m).

The balance in thae cost of hedging reserve was not significant at 17 September 2022 or 16 September 2023.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 57 weeks ended 14 September 2023

28. Financial instruments continved

d) Financial risk identificafion and management
The Group is exposed to the following financial risks from the use of financial instruments:

hguidity risk,
rmarket risk; and
credit risk.

The Group's financial risk management pracess seeks to enable the early identification, evaluation and effective
management of key risks facing the business. Risk management palicies and systems have been esiablshed and are
raviewed reqularly fo reflect changes in market condifions and the Group's activities, The Group, through its standards
and procedureas, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all smployees understand
their roles and obligations.

The Group sources and sells products and manufactures goods in many lecalions around the world. These operations
expose the Group to potentially significant price volatility in the financial and commedity markets. Risk management
tearns have been established in the Group's major businesses o manage this exposure by entering into a range of
products, including physical and financial forward contracts, futures, swaps, and. where appropriate, ogptions. These
teams work closely with Group Treasury and report regularty to executive management.

Treasury operations and commodity procurement and hedging are conducted within a clearly defined framework ot
Board-approved policies and guidelings 1o manage the Group's financial and commedity risks. Group Treasury works
closely with the Group's procurement teams fo manage commaodity risks. Group Treasury policy seeks to ensure that
adequate financial resources are available at all times for the management and development of the Group’s
businesses, whilst effectively managing its market risk and credit risk. The Group's risk management policy explicitly
farbids the use of financial or commodity derivatives (outside its risk management framework of mitigating financial and
cormmodity risks) for speculative purposes.

e} Foreign currency franslation

The Group prasents its financial statemeants in sterling. As a resulf of its warldwide operations, the Group is exposed o
fareign currency translation risk where overseas operations have o functionat currency other than sterling. Changes in
foreign currency exchange rates impact the translation info sterling of both the income statement and net assets of
these foreign aperations.

The Group typically finances its aperations using own funds generated in the functional currency of its operations and
where appropriate. by borrowing locally in the same funchonal curency. This reduces net assef values reportedin
functional currencies other than sterling, thereby reducing the econemic exposure to fluctuations in foreign currency
exchange rates on translation.

The Group also finances its operations by obtaining funding at Group level through extemal bomowings and, where they
are nat in sterling, these borrowings may be designated as net investment hedges. This enables gains and tosses arising
on refranslation of these foreign currency bomrowings to e charged to other comprehensive income. providing a partial
offset in equity against the gains and losses arising cn franslation of the net assets of foreign operations.

The Group also holds cross-currency inferest rate swaps to hedge its fixed rate non-sterling debt. These are reported as
cash flow hedges and net investment hedges. The change in fair value of the hedging instrument, 1o the degree
effective, is retained in other comprahensive income. Under IFRS ¢, the cumency £asis on the cross-currency swaps is
excluded from the hedge designation and recognised in other comprehensive income - cost of hedging. The value of
the currency basis is not significant. Effectiveness is measured using the hypothetical derivative approach. The
hypothetical derivative is based on ihe critical terms of the debt and therefore the only ineffectiveness thal might arise is
in relation to credit isk. Credit risk is monitored regutarly and is not a significant factor in the hedge relationship.

The Group does not actively hedge the translation impact of fereign exchange rate movements on the income
statement {other than via the partial economic hedge arising from the servicing costs on non-sterfing borowings).

The Group designates certain of its intercompany loan arrangements as quasi-eguity for the purposes of IAS 21, The
effect of the designation is that any foreign exchange volatility arising within the borrowing enfity and/or the lending
entity is accounted for direcily within other comprehensive income.

A net foreign exchange loss of £2m (2022 - £nil] on refransiation of these loans has been taken to the translation reserve
on consalidation, all of which was aitributable to equity shareholders. The Group also held cross-currency swaps that
have been designated as hedges of its net investments in euros, whose change in fair value of £nil fo the transiation
reserve, all of which was attdbutable to equity shareholders (2022 - £1m has been debited to the translation reserve).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

28. Financial instruments continved
F)y Market risk

parket risk is the risk of movemenis in the fair value of future cash flows of a financial inshument or forecast fronsaction
as underlying market prices change. The Group s exposed to changes in the market price of commodities, interest rates
and foreign exchange rates. These risks are known as ‘transaction” {or recognised) exposures and ‘economic' {or
forecast] exposures.

(i) Commedity price risk
Commodity price risk arises from the procurement of raw materials, the sale of finished goods linked to market ind:ces
and the consequent exposure to changes in market prices.

The Group purchases a wide range of commaditias in the ordinary course of business and has some sales contracts
which are linked to financial market indices. Exposure to changes in the market price of certain of these commodiities
including sugar raws, energy. wheat, edible oils, soya beans, teq, lean hog. cocoa and rice is managed through the wse
of forward physical contracts and hedging instruments, including futures, swaps and options primarily to convert flaating
prices to fixed prices. The use of such contracis to hedge commodity exposures is govermned by the Group's risk
management policies and is continually monitored by Group Treasury. Commeodity derivatives also provide a way to
meet customers’ pricing requirements whilst achieving a price structure consistent with the Group's overall pricing
strafegy.

Some of the Group's commaodity forward contracts are classified as “own use’ contfracts, since they are entered into,
and confinue to te held, for the purposes of the Group's ordinary operations. In this instance the Group takes physical
delivery of the commodity concerned. Own use contracts do not require accounting entries until the commadity
purchase actually crystafises. Where possible, other commedity derivatives are accounted for as cash flow hedges
{typically with a one-to-one hedge ratio}, but there are some commodity derivatives for which the strict requirements of
hedge accounting cannot be satisfied. Such commodity derivatives are used anly where the business believes they
provide an economic hedge of an underlying exposure. These instruments are classified as held for trading and are
marked to market through the income statement.

The mdajorty of the Group's forward physical contracts and commodity derivatives have maturifies of less than one year,

The Group's sensifivities in respect of commeodity derivatives far a +/- 20% movement in underlying commaodity prices are
£16m (2022 - £62m} and £{13)m (2022 - £(57)m). respectively.

(i) interest rate risk
Interest rate risk comprises two primary elements:

interest price risk results from financial instruments bearing fixed interest rates. Changes in floating inferest rates
therefore affect the fair value of these fixed rate financial instruments; and

interest cash flow risk rasults from financial instruments bearing floating rates. Changes in tloating interest rates affect
cash flows on interest receivable or payable.

The Group's policy is to manage its mix of fixed and floating rate debt, cash and investments so that a significant
change in interest rates does not have a materal negative impact on the Group's cash flows.

AT 14 September 2023, £475m (85%) (2022 - £487m and 76%} of total debt was subject 1o fixed rates of interest, the
majority of which is the 2034 public bond (fixed rate of 2.5%). Floating rate debt comprises other bank borrowings
bearing interest rates for various fime periods up to 12 months, by reference fo the relevant markel rate for the currency
and location of the borrowing.,

The Group's cash and cash equivalents and current assel investments are subject to floating rates of interest, typically
fixed for periods up fo 3 manths by reference fo the relevant market rate for the currency of the cash placing or
investment.

£400m of 12-month stering interes! rate swaps have baen entered into so that the floating interest rate received on an
equivaient balance of the Group's cash and cash equivalents is fixed for the 12-month period to September 2024,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 14 September 2023

28. Financial instruments continued

(iii} Foreign currency risk

The Group conducts business worldwide and conseqguently in many toreign currencies. As arasult, it is exposad to
movements in foreign curency exchange rates which affect the Group's fransaction costs. The Group also publishes its
financial statements in sterling and is therefore exposed o movements in foreign exchange rates on the translation of
the results and underlying net assefs of ifs foreign operations into sterling.

Translation risk Ts discussed in section e} on page 54.

Transaction risk

Currency transaction exposure occurs where g business makes sales and purchases in a currency other than s
functional cumrency. It also arises where monetary assets and liabilities of a businass are not denominated in its functional
currency, and where dividends or surplus funds are remitted from overseas. The Group's policy is to match transaction
exposures wherever possible, and to hedge actual exposures and firm commitments as socon as they occur by using
forward foreign currency contracts.

The Group uses derivatives (principally forward foreign currency contracts and time options) to hedge ils exposure to
movements in exchange rates on its foreign currency trade receivables and payables. The Group does not seek formal
fair value hedge accounting for such transaction hedges. Instead, such derivatives are classified as held for frading and
marked to market through the income statement. This offsets the income statement impact of the retransiation of the
foreign curency frade receivables and payables.

Economic (forecast) nsk

The Group principally uses forward foreign curency contracts o hedge its exposure to movements in exchange rates on
its highly probable forecast foreign currency sales and purchases on a roling 12-month basis. The Group does not
formally define the proportion of highly probable forecast sales and purchases to hedge, but agrees an appropriate
percentage on an individual basis with each business by reference to the Group's risk management policies and
prevailing market conditions. The Group designates currency derivatives used to hedge its highly probable forecast
transactions as cash flow hedges. Under IFRS 9, the spot component is designated in the hedging relationship and
forward points and curency basis are excluded and recognised in other comprehensive income - cost of hedaing. The
cost of hedging value during the period and atf the balance sheet dote was not material. The economic relationship is
based on critical terms and a one-to-one hedge ratio. To the extent that cash flow hedges are effective, gains and
losses are deferred in equity until the forecast transaction occurs, at which point the gains and losses are recycled either
to the income statement or to the non-tinancial asset acquired.

The majority of the Group's currency derivatives have original maturities of less than cne year.

The Group's most significant currency transaclion exposures are:
sourcing for Primark — costs are denominated in a number of currencies, predominantly US dollars, euras and sterling.
sugar sales in British Sugar to movements in the sterling/euro exchange rate.

Elsewhere, a number of businesses make sales and purchase a variety of raw materials in foreign curencias {primarily US
dollars and euros), giving rise to transaction exposures. In all other material respects, businesses lend to operate in their
functlional curencies.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 14 Septamber 2023

28. Financial instruments continved

The table below illustrates the effects of hedge accounting on the consclidated balance sheet and consclidated
income statement by disclosing separately by risk category. and each type of hedge, the details of the associaled

hedging inslrument and hedged item.

Change in fair Change in fair

Carrying value of hedging value of hedge
amaount Furthest instrument used to itern used fo
Contract assets/ raturity Hedge determine hedge determine hedge
nolionat  {Eabilities) date ralio ineffectiveness effecivenass
£m £m fm T £m £m
Current
Designated cash fiow hedging refationshps:
- currency dervatives (excluding Cross-curmency swaps) 2,024 36 Sep 24 100% 346 (36)
Cross-CUmency swaps 84 24 Mor24 100% & &)
- commodily derivatives 427 (38) Sep24 100% (35) 35
—inlerest rate derdvatives 400 4 Sep2d 100% 4 (4)
Designated net investmenl hedging relationships:
cumency dervatives [Cross-cunmency swaps) 45 (7) Mar24 100% - -
Non-current
Designaled cash flow hedging relahonships:
- curency dedvatives [excluding cross-currency swaps) bra | - Apr 25 100% - -
- commodity derivatives 1 - Feb2§ 100% - -
Corsolideed Gravn
- S V7
Caring
arroLn® Furtenl IFer s
Contract assels) M anty derermire todye
rolicna [tz thes] ot aflag 17, eries,
£ £ £m im
Current
Designated cash flow hedging relationships:
- cumency dervatives (excluding Cross-cumrency swaps) 2,102 54 Sep 23 100% 54 {54)
- Cross-curency swops 739 152 Aug 23 100% 152 (152}
—commodity derivatives 400 (31 Aug 23 100% {3] 3
Non-current
Designated cash flow hedging relationshios:
- cunrency dedvatives (excluding cross-Cumency swaps) 32 [ Sep24 100% (1] 1
— Crogs-CUTenNCy swaps 94 29 Mar24 100% 14 [14)
- commodlity derivalives 20 I Jan 24 100% 1 ()
Designated net investment hedging relationships:
- cunency dedvatives [Cross-curenacy swaps) 48 17} Mar24 100% (3) 3

Hedging relationships are typically based on a one-to-cne hedge ratio. The economic relationship between the hedged
itern and the hedging instrument is analysed on an ongoing basis. Sources of possible ineffectivenass include changes in
forecast transactions as « result of fiming or value or, in certain cases, different indices tinked to the hedged item and
the hedging instrumeant. As at 18 Seplember 2023, £2.045m of farward foreign curency contracts designated as cash
flow hedges were autstanding (2022 - £2,134m], largely in relafion to purchases of USD {(£1.702m| and sales of EUR
{£203m} with varying matunties up to Aprl 2025. Weighted averoge hedge rates for these contracts are GBPUSD: 1.244,
EURUSD: 1.098 and GBPEUR: 1.145. Weighted average hedge rates for the cross-currency swaps are GBPUSD: 1.70 and
GBPEUR: 1.24. Commodity derivatives designated as cash flow hedges related 1o a range of underlying hedged items.

with varying maturities up to February 2025.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
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28. Financial instruments continued

The analysis of the Group's foreign currency exposure to financial assets and liabilities by curency of denominationis as

follows:

Sterling us deltar Euro Other Total
£m £m £m fm £m
Firancial assets
Cash and cash equivalents - 351 22 32 405
Trade and olher receivables - 50 56 19 125
Investments = - nd - -
- 401 78 51 530
Financial liobilities
Trade and other payables an (387) {41) {6} {445)
Unsecured loans and overdrafts - (81) - 1 (80)
- - (17) {452) {41) (5) {525)
Currency derivatives
Cross amounts receivable &7 1,870 112 465 2,535
Gross amounts poyable {3) (161) (299) (179) {642)
T 44 1729 (187) 287 1,893
a7 1,668 (150) 333 1,898
T Comsoldated Growp n .
2022 L
Slaring LS clollar Eura Crreer Total
i £ im i £
Financial assets
Cuosh and cash eguivalents 1 84 13 38 138
Trade and other receivables - 35 54 24 133
Investments - 147 - 149
T ) 290 &7 42 420
Fnancial liabiliies o o h T
Trade and other payables {29 [512] {38} (17 1596
Unsecured loans and overdrafis - L - 190
S (29) [602) (38} 17 {686)
Currency derivatives
Gross amaounts receivable 93 2143 98 254 2,590
Grass amounts payoble (2] [202] fa28) {571 {689)
R 91 REI 1330) 199 1901
63 1,629 1301) 244 1.435
The following major exchange rates applied during the year:
- 00 o - '}A:\feu;l-'(;_i;é raie e Closmgiae
2023 2022 2023 2022
US dollar 1.22 1.29 1.24 1.14
Euro 1.15 1.18 115 1.14

The following sensitivity analysis illustrates the impact that ¢ 10% strengthening of the Group's fransactional currencies
against local functional currencies would have had on prefit and equity. The analysis covers currency translation
exposuras at year end on businesses’ financial assets and liabifities that are not denominated in the functional currencies
of those businesses. A similar but opposite impact would be felt on both profit and equily if the Group's main operating

currencies weakened against local functional currencias by a similar amount.

The exposure to toreign exchange gains and losses on fransiating the tinancial statements of subsidiaries into sferting s

notincluded in this sensitivity analysis, as there is no impact on the income statement, and the gains and osses are
recorcead directly in the translation reserve in equity (see below for a separate sensifivity]. This sensitivity is presented

before taxation and non-controlling interests.
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28. Financial instruments continued

Sensitivity analysis

2023 T TTa023 7]

impact on Impact an impact or Spt o

prafit tor total prodt for el

th iad il Ibi oresed ity

10% strengthening against other curencies of : per;’m eql;,"r: o r;m qum
Sterling 1 6 )
US dollar 21 164 19 172
Eure (2} % 119 41
Other 29 32 33 22

A second sensitivity analysis calculates the impact on the Graup's profit before tax if the average rates used 1o frarslate
the results of the Group's foreign operations into sterling were adjusted 10 show ¢ 10% strengthening of stering. A similar
but opposite impact would be felt on profit before tax if steding weakened against the other currencias by a similar
amaunt.

2023 2077

impocton mpact o

profit for profit ler

- . ) . the period the aenad
V0% strengthening of stering against £m I
US coliar (24) 118
Euro (22) 13}
Other {27) 16}

g) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparties to financial instruments do not perform according fo the terms of the confract or
instrumerit. The Group's businasses are exposaed to counterparty credit risk when dealing with customers, suppliers, and
from financial institutions.

The immediate credit exposure of financial instruments is reprasented by those financial instrurments that have a net
positive fair value by counterparty al 14 September 2023, The Group considers ifs maximum exposure to credit sk to be:

Corwaohiﬂhé}i_(f ~ .
2023 2522

£m £

Cash and cash equivalents 1,594 2,226
Imvestrments at amartised cost - 4
Investrments ot folr value through profit and loss 1,478 1,381
Trade and other receivables 1,593 1,594
Other non-current receivables 31 29
Investiments at fair value through other comprehensive ncome 32 29
Derivative assels af fais value thiough profit and loss 1 53
Derivative assals in designated cash flow hedging relationships 78 415
o T " 4819 5,731

The significant majority of cash balances and short-term deposits are held with strong investment-grade banks or
financial institutions.

The Group uses market knowledge, changes in credit ratings and other metrics to identify significant changes 1o the
financial profile of its counterparties,
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28. Financial instruments continued

Trade and other receivables

Significant concentrations of credit risk are very limited as a result of the Group's large and diverse customer base. The
Group has an established credit policy applied by each business under which the credit status of each new customer is
reviewead befare credif is advanced. This includes external credit evaluations where possible and in some cases bank
references. Credt imits are established for il significant or high-risk customers, which represent the maximum amount
permitted to be cutstanding withcut requiring additional approval from the appropriate level of managernent,
Cutstanding debts are continually monitored by each business. Credit limits are reviewed on aregular basis, and at least
annually. Customers that fail to meet the Group's benchmark credilworthiness may only fransact on a prepayment
basts. Aggregate axposures are monitored at Group level.

mMany customers have been fransacting with the Group for many years and the incidence of bad debts has been low,
Where appropriate, goods are sold subject to refention of fitle so that, in the event of non-payment, the Group may
have asecured claim. The Group does not typically require collateral in respect of trade and other receivables.

The Group provides forimpairment of financial assets including frade and other receaivables based on known events,
and makes a collective pravision for losses yet to be identified, based on historical data. The majority of the provision
comprises specific amounts.

To measure expected credit losses, aross trade receivables are assessed regularly by each business locally with
reference to considerations such as the current status of the relationship with the customer, the geographical location of
each customer, and days past due {where applicable}.

Expected losses are determined based on the historical experience of write-offs compared to the levet of frade
receivables. These historical loss expeclations are adjusted for cument and forward-looking information where it is
identified to be significant. The Group considers facters such as national econormic outlooks and bankruptey rates of the
cauntries in which its goods are sold to be the most retevant factors, Where the impact of these is assessed as significant,
the historical loss expectations are amended accordingly.

The Group considers credit risk to have significantly increased for debls aged 180 days or over and expects thase cebls
to be provided forin full. Where the Group holds insurance or has a legal right of offset with debtors who are also
creditors, the loss expectahon is applied only to the extent of the uninsured or net exposure,

Trade receivables are wiitten off whar there is no reasonable expectation of recovary, indicators of which may include
the failure of the debtor to engage in a payment plan, and failure o make contractual payments within 180 days past
due.

The maximum exposure to credi risk for tfrade and other receivables at the reporting date by gecgraphic region of
ongIn was!

~Cansahdared Sroup

2023 2022

£m I

UK 60% 408
Eurcpe & Alfrica 398 385
The Amencas 216 230
Asia Pacific ) o o 370 373
e 1,593 1,594

Trade receivables can be analysed as follows:

Comolicnied Group

2023 W
£m £
Not overdue 1,144 1,134
Up tc one month past due 124 141
Between one and lwo months past due 30 31
Between two and lhree monihs past due 10 12
tore than three months past due 30 30
Bxpected los provision ke )
' 1,330 1,321
Trade receivables are stated net of the following expected loss provision:
""" T S T - Consoldated Giaup.
2023 20T
£m L
Opening balance 27 24
Increcse charged to the Income statement 7 é
Amounis releqsed (2} {4)
Amounts writlen olf (2} {1
Effect of movernents in foreign exchange {2} 2
Closing balance ) 28 27

No trade receivables were written off directly to the income statement in either year.

&

=
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 14 September 2023

28. Financial instruments continved
The geographical and business ine complexity of the Group. combined with the fact that expected credit loss
assessments are all performed locally, means thal it is not practicable to present further analysis of credit losses.

in relation to other receivables not forming part of trade receivables, a similar approach has been faken fo assess
expected credit losses. No significant expected credit loss has been identified.

The directors consider that the carrying amount of tfrade and other receivables approximates fair value.

Cash and cash equivatents

Banking relationships are generally selected for their credit status, global reach and their ability to meet the businesses’
day-to-day banking requirements, The credit risk of these institutions are monitored on a continuing basis. Operating

procedures including choice of bank, opening of bank accounts and repatriation of funds must be agreed with Group
Trecisury. The Group has not recorded impairments against cash or cash equivalants, nor have any recoverability 1ssues

been identified with such balances.

h) tiquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting its obligations associated with its financial

liabilities as they fall due. Group Treasury is responsible for manitodng and managing liquidity and ensures that the Group
has sufficient headrcom in s commitied facilities to meet unforeseen or abnormal requirements. The Group also has
access to uncommitted facilities to assist with short-term funding requirements.

Available headroom is monitored vic the use of delailed cash flow forecasts prepared by each business, which are

reviewed at least quarterly, or more often, as reguired. Actual results are compared to budget and forecast each
period, and varionces investigated and explained. Particular focus is given to management of working capital.

The Board's treasury policies are in place to maintain o strong capital base and manage the Group's balance sheet to
ensure long-term financial stability. This includes maintaining access to significant total iquidity comprised of both net

cash and undrawn committed credit facilities. These policies are the basis for investor, creditor and markel confidence
and enable the successful development of the business.

Details of the Group's borrowing facilities are given insection i) on page 62.

The following table analyses the contractual undiscounted cash flows relating to financial liabilities at the balance sheet

date and compares thern to carrying amounts:

Conschdotect Grovp

- 2023
Due Due Due
between between between
Due within & months Tand 2 2and 5 Due after Coniracted Carrying
émonths  ang 1 year years yedrs Syears amecunt amount
Mo £m £ £m £m £m £m £m
Non-derivalive financial liabilifies
Trade and other payables 22 {2.409) (68) - - - (2,477) (2477
Secured Iobans 21 - 4] - - - (n m
Unsecured ioans and overdrafis 21 {80) (101} (13) (30} (440) (484) (562)
Lease liakiities 27 {(199) (212) (409) (1.065) {2.100) (3.985) {3,1%0)
Deferred consideration 23 {2) {1} (3} - - {8) (6)
Derivalive financial liabilities
— Currency derivatives {excluding cross- (4) - - (3) - (N {10)
currency swaps) (net payments)
- Commeodity derivatives {net payments) ) (8 m - - (52) (52)
Total financial fiabilities (2,740) (388) {426} (1,098) (2,540) (7.212) (6,298)
bebwesen
Due w'rin Fand
£ rmonths PRI
Hote i £
Nen-derivalive financial liabilities
Trada and other payables 22 [2.659) 28) - - (2,687} {2,687}
Secured loans 21 - ) 1) - 2) 12)
Unsecured loans and overdrafts 21 1153} {17) {103} 131) {470) {774} {636}
Lease liobilties 27 1200} 1217} {413} 11,127} [2.404) {4,361} {3.275)
Deferred consideration 23 (4) 112) ) 13) - 120} 120}
Derivative financial liabilities
Currency derivatives [excluding cross- 5] 12) () (18} 122)
currency swaps) (net payments)
Commadily derivalives (net paymenis) 170 I 12} - - {173) {173
Interest rate derivatives (net paymenls} o (3) - - - - 161
Tolal financial liabiiiies (3,204} {278] {521] ey (2874)  [8.038)  [6818]
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

28. Financial instruments continued

The above tabies do not include forecast data for liabilities which may be incurred in the future but which were not
contracted at 16 September 2023.

The principal reasons tor differences between carrying values and contractual undiscounted cash flows are coupon
payments on the fixed rate debt to which the Group is already committed. future interest payments on the Group's
lease liabilities, and cash flows on derivative financial instruments which are not aligned with their fair value.

i) Borrowing facilities
The Group has substantial borowing facilifies available to it The undrawn committed facilities available at 16
September 2023, in respect of which all conditions precedent have been met, amounted to £1,516m (2022 - £1,567m):

= Swo-up-')-

. w2
Facility Drawn Undrawn Feamily Draywr LNk
£m £m £m £ i £m
Committed Revolving Credit Facility 1,500 - 1,500 1,500 - 1,500
Public Bond due in 2034 330 3%0 - 390 3%0 -
1S private placement a1 81 - 87 87
Howvo 29 15 14 77 12 45
Other o 3 1 2 10 8 2
2,003 487 1,516 2.064 497 1,567
Uncommitted facilities available at 14 September 2023 were:
T o . Cansonated C:rfup T '____ e e e
2023 202%
Facility Drawn Undrawn Facilly Drawr undraaes
£m £m £m £m i £m
Novo 115 50 65 188 9 &9
AzUCCerc a3 1 32 36 2 34
Ching 35 - 35 32 - 39
Moneymarket nes - - - 100 160
Other o 180 25 5 & s 122
363 74 287 525 141 384

In addition to the above facililies there are also £14%m {2022 - £114m) of undrawn and available credit lines for the
purposes of issuing letters of credit and guarantees in the normal course of business.

The Group has issued a public bond of £400m due in 2034, Included are deferred financing costs totalling £10m which
have been capitalised against the bond and are to be amortised overits term.

Uncommitted bank borrowing fadilities are normally reaffirmed by ihe banks annually, allhough they can be withdrawn
at any ime.

Refer to note 10 for details of the Group's capital commitments and to note 27 for a summary of the Group's
guarantees.

J) Capital management

The capital structure of the Group is presented in the consolidated balance sheet. For the purpose of the Group's
capital management, capital includes issued capital and ol other reserves attribulable to equity shareholders, totalling
£8,195m (2022 - £8.1046m ). The consalidated statement of changes in equity provides details on eqguity and note 21
provides details of loans and overdrafts. Short- and medium-term funding requirements are provided by a variety of loan
and overdraft facilities, both committed and uncommitted, with & range of counlerparties and maturities. Longer-term
funding is sourced from the 2034 Public Bond, the private placement noles and committed syndicated loan facilities.

The Board's policy is to maintain a strong capital base se as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to
enable successful future development of the business. The Board monitors return on capital by division and defermines
the overall level of dividends payable to shareholders.

Fram time to time the frustee of the ABF Employees Share Ownership Plan Trust purchases ABF shares in the market to
safisfy awards under the Group's incentive plans. Once purchased, shares are not sold back into the market, The Group
does not have a defined share buy back plan.

There were no changes to the Group's approach to capital management during the year. Neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries is subject to extemally-imposed capital reguirements.

29. Contingencies
Litgation and other proceedings against the Group are nol considered material in the context of thaese financial
statements.

Wnere Group companies enter into financial guarantee confracts to guarantee the indebtedness of other Group
companies. the Group considers these to be insurance arrangements and has elected fo account for them as suchin
accardance with IFRS 4. In this respect, the guarantee confract is treated as a contingent liability until such fime as it
becomes probable that the relevant Group company issuing the guarantee will be required fo make a payment under
the guoranfee.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 16 Seplember 2023

29. Contingencies continued

As at 14 September 2023, Group companies have provided guarantees in the ordinary course of business amounting to
£1.724m (2022 - £1.754m).

In 2021, o Thai court r'uled in favour of ABF's Ovaltine business in Thailand in a legal action it brought against one ofifs
suppliers in respect of a contractual dispute. The court concluded that between 2009 and 20192 the supplier had
avarcharged Ovaltine Thailand and should pay compensation of 2.2 billion Thai baht (£50m: 2022 - £52m). The relevant
contractual relationship between the Group and its supplier terminated at the end of 2019. The Group has not yet
recorded an asset in respect of this matter os the defendant is appealing fhe judgment. Since the balance sheel date,
a proclamation from the appeal court in Thailend has been made regarding the appeatl by the detendant that reverses
the previous judgement that was given in 2021. We are currently reviewing next steps with legal counsel.

30. Related parties

The Group has a controlling sharehotder relationship with its subsidiary company, ABF, with the frustees of the Gartield
Weston Foundation and with certain other individuals who hold shares in the Company. Further details of the controlling
shareholder relationship are included in note 32, The Group has a related party relationship with its associates and joint
ventures (see note 32} and with its directors. In the course of normal operations, related pary fransactions entered into
by the Group have been contracted on an arm’'s length basis.

Material fransactions and year end balances with related parties were as follows:

Sun 2023

note £000 £000
Dividends paid by Witfington Investrmentis Limited and Associated British Foods plc {"ABF]
and received in ¢ beneficial capacity y:
fi} trustees of the Garfield Weston Foundalion and their close family | 15,964 16,217
lii) directors of Witlinglon nvestments Limiled who are not frustees of the Foundation and

their close famity 2 3,405 3,334

Sates to and commissions paid to companies with common key management persennel on
normal trading tenms 3 2912 16,891
Armounts due from companies with common key managemenl personnal 3 1,028 2.898
Sales to join! ventures on nomnal frading ferms 40,645 54111
Sailes to associates on normal rading terms 88,753 73,360
Purchases from joint veritures on normal frading ferms A82,267 436,467
Purchases rom associates on normal frading terms 97.844 13,879
Amounts due from joint ventures 45,065 48,655
Arnounts due from associates 9.045 2,451
Amounts due 1o joint ventures 17,609 30214
Amounts due to assaciates 7.161 594
Provision for doubtful delbots on amounts due from associates {300} 1300}

1. Te Ga-jeld wes on Foundahon {the Foundarion'] is an Enghsn chanrable trust es-ablished in 1958 by ~he late W. Garficld Weston, The
Faundation nas no direct interest in the Company. but as at 14 Seoterrber 2023 was tae boncficial awner of 683,073 shares {2022 - 683.073
shares) in Wiltington Investments Limited reprosenting 79.2% (2022 - 79.2%] of the Company’s issued share capital and is, therelora, ne
Company's ultimate cantrolling parly At 16 Sentember 2023 trustees of the Foundahon comprised nine grandchildren o tha late W, Garield
Weston of whom five are children of tas e Gary H Weston

2. Detaifs af the directors of Withngton Investmans Limited are given onpaage 7. Direclon’ centuneration is disclosed in1ac 5.

3. Tne company wirn cammon kay management pesonnel s the Geoarge wWeston Limited grouo. in Canada.

Arnounts due from joint ventures include £32m (2022 - £29m) of finance lease receivables (see note 14}, The remainder
of the balance is rading balances. All but £4m {2022 - £4m) of the finance lease receivables are nan-current.

Details of the Group's subsidiary undertakings, joint ventures and associates are set out in note 32.

31. Post Balance Sheet Event

On 12 December 2023 the Directars declared an Interim dividend, The dividend of £86.50, total value of £74.6m, wili be
paid on 23 January 2024 to shareholders on the register on 12 December 2023.

32. Group entities

Control of the Group

The trustees of the Garfield Weston Foundation ('the Foundation')are coni-elling shareholders of the Company. Certain
ather individuals, including certain members of the Weston family who hold shares in the Company are. under the Listing
Rules. freated as acting in concert wilh the trustees of the Foundafion and are therefore also freated as controlling
shareheolders of the Company.
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for the 52 weeks ended 146 Seplermber 2023

32. Group entilies continuved
Subsidiary undertakings

A list of the Group's subsidiaries as af 146 September 2023 is given below.

ABF announced a share buyback programme of £500m in November 2022, In the financial year, ABF purchased 23.7
mitlion ABF shares for £448m and the shares bought back were cancelled. Since the financicl year end, a further 2.8
million ABF shares were purchasaed,. completing the tolal £500m buyback programme, ABF has anncounced the
continuation ot a buyback programme, targefing an additional ameount of £500m over the next 12 months.

Given ihe Groun owns 56.2% of the share capital of ABF plc at 16 September 2023, the effective ownership of
subsidianes is 56.2% except where ownership percentages are shown. These percentages give the Group's ultimate
interest and therefore allow for situations where subsidiaries are owned by partly owned intermediate subsidiaries. Where
subsidiaries have different classes of shares, this is largely for historical reasons and the effective percentage holdings
given represent both the Group's voting rights and equity holding. All subsidiaries are consolidated in the Group's
financial statements. All subsidiaries with an effective holding of less than 50% are subsidiaries of ABF plc. Since ABF plc
has greater than 50% effective ownership of these subsidiaries, and the Group owns 56.2% of the share capital of ABF

ple, the Group has effective control of these subsidicries.

¢ effechie halding

Suzsidigry Lhdsrtaengs I nol 56.2%

Subsichory undertakings

United Kingdom

weston Centre, 10 Grosvenaor Sfreat, Londan,
WIK 4QY, Unifed Kingdom

AB. Explorahon Limied

ABF. Holdings Limited

AB.F. Nominges Limited

AB.F. Properties Limited

AB AQr Limited

AB Foods Australion Limited

AB Ingredients Limited

AB Maouri {UK) Limited

AB Mawri China Limted

AB Maur Europe Lirmited

AB Sugar China Holdings Limited
AB Sugar China Lirmited

AB Sugar China North Lirited
AB Sugar Limited

AB Technology Limited

AB World Foods (Holdings) Limited
AB World Foods Limited

ABF [No. 1) Limitecd

ABF [No. 2) Limited

ABF {No. 3) timited

ABF BRL Finanice Lid

ABF Energy Limitad

ABF Europe Finance Limited
ABF European Holdings Limited
ABF Finance Limited

ABF Food Tech Investments Limited
ABF Funding

ABF Grain Products Limilted
ABF Green Park Limited

ABF Grocery Limited

ABF HEK Fincnce Limited

ABF Ingredients Limited

ABF Investments plc

ABRF Investrmenis {No.2) Limited
ABF Japan Limited

ABF XN Finance Limited

ABF Oversens Limied

ABF plz

ABF P iimited

ABF LK Fincnce Lirmited

ABF US Holdings Limited

ARF I8W Finance Limited

ABN {Overseqs) Limited

ABNA Feed Company Limited
ABNA, Limited

hHA Wittingten Investments  Financial Statements 2023

Aceturn (UK} Lmited [previously Alied
Technical Cenfre Limited)

Agrlines Limited

Alled Bokeries Limited

Alied Grain (Scofland} Limited
Allied Grain (South} Limited

Alied Grain {Southem) Limited
Allied Grain Limited

Allied Mills {No. 1) Limited

Allied Mills Limited

Adlinson Lirmited

Associated British Foods Pension Trustees
Lirmitaal

Atrium 100 Properties Limited
Atnum 100 Stores Holdings Limited
Adrivm 100 Stores Limited

B.E. International Foods Limited
Banbury Agriculture Limited

British Sugar {Overseas) Limited
British Sugar plc

B3O (China) Limited

Cereci Industries Limited

Cereform Limited

Dairy Consulfing Limited

Dawvjor Foad Limited

Dorset Cereals Limited

Easthow Securfies Limited
Elsenham Quality Foods Limited
Fishers Feeds Limited

Fishers Seeds & Grain Limited

Food Investments Limited

G. Costar (Holdings) Limited

G. Costa and Company Limited
Germain's [UK.) Limited
Graencoot Limited

Greencoat Farm Limited

H 5 Limited

llovo Sugar Afnca Holdings Limited
John K. King & Sons Limiled
Kingsgate Food Ingredients Limited
KO2 Limited

LeafTC Limited

raur Products Limited
Mounisfield Park Finance Limiled
Natural Velcare Lmiled

Nutition Trading (Interationaly Lmited
Nutiition Trading Limited

Patak (Spices) Limited



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

tor the 52 weeks ended 16 Seplember 2023

32. Group enltities continued

" eflestive halaingg

¥ affort er holding

S oy unaerokrigs ¢ ol 54 29 Subsichiary_andetckings it rii 66 2%
Patak Food Limited Northern Ireland
Padak's Breads Limited ! Qoﬂegg Piace North, Beffast, BT 668G,
Potak's Foods 2008 Lirited Unifed Kingdom
Premier Nutrition Products Limited i)iTjSQI\:?'ﬂ’:IC‘J;;”eRiO T -
; ' . it 4. e o, Randafstowrn, Co,
EEZSZH(SUT.?E;E ged Company Anlrim, 8141 2F8. Ur_wrc_\d Kingdom
Prirnark Aushic Limited Jordan Bros. (N1 Limited .
Brimark Mode Limiled N'utnhon Serylces fInternational) Limited
Primark Pension Administration Services Limited Vistavel Limited
{dissolved 24 Ociober 2023 Scotland
Prirmark Slares Lirited 32 Kelvin Avenue, Hilington Park, Glasgow,
Primary Diets Limited Gj?, ALt Umbd ngdom .
Primary Nyfition Limited MNaticnal Mik Laborafenes Limited
Pro-Active Nutniion Lmited JSQ G""’?m”m Road, Giasgow. G22 7UF.
R. Twining and Company Limited igfg;giizrummd
Reflex Nutrition Limited )
Roses Nutriion Lid Miller S_omuei LLP, RWF House,
Seedcote Syslems Limited f}r?f:giﬁ SZ‘GOC: Glasaow G295
gzgzmggrsz%czégiﬁes Limited {dissclved 24 Korrwcuy Fo%ds’LimHed
) . Korway Holdings Limited
Shep-Fair PronuF:Is L[mf#EO Patak's Chited Foods Limited
R PafaksFoenFoodstmiled
suncies sokeresLiriec Weston Conte. 10 Gresvenr Seet, London
The Bokery School Lmited {dissolved 3 October e ’ ’
2003 WK 403Y, Unrtgd Krngdom
The Bilingfon Food Group Limited C\!nlon Farrns Lirnited 100%
Thie Hulhie Grown Sugar Company Lirited (dissolved 17 Sepember 2023) .
The Jordans & Ryvita Company Limited Qeorge Wesifon bmited {do‘rmum! . 1007
The Nafural Sweelness Cornpany Linrited R|chmonq Hill H.Ot(l-:-\ [Cperations) Limited 100%
The Roadmap Conmpany Limited W‘EN‘DL Offices Limited o 85%;
The Silver Spocn Company Limited Wﬁ‘r{mgton Investments (Ahren] L.\rﬂlned 100%
Tip Top Bakeries Linited Ev‘\dﬂﬁmgfoa Imvestments (BPA I} Limited 100%
onman
Irdent Feeds Limited withngton Investmants (BSPF} Limited [dormant] 100%
Twining Crosfield & Co. Limited Willinglon Investments (B Il Limited |domant) 100%
mv?g-?g;:?zg:';;g) lmited ;r;iﬂimg‘rog Investments (Careplaces) mited 100%
: ormein
W. Jordan (Cereals] Limited witlington Investments (FAPI) Limited {dormant) 100%
werehaom Gravel Cornpany Limited (The) Wittington Investmenis (FAP! II) Lirmited 100%
Westrnill Foods Limited {dormant]
Weston Biscuit Company Limited (The) wittngton Investments (FIPL) Limited [dormnant) 100%
Weston Foods Limited wittington Investrments (Next Wave) Umited 100%,
Weston Research Laboratories Limitec {clormant)
Wworldwing Investments Limited wittington Invesiments (Properties) Limiled 100%
Vermon House, 40 New North Rocd, wittington Investrments {Reof) Limited (dormrnarnt) 10086
Huddersficld, West Yorkshire HDT 5LS, United wittinglon Investments (Richrmond Hill Hotel) 100%
Kingdom Limited
Proper Nutty Umited Wittington Invesiments Finance Limited 100%
Fox Tabol House. Unit 4 Groonways Business 194 Toftenhom Court Rood, London, Wi 7LQ
Park, Belinger Clase, Chippenharn. Willshire, Heal & Son Limited 100%
SNI5 BN Uniled Kingdom Heal's Holdings Linited 100%
:O;‘gmgl {C'A"ng;?s;ciﬁ;fseﬁm'ted Heal's Pension Fund Trustees Limiled 100%
ational Liv i o i
Noliqmo\ Milk Records Trustee Company Limited :zg:;ﬁ; 0) Limited 128{;0)
Mordic. Star Ui 181 Piccadily, London, WIA IER
Fo& n. Limited 100%
Fortnum B Mason (Export) Limiled 100%
Fornum and kMasan {London) Limitec 1007
Forfnum and rason Hospitality Limited 100%
Forinum & masen Ple 1005
Fortinums Lmiled 100%

wittington Investments  finoncial Sra-emeants 2023
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32. Group entities continued

% eflechve holding

Subssihery ungsrok ngs el 58 2%

United Kingdom — Non ABF - audif exempt

The following subsidiary companias of Witlington Investimentls
limited (note tha! wittington Investments [BSP] Limited is o
subsidiary of withtngton Invesiments (Finonce) Limited] have
availed themselves of the audit exemptlion for subsidiary
company under s479A-479C of the Companies Act 2006 for the
fnanciol year ending Septembzer 16th 2023,

As the parent company [or uliimate parent company in the
case of wittington  Investments (B3P} Limited), Witlington
Investments Limited guarantees all oulstanding labilities to
which each subsidiary company listed below is subject as at
Septernber 16th 2023:

Weston Cenfre, 10 Grosvencr Stroct, London,
WK 4QY, United Kingdom

wittington Investments {(Apaollo) Limited 1007
{Company number 0863/783)
Avery Row Management Limited 100%
(Company number 11397508)
Listergate Student Holdings Limited 1005
[Company number 1128%745)
Howarrd Investments Limited 100%
{Company number 03729125}
WILH {investments) Limited 100%
(Company number 04224010}
Wittington Invesiments [Bestport) Limited 100%
[Company numier 05724405}
Wittington Investments (B3P VIl Limited 100%
[Company numier 05583804)
Wittington Investments [BSP) Limited 100%
|Company nurmiber 10122727}
Wwittington investments [Developments) Limited 100%
[Company numtser 07721700]
wittinglon investmenls [Dunedin lll) Limited 100%
|Comipany number 08307734)
wittingion Investments [Dunedint Limited 100%
[Company number 05875249)
Wittingion Investrnenls {Graphite) Limited 100%
{Company number 084843807)
wittington Investmenls (Harbourvest] Limited 100%
{Company number 06632271)
wittington Investments (OCP) Grmited 100%
ICompany number 04432285)
withngton Investments PEF (Euro) Limited 100%
ICompany number 0833601 5]
wittington Iinvestments PEF [GBP) Limited 100%
IComporny number 081117%97]
wittington Investments PEF [USD) Limited 100%
[Compary number 05094395)
wittington Investments (Private Equily) Limiled 1007
({Company number 09273685)
wittington Investment [Sand Afre} Lirmited 100%
[Company number 04415374}
wittington Investrments (VO1} Limited 100%
ICompaony number 045746342)
wittington Investments [WHEB) Limited 100%
[Company number 06574301)
Wittington Investments [WPX) Limited 100%

[Company nurmber 06343087)

Argentina
Marisco! Antonio José de Sucre 632 - 2nct Floor,
Buenos Aires 1428, Argentina

AB Maurt Hispanoamerica S.A.
Surgres 5.A [in fiquidation)
Compania Argentina De Levaduras 5.A1.C,

3 Wittington Investments  Finacial Sratomonts 2023

Subachary cnderzangs

Australia

Builchng A, Level 2, 11 Talavera Road,
North Rycle, NSW 2113 Ausiralia

AB Maur Overseas Holdings Limited

AB mauri Pakisian Py Limited

AB Maurn ROW Holdings Ply Limited

AB Mawri South America Pty Limited

AB Mawr South West Asia Ply Limited

AB Maur Technology & Development Pty
Limited

AB maur Technaology Pty Limited

AB World Foods Pty Lid

Anzchem Pty Limited

AusPac Ingredients Pty Lid

CCD Anmal Hedlth Phy Ltd

Dagan Trading Pry. Uid

Food Investments Pty, Limited

George Weston Foods [Victora) Pty Lid
George Weston Foods Limited
Indonesian Yeast Company Pty Limited
Maurl Fermentation Brazil Pty Limited
Mauri Fermentation Chile Py Limited
Maur Fermentation China Pty Limited
Maurn Fermentahon Indra Py Limited
Maurl Fermeniation Indonesio Pty Limited
mMaurl Fermentation Maloysia Pty Limited
raur Fermentahon Philippines Pty Limited
Maun Fermentation vietnam Pty Limited
Mauri Yeast Australic Ply Limited

N&C Enferprises Py Lid

Semol lIngredients Pty Limited

The Jordons and Ryvita Company Australio Py
Lid

Yumi's Guality Foods Py Ltd

35-37 South Corporafe Avenue, Rowwille,
VIC 3178, Australic

AB Food & Beverages Australia Pty, Lirmiled
170 South Gippsiand Highway, Dondenong
VIC 3175, Australio

ABF Wynyard Park Lmited Partnership
Austiia

Wollzoile 112, OG. 1010 Vienng, Austia
Primark Ausina Lict & Co KG
Krottenhachstrasse, 82-88/5ig 1/Top 3. 1190
Vienna, Austric

Nutrilabs GmibH

Buﬁglddesh

tevel 13 Shanta Westermn Tower,

Bir Ultamn mir Showkai Road, 186 Tejgaon /A,
Dhaka 1208, Bangiadash

Twinings Ovalline Bangladesh Limited

< olfoctive ho'oing
frat 54 2%
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32. Group entities continued

i }:‘ fJ”‘ Nz b

Subaicry yniddanlasngs

v ofeave nakang
if not 55.7%

Stbvddiary Loderlakings

Belgium

Indlusifepark 2d, 9820 Merelbeke, Belgum

AB Maur Belgium NY

Chaussee de fa Huipe 177720, 1170 Bruxolios,
Belgium

Primark SA

Brazil

Avenida Tieté, L-233 Barranca do Rio Tiefé,

City of Podernewras, State of Sgo Paulo,

(CEP 17.280-000, Braizil

AB Brasil Industia € Comércio de Alimentos Lida
Alomeda Madeira 328, 20th Floor, Room 2005,
Alphawville - Baruer, Soo Pauio (06454-010, Brazil
AR Enzinncss Brasil Comerciol Lida

Avenicia Dra. Ruth Cardoso, n.® 7,221, 11° Floar,
Room 1.101 {parte). Condorminio Edificio
Birrnann 21, Pinheiros, CEP 05425-902, City of
S&o Paulo, State of SGo Paule, Bragl

AB Vista Brosil Comércin De Alimentacto
Animal Lida
Canada
Bloke, Cassels & Grayvdon LLP, 199 Bay Sfrect,
Suite 4000, Toronio, Ontario M3L 1A, Canada
AB Mauri (Canada) Limited

Chile
Miraffores Stroot No. 222, 28 Floor, Santiago.
Chife
Calsa Chile Inversiones Limitada
China

Ne. 1 Tongcheng Sireet, A Cheng Dishict.
Harbun, Hellongjiang Province, China

AB {Harbin} Food Ingredients Co.. Lid. (in
licuiciction)

Morth Huang He Rood, Rudong

MNow Economic Development Zong,

Nertong City, Jiaongsy Province, China

AB Agri Animal Nutriion (Mantong) Co ., Lid

AB Agr Animal Nutrition (Rudong) Co., Lid,

No 28. South Shunjin Road, Yintai Disfrict,
Tongchuan, Shaanxi Province, Ching

AB Agri Animal Nutdtion {Shaanxi) Co., Lid.
Room 7-1068, No. 68 Shijiv Hubel Road, Chunxi
Street, Gaochun District, Nanjng City, fiangsu
Province, China

AB Agn Pumeixin Jech {Jiangsu) Co. Ld.
Chuangrin Road, Tonggu Industry Zone. Sandu
Town, Tonggu County, Jicngxi Province, Ching
AB Agn Pumeixin Tech (Jiangsxi) Co. Lid.

Room 2802, Raffles City Changning,

No. 1189 Changning Road, Changning District,
Shanghot. 200051, China

AB Enzymes Trading (Shanghai) Co., Lid

Room 2803, Raffles City Changning,

No. 1189 Changring Road, Changning Distict,
Shanghet, 200051, Ching

ABNA Management [Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

ABMNA Trading {Shanghai] Co.. Lid

Room 2906 Roffles Cty Changning,

No. 1189 Changning Road, Changning District,
Shanghar 200051, Chino

Associcted Bniish Foods Holdings [China) Co.. Ltd
Unit 00&, Raorn 401, Floor 4, Building |, Na. 15
Guanghua Rood, Chaoyong Distict, Befjing,
Ching

AB Maur [Beifing) Food Sales and

Markeling Company Limited

Building 1. 35 ChiFong Road | Yangpu District,
Shanghai 200092, Ching

AB Maur Foods (Shanghai) Cormpany Lmited 51%
848 Yongpu Road. Pujiang Town,

Minhang District, Shanghai 201112, Ching
ABNA {Shanghal} Feed Co., Lid.

14 Juhal Road, Jinghal Development Zone,
Ticirjin, Chinag

ABNA (Ticjin} Feed Co, Lid

Shu Shan Modern industricl Zone of Shou
Caunty, Huainan City, Anhul Province, Ching
ABNA Feed {(Anhul) Co.. Lid.

145 Xincheng Road, Tengao Econormic
Developrment Zonc, Anshon,

Licioning 114225, Ching

ABNA Feed (Liconing) Co. Lid,

17 Xtangyang Streetl, Tu Towrnsfup, Chayou
Qiana. fner Mongola, Ching

Botian Sugar Industry [Chayou Qiangi} Ce., Lid.
No. T Bolion Road, Economic Developmeni
Zone, Zhanghsi Caunly, Zhangjiakou Cify,
Hebei Province, China

Bolian Sugar Industry [Zhangbei) Co., Lid.
Room 1110, No.368. Changjiang Road,
MNangang Concenlrafed Districl, Economic
Development Zone, Harbin, China

Botian Sugar Industry Co., Lid.

1 industrial Narth Street, Zhangjiakou, ZThangbei
County, Hebel Province, Ching

Hebei taun Food Co., Lid.

8 Lancun Road, Economic and Techaical
Development Zone, Minhang, Shanghoi
200245. China

Shanghai AB Food & Beverages Co., Lid

No. 68-1. Shuanglong Road, Fushan Distict,
Yantoi City, Shandong Province, Ching

Yantai Maun Yeast Co., Lid. S

Colombia

Cro 354 34A-64, Palmira, Valle, Colombia

Fleischmann Foods 5.A. L

Czech Republic

Nadrazni 523, 349 01 Stittro, Czech Repubiic

Bodlit Tachow sr.o.

Policidlium, No Pofici 107930, Prague 1, 11000,

Czoch Republic

Primark Prodejny s.r.0.

Denmark

Skjernvef 42, Trasfrup, 6920 Videbaek, Denmark

AB Neo A/S

Middeifartveg 77. Barng 5466 Asperup,

Denmcrk

Cowconnect ApS -

Ecvador

Medaordo Angel Siva 13 y Panamd, Manzana

12, Bl Recreo, Hoy Aifara, Durdn, Guoyas,

Ecuador

ABCALSASA. -

Eswatimi

Uhombo Sugar Limifed, Oid Main Road,

Big Bend, Eswaliry

Bar Circle Ranch Lirmited 347

llove Swaziland bmiled 34%

Maoyeni Ranch Limited 34%

Ubomibo Sugar Limiled 34%
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Sulzadicny underckngs

o bnot e 2%

Suaschany undetrakings

el

el Da 2%

Finland

Tykkiméentic 150 PO Box 26), Rojarndki,
FI-35200, Finland

AB Enzymes Oy

Tykkimddontic 150 (PO Box 57]. Rofamake,
F-15201, Finfand

Erzymes Leasing Finland Oy

Kaskelontie 19 B, Espoo, FR02920, Finiand
Almeincs Research Oy

AB Vista Finlond Oy

France

40/42, avenue Georges Pompidow, 69003,
& Lyon, France

AB Maur France

25 Rue Anatole France, 92300 Levallois-Fomet,
france

Twinings & Co SAS

11 Rue de Milan, 75009, Pars, France

ABFI France SAS

Centre Commercial Regional Créteil Solei,
Niveau 3, 101 Avenue du Général do Gaulie,
Q4000, Créteil, France

Primark France SAS

845 Chemin du Valion du maire, 13240,
Sentornes les Vallons, France

SPI Pharma SAS

IAE Via Curopa, 3ruc of Athenes, 34350 Vendrss,
france

Fytaria Croup

Fytexia

Germany

Foldbeorgstrasse 78, 64293, Darmstadi. Germany
AB Enzymes GmibH

Schauvenburgersirasse 116, 24118, Kiol, Gomany
ICFN AG

wanclisheker Zolsfrasse 59, 22041,

Hamburg, Germany

ABF Deutschiand Holdings GrnbH

Ohly GrbH

Ohly Grundbesitz GmbH

Rheinische Presshefe- und Spritwerke GrmioH
Kenncdyplatz 2, 45127, Essen, Germony

Primark Mode Lid, & Co. KG

Primark Property GmibH

Housinger  Strosse 4-8,
Germany

Vilal Solutions GmibH
wWestencdstrasse 28, 60325, Frankfurf am Main,
Gormany

waonder GimbH

Marie-Kahle-Aftee 2, 0-53113, Bonn, Germany
Westrmill Foocls Eurqpe Gr__r)bH

40764,

Langenfeld.

Greece
28, Dimitricw Soulsoy Str. Afhens, GR 115 21,
Creece

PSH Teal Single Member $.A.

Guernsey

Dorey Courf, Admiral Park, 51, Peter Port,
Gy 2HT. Guernsey

Talisman Guernsey Limited

&8 Wittington Investments Finoncicd Sratements 2023

Hong Kong

5/F. Manulife Ploce, 348 Kwun Tong Road,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

Associated British Foods Asia Pacific
Holdlings Limiled

Hungary

Kdarchyi utca 12, 3. em.. Budapest, 1053, Hungary
Primark Uzlelek Karldtoll Feleldsségu Tarsasag
{Prirnark Uzetek Kit )

India

"218 & #2719, Bommasaondra — hgan Link Rood,
Anekal Taluk, Bangaolore, 560105, Indic

AB paurt Indio Private Limited

First Floor, Regent Sunny Sicle, 80 FI Road, 8th
Block. Koramangaoia Bengalury, Kamatako,
560030, India

SPi Specialties Pharma Private Limited

G3/41, New Budge Budge Trunk Road, Oid
Dokghar, Kolkala, wWest Bengal, 700141, india

Twinings Private Limited
Indonesia

wisma GKBI L3P, Surte 3901, No.28 Ji. Jend.
Sudirman, Jokorta . Indonesia

Irefand

47 Mary Street. Dublin 1. frefand
Abdole Finance Limiled

Primark Holdings Unlimited Company
Primarrk Pension Trustees Limited

1 Stokes Pioce, Si. Stephen's Groen, Dublin 2,
Ireland

Allied Mills Ireland Limited

unit 5, Hebron Howse, Macdonagh Junction,
Kikenny, RO5TO1Y, freland

Intellync Technology Limited

Arthur Ryan House, 22-24 Pamell Street,
Dubiin ], relond

Frirnark Limited

Primairk Ausiria Limifed

Primeark Mode Limiled

13 Classon House, Dundrum Busingss Park,
Dundrum, Dublin 14, D14X9F9 freland

Nulrdtional Advanced Fonmulas (Ireland) Limited

ltaly

Vicle Monte Nero, 84, 20135, milan, lialy

AB Agn Haly Srl

Via Milana 42, 27045, Casteggio, [Pavial, fialy
AR Mo aly S oA,

ABF ftaly Holdings Srl.

Largo Francesco Richini 2/A, 20122, silan, taly
Primark lHaly S.r.l.

Vig Rizzotfo 46, 41126, Modena (MO), italy
Acetaia fini Modena Sl

Vic Sunclro Pertini 440. 401314, Cavezio (MO,
ficily

Aceturn S.p.A. Socield Benefil

Via Garibaich 84, Magenia, 20013, Milan, Haly
ALP Irmmobiliore Sl

Vicr Grarn Sasse. 33, Corbeltic, 20011, milan, ol
B Naturcl Sl




Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

32. Group entities continued

Zetlechve haldrg

Subsydinary vnderiabirgs nal o8 25 Sablidiar, ndertarg: ifnar 58 25
Malawi Nigeria
ovo House, Churchil Road, Uimie, Maiows 23 Oba Akinjobi Stroct, GRA, lkoja, Lagos, Migeria
Dwangwa Sugar Corporation Limited 437, Twinings Ovalting Nigeria Limited
ltave Sugar (Malawi] plc 43% Pakistan
Malawi Sugar Limited 21KM Forozepur Road, 2 KM Hadyaro Drain, Lahare,
Malcyysm o TTTTTTTTTT Pakistan
Unit 30-01, Level 30, Tower A, Verical Business Suile, AB Maur Pakisian [Private) Limited I
Avenue 3 Bangsar South, No.8, 39200 Jalan Pery
Kerdnchi, Kuola Lumpur, Molaysia Av. Republica de Argenting No., 1227, 21 LG
AB Mauri Mataysia San. Bhd. 29% Cholaca. Callao. Peru
Malta T Callsa Perd 5.A.C.
171 Old Bakery Streef, Valotia, VLT 1455, Malta Philippines
Relax Limited 39% 86 E Rodriguez Jr. Ave., Ugong Norle, QC, 1604,
Mauritius " Paosig Cify, Metro manita, Phifiopmes
10k Floor, Slandard Chartered Tower, AB Food & Beverages Philippines, Inc. 56%
19 Cybercity, Ebene, Maurifius 1201-1202 Pime Land Buiding, Market Strect,
llovo Group Financing Services Modrjgoﬁ Busingss qu‘k AYG’G AIGDENG,
llovo Group Holdings Limited r;ﬂ’gﬁ?&i%;g;jzf;mﬁgmm
llove Group Marketing Services Limited Poiaey =
Eﬁ:ﬂiﬁ’i;gﬁ;ﬁ ;?gjd Premystowa 2, 67-100 Nowa 56, Lubuskie, Poiand

: AB Foodds Poiska Spolka z ograniczona
Mexico odpowiedziainoscia [AB Foods Polska Sp. 2 0.¢.)
g ;’35,%?9 éo fef,o"”;“ 10 15; Jsg’ 8 f“";ef %ﬁcjnﬂ 3 Towarowa 28,00-83% Warsaw, Poland

. Colonia Ltomas de Santa Fo, Delegacion B . '
Cuaimalpa de Morelos, Mexico City, 05348, Mexico Zggg:‘,iﬁigﬁ]ﬁgﬁéﬁ?ﬁ?ﬁ? ISckz[ggSsp, 7.0.0)
ABCALSASA de CV. o Ul Rabowicka 29/3 1, 62020, Sworzed  Jasin,
Avenida Javier Baros Stera 495, piso 7 oficing 07- 102, Poland
gJOQLI ;Gggx;; Alvare Corogdn, Cludad de Menco, k. Twining and Company Spdtka 7 ogianiceona
’ i odpowieddalnascio [R. Twining and Company Sp. z
ACH Foods Mexico, 5. de RL de C. V. 6.0}
Mozambigue Ul Gidwna 34, Bruszczewo, 64-030, Smigic! Poland
KmM75  ENT, Magiang,  Distito de  Manhicao, AB Neo Polska spolka z organiczono
Provineia de Maputo, Mozambigue odpowiadddoinoscia [AB Neo Palska $p. 2.0.0}
Maragra Agucar, S.A, foreviously AB Agri Polska 5p. 2.0.0.
Netherlands Porlugal T
Mijlweg 77, 3316 BE. Dordrecht, Neltherands Avenida Salvador Allende, .t 99, Usboo Qeiras
AB Maun Netherlands B.W. Julido da Barra, Paco de Arcos e Caxias, 2770-157,
AB Maun Netherlands European Hotdings B.v. Paco de Arcos, Porfugal
Foods Infernational Holding B.V. AB Maun Portugal, 5.A. 34%
van Oldenbameveliplaats 36, 3012 AH, Rottordam, Rua Castitho 50, 1250-071, Lisbon, Portugai
MNetherands lojas Primark Portugal - Exploracac, Gesiao e
Primark Fashion BV, Administracac de Espacos Comercials 5.A. »
Primark Netherlands B.Y, Romania
Prrncrrk St BV, District 1, 165 Calea Floreasca, One Tower, 1210
Weena 505, 3013AL Ratterdam, Nethedands Fioor. Bucharesi, Romania ‘
AB Vista Furone BV, Primark Magozine S.R.L [previcusly PSR, Indigo)
722 JS  Acilen  Dinxperiososiicatweg 122, Rwanda o
Netherdands Nyarugenge District, Nyarugenge Sector,
Germains Seed Technology BV, Kigal City, Rwanda
Oude Kerksiraat 55 4878 AK, Etten-Leur, Nelherands lovo Sugar (Kigal) Limited
raoun Technology B, Singapore
Laarderhooghweg 25, 1101 EB amsterdam, 80 Rotinson Road, #02-00, 068898 Singapore
Netherlandk AB Maur Investments [Asia) Ple Lid
westmil Foods Europe B.V. 112 Robinson Road #05-01, 368902 Singapore
New Zealand AB Vista Asict Ple. Lmited
Builcing 3. Level 2. Ceniral Business Pork, 666 Great Slovakia
South Road. Ellersiie. Auckiand 1051, New Jealand Staromesiska 3 811 03 Bratslava - Stare Mesto,
Allied Foods (NZ) Ltd Slavokio
AusPac Ingredients NZ Limiled Primark Slovakia sro. o
George Weston Foods [NZ) Limited Slovenia
57 Forge Road., Siverdale 0932 New Zegland Bletweisova cesta 30, Lublana, 1000, Stovenia
Dad's Pies Lirmited FPrirnark Trgovine trgovsko podjetie. d.o.o.
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% elfeche ho ding
ilno 56 7%

U affechve relding

Subscl oy underlukings Subracdisiey unclsrokings i rot 55 27
South Africa Tanzania

I Mokwe Avenue, Ridgeside, Umhianga Rocks, Hlove Tanzania Limited

Kwazuis Natal, 4320, South Afica Kilombero Sugar Company Limited 9%

CCGS Investments [Pty Limiled

Eost African Supply [Ply) Limited

Glendale Sugar (Phy] Lid

tlovo Distributers (Piy) Limited

I'ovo Sugar (South Africa) Propriefary Limited
liovo Suger Alfica Proprietary Limited

Hiprop [Py} Limited

Lacsa (Phy) Limited 39%
Noodsberg Sugar Company [Py Lid
Reynolds Brothers (Ply] Ltd

S$.A. Sugar Distributors (Pty) Limited

Spain

Caolle Cordenal Marcelo Spincia, 42, 28016,
Madrd, Spain

AB Asucarera loeria $ L Sociedad Uripersonal
AB Vista lbena. 3.L.

Calle Levadura, 5 14710, Vilamubia, Cordoba,
Spain

AB Maur Food, 5.A

AB rMour Spain, S.LUL

ABF ibena Holding S.L.

C/ Esculior Coomonte n°. 2, Enfreplonta.
Benavenle, Zomeorg, Spain

Agroteo SA.

Calle Comunidad de Murcio, Parcela LIE- 1-03
Picitorformo Logistica de Fraga, 22520, Huesca.,
Spain

Alternative Swing Nutrifion, 5.L.

Calle Escoles Pies 4%, Plantc Baja. 08017
Barcetona, Spain

DR Healthcare Espona, S.L.U.

Avienda Yirgen de Montseral, 44 Castellof.
08719, Borcelona. Spoin

Germains Seed Technology, 5 A.

Pioza Pablo Ruiz Pieasso $/N, Torre Picasso,
Piaintcr 37, Madid, Spain

llovo Sugar Espana, S.L.

Gran Via, 32 50 28013, Madid, Spain

Prirnark Tiendas., 5.1.U.

8 2 Calle Via Servicio . 2 CP. 19190 Torjo,
Guadalgjara, Spain

Primark Logistica, S.L. Sociedad Unipersoncl

Sri Lanka

124 Templors Road, Mounf Lavinia, Sn Lanka

AB Maud Laonka (Private) Limited

Sweden

Raizius véig 8, 171 45, Solna. Sweden

Laroclan AB

Switzerland

Fabriksfrasse 10 CH-3176. Meuencgg, Swifzerlaond
Waonder AG
Taiwan
3F-1, No, 181, Sec 4. Nanking £ Rd, Tauypei Cily
104, Taiwan (Province of China)

AB Food and Beverages Tawan, Inc.
Tanzania

Miohwer Mill Office, Kidataw, Kiombero Distnct.
Tanzania

rovo Distillers {Tanzania) Lirmited

30%

70 Wittington Investments Financial 5-a'cmonts 2023

Thailand

PR FHoor, 2535 Sukhumvit Road, Kwaeng
Bangchak, Khet Prakhanong, Bongkok, 10260,
Thailand

4B Food & Beverage:s [Thailand) Lid

ABF Holdlings {Thailaind) Ltd,

I Empire Tower, 24th Floor, Unit 2412-2413,
Soulh Sothom Road, Yonnawa, Satham,
Bargkok, 10120, Thatand

AB World Foods Asia Lid

2297110 Moo 1, Teparak Road, T. Bungsaothong,
A Bangsactong, Samutprokarn, 10540, Thaiond

Jasol Asta Pacific Umied (nliquidation)
Turkey o T
Aksakal Mahalfles, Kavakpinar, Kurme Evier
Ne. 5 Bandirma- Bafikesir, 10245, Turkey

mMauri Maya Sanayi ALS.

United Arab Emirates

Office 604° Jofza LOB 15, Jobol Al Freczone,
Dubcy, PO BOX 17620, United Arab Emirates

AB tMaur Middle East FZE
United States

CT Corporciion Sysiem, 818 West Seventh Street,
Sute 930, Los Angeles CA 90017, United States

AB Maun Food Inc.

The Corporation Trust Company, Corporahon
Trust Center, 1209 Crange Sireef. Wiminglton DE
19801, Unitod Stafes

AB Aogri US, Inc.

AB Enzymes, InC.

AB Vista, Inc.

AB World Foods US, Inc.

ABF North America Corp.

ABF North America Haldings, Inc.
Abitec Corporation

ACH Capital ventures, Inc.

ACH Food Companies. Inc.
ACH Jupiter LLC

BokeGood, LLC

Germains Seed Technology, INc.
PGP International, Inc.

Prirncrk US Corp.

Prosecco Source, LLC

SPI Pharma, inc.

SPI Polyols, LLC

Twinings North America. Inc.

C T Corporafion Sysferm. 155 Federdl Street Sute
700, Boston, MA 02110, United Stales

Primark GCm LLC

C T Corporafion Sysfern, 330 N.Brand  Bivd,
Glendale, Calfornic 1203, Uniled States

PennyPacker, LLC

158 River Road, Unit B, Ciifton, NJ 07074,
United Statcs

Balsamic Express LLC

158 River Road, Unit A, Ciiflan, N1 07014,

Unitcd States

Modena Fine Foods, Inc.

251 Little Falis Drive, Wilmington, DE 19808, United
States

Dylexia Corp.
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Toeflas ve hale

Soahsiciary ynder torgs it not 54 2% Subs oy uncler akings If not 54 2%
Uruguay ABF Ph Limited
Crio. Carlas Antorio Lopoz 7547, [Comparny number 00485887}
Montevideo, Urugucay A.BF. Properties Limited
Levadura Uruguaya S.A. [Company number 00683341)
Venezuela o ) - ABF UK Finance Limiled
Oficings Once 3 (N2 11-3) y Once 4 {N° 1i-4), [Company numier 07267422)
Tome Moayupan, Cenfro Comoercial San Lus, ABF US Holdings Limiled
Av.Principal Urbanizacicn $an Luis, cruce con [Company number 054659249)
Catle Comercio, Carocas Bolivanan Republic ABE 7MW Finance Limited
Of_ Ve”ezue’c’_ (Company number 13485724)
AImeNOf Fle|schmonn, C,AA‘, ABN [Oversecs) Limited
Compania de Almentos Lalinoamericana [Compary number D0145374)
de Venezuela (CALSA] S.A. i L
Afriurn 100 Properties Limited
Ele'fh;]:nOO N T Mink Ko Streel [Company number 04502487)
nit 2. quyen Thi Minh Khai Street, : [
Word 6, Distict 3, Ho Chot Minh City, Vietnam El”rrﬂ”p;?:ﬁﬁﬁ;:?gggg;gfeg
AB Agri Vietnam Company Limifed Alrium 100 Stores Lirmited
Lo Nga Commune, Dinh Quan Distict, Dong [Company number 05007953)
Nai Province. Vielnam T T
AB Maui Vietnam Urited 37 British Sugar [Overseas) Umiled
Iy b .- e {Company number 02400085
rzxf?:lr:c?r]r?bolo Estales. Piol No. 118a Lubomb BSO (China] Limited
. . mbo -
Road, Off Greal North Road, Zorgb;é: ¢ (Compary number 03797608)
e G. Costa (Holdings) Limited
lervo Sugar (Zombia) Limited (Company number 03679738)
nango Fgrm,s PLC . 2% mMountsfield Park Finance Limited
Tukunka Agriculfural Linfed 4% Company rumber 07882348)
Lombia Sugar plc 42,

ABF — audit exempt

In accordance with section 4794 of the Companies Act
2006 (the 'Act’), and subject to compliance with the
requirements of that section including the provision of
statutory guarantee from Associated British Foods plc., the
following subsidiariss are exempt from the requirements of
the Act relating to the audit of individual accounts in
respect of the financial year ended 16 September 2023:

% eflechve holding

Subzsichary undertakings el 5527

AB. Explorction Limited
[Company numker 00487323)
AB Mauri China Limited
[Company number 12109070
AB Mauii Eureope Limited
[Company number 02383738)
AB Sugor Ching Holdings bimited
[Company numier 09468366)
AR Sugaor Ching Limited
[Company numter 09469143)
ABF [No.1] Limited

[Company number 04668120)
ABF (No.2} Limited

[Company number 03369799)
ABF (No .3} Limited
[Company number 00155305)
ABF BRL Fincnce Ltd
[Company number 11001902)
ABF Finance Limited
{Company numtser 04659735
ABF Foad Tech Investrments Limited
{Company number 00172141)
ABF Funding

{Company number 05380813)
ABF HE Finoince Limited
[Company numiser 07741084)
ABF Japan Limited
{Company number 00492278

Twiring Crosfield & Co Lmited
IComparny numizer 00144900
Worldwing Investments Limited
ICompary numizer 02778854)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 16 Sepiember 2023

32. Group entities continued

Joint ventures

A tist of the Group's joint ventures as at 16 September 2023 is given below. All joint ventures are included in the Group's

financial statements using the equity method of accounting.

% rolding

Iainl wenlunGs

“zhalung

Jaint vesres
United Kingdom Room 608, 6th Fioar, 1379, Bocheng Rood, Pudong
Wosion Cenire, 10 Grosvenar Sireef, London, New Distict, Shanghai, China
WK 401y, United Kingdom AB Maur Yihai Kery Food markeling (Shonghai) Co..

Frontier Agriculiure Umiled 0% Hd ‘ _ 0%

Boothmans (Agriculture] Limiled 50% ? Ha Compr C”f”i‘\’f—’ ’ﬂf‘:ﬁfﬁeg@ﬁﬁ» FU;:‘U _?OU'_W

. ! i i
Forward Agronemy Limited 50% Pf(?\;r?égcg;f BRACNT ARG, LIcinar, Aetengiang
- . - - 2, . 4

GFP (A_gﬂ@l_me) Hmited 0% AB Mauri Yihai Kemy (Fu Yu) Yeast Technology Co.,

GH Grain Limited 50% Lt 50%

GH Grain (No. 2) Limited 8% 9Tonggong Road, Shage Village, Nanpu Town,

Grain Harvesters Limited S0% Quangang Areo, Quanzhou, Fuion Province, Ching

Inlracron Limited S0 AB Maurn Yihal Kemy {Quanzhou) Yeast Technology

Nomix Limited 50% Co., Lid. 50%

North Wold Agronomy Limited 50%, Interseciion of Jiaotong Avenue ond Zhoushian

Phoenix Agronomy Limited 509 gc;‘cf}r% Gang District, Zhoukouw, Henan Province,

imi 50% oy

SEYL Limited e : AB nMaur Yihai Kemy (Zhoukou) Yeast Technology

The Agronomy Partnership Limited 50% Ca. Lld. 0%
Berth 36, Test Road, Eastern Docks, Southamplon, Ninsha inclustrial Zana, Machona Tows, Do
Hampshire, SO14 3GG, Unifed Kingdam G‘,;;:ggoz;r.:i‘rovmce’, Ching g fown, Dengguan.

SOuThomprQn Grain Teminal Limited S0 AB Maur Yihai Kery (Dongguan)] feod Co.. Lid 0%
Riverside, Wissingtfon Road, Naviand, Colchester, Fimand T
Essex, C L Uni i . o

ssex COO 4L, United Kingdom Tvkkimdeniie 156 (PO Box 57), Rajoméiki
Anglia Grain Holdings Limited 0% EIN-0520 1. Finlondd
Anglia Giain Services Limited 50% Roal Oy 0%,
Northants Apc, Rushton Road, Keffering. NN14 TFL [ o
tnglang, Uniicd Kingdor 59, Chenins Ju Mok, 635701, Carmon, Derdilly,
Navara Cat Miling Limited 507 France
Unif 8. Burnside Business Park, Bumside Foad, Market synchroni
Brayion, TF9 3UX, United Kingdom ggr(r:m{:::s [ %

B.C.W (Agriculiure) Limited 50% Brecie 4. 59368, Wernc, Germony
Witham St Hughs, Lincoln, LNG 9TN, Urnled! Kingdom UNIFERM GmeH s Co)KG 500
Nowix Bnvire Limited 0% INA Nehmitiel GrmibH s
Eagle Labs incubator, 28 Chesterfon Road, UNIFERM Foncs GrbH ‘?O;
Combridge. CB4 3AZ United Kingdom erwaliungs Lm Ui
Yagro Lid 50, Bredle 8, 59388, Weme, Garmany o
Kingsea!, Newmacher, Aberdeenshire. AB21 OUE _ 0%
Euroagkem Limited 50% ‘
Lothian Crop Specidists Limiled SO E@;ﬁ%&e ﬁ;éfnaé(:omny Civb, Rathcore, Co. Meath
United Kingdom — Non ABF ’ :

i t Milk Laborat Lt
Prologis House, Blythe Gate, Biythe Valey Pk, ndependent Mik Laboratones Lid 0%
Soliul, B90 8AH Japan
36F Atago Green Hills Mord Tower, 2-5-1 Atago.
80% !
Tango Reat Esfate LLP L mincrto-ku, Tokyo 105-6236, Japan
Second Fioor, 11 Walerloo Sireel, Brminghorn B2 518 Tenni ] coLld 50
Murfon Developments [Quintus} Limited  50% PSE:{?EW?DOH o
Australia
. Wybieq. ! . s [EINY
Building A, tevel 2, 11 Talavera Road, North Rycle ;‘o méﬁ’egoig% Ok 9. micsisc KOD 81-315
NSW 2113, Austraficr ) o
Forfnurm & Masons Ply Limited 33% :23;1:;::@ Sploo 0%
Chile
- , Ridgoside, il

Ave. Balrmaceda 3560, Vaidivia, Chile Lxgﬁf Q‘; il jgm‘(;ggf;]dz ,Fﬁé”;” anga Rocks
Levaduras Colico S.A. — % Glendale Distling Company 0%
China Spﬁiﬁ R
1828 Tiejueshan Road, Huangdao District, Qingdao, C/ Raimundo Forndndez, Viliaverde 28, Madrid
Shandong Pravince, China Spain ‘ ’ ‘
Qingdao Xinghua Cereal Gil and Foodstuff Co., Lid 25% Compafiia de Metazas, $.4. fin lquidation) 5%
| Eost Ren mMin Road, Regiment &6, Cocaodiala. Uniled States o I
Ximjiang, China . .

‘;JI 9 'Y'h‘ K c il Food Co. Lid The Corporation Trust Company. Corporation Trust
AB Mourt Yinal Kerry {Cocodala) Food Co., Hd. Center, 1209 Orange Streel, Wiminglon DE 19801,
Inreviously Xinjicing Maur Food., Lid) S0% United Stafes
Rooim 607 &th FHoor, 1379, Bocheng Road, Pudong Stralas Foods LLC 09
New Distict, Shanghai. China Siratas Receivables |LLC 0%
AB Maur Yihai Kery Investment Company Limited 50% -
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the 52 weeks ended 146 September 2023

32. Group entities continued

Associates

A list of the Group's assaciates as af 14 September 2023 is given below. All associates are included in the Group's

financial statements using the equity method of accounting.

Amoriles 5 hialdirg Associales % aleding
United Kingdom PT Inde Fermex A9%
Paciol House, Duncan Close, Moulfon Park indusiial P.T. Jaya Fermex 49%
Estate, Northampton, NIN3 6WL United Kingdom PT Sarma Indah 497
Bakers Basco Limited 20% lsrael
Patemoster House. 65 $1. Pauls Churchyard, 26, Harokmim st.. Holon Azrel Center Building B, lsroc
London, EC4M BAB. Uniled Kingdam Sucarim (C157) Lidd e
C. Czamikow Limited 43%, ”qu S B e
C ik inmit 43% )

e O,W Group Limited - 30 Via Borgogna, 2-20122, Milan, thaly
C. Czamikow Sugar Futures Limited 43% c e e S 43
C. Czamikow Sugar Limited 439% zamikaw Halia Ity
Sugarwond Limited 43% I";’;\‘A‘% e, Secona Neone A

- " — e onk House, Second Ngong Avenue,

g“":d (K:'"gd";‘h ';g’g‘” o rone 5 P Box 10517, Nerobi 00100, Kenya

arker Cavendish, nurch Road, Stanmore, . - . - -
Micileses, HAZ 4XR, zmn?;'kow Ecist Africa Limited L 43%

. . . auritivs
Vanneck Resicdential LLP A41% ) .
Unit 1 Woodley Park Estate, 59-69 Reading Road, :’%gﬂﬁ;’de”* John Kennedy Sireetl, Port Louss,
woodley, Reading, RG5 3AN Sukpak Limited 0%
Davidson Holdings Limited 8% Mexico
?ﬁr\;gge%rg%f olf Range, Beverey Way. New Molaen, Jaime Bolmes #8 Loc. 3-A. Los Morales Polone, Moxico
’ i - o City, 11510, Moxico
The Adventure Bxperience Limited 4% C. Czomikow Sugar (Mexico], S.A. de C.V. 43%
7 Savoy Court, London, WC2R 0EX New Zoaiard TR
Liomdgrjjheafre Company Holdings Limited 17% cfo KPMG, 18 Vicduct Harbour Avenue, Marifime
Australia _ , Square, Aucklond, New Zegland
283 Flagstaff Rood, Brinkley $A 5253, Ausfralia Neww Food Coatings (Mew Zedland)] Limited s
Big River Pork Pty Lid 20% W T
nMurray Bri n Pty L 20%
32UD y R\dgj EVGC;E 'ng des ey NSW 2 164, AUsia ° Unit A, 103 Bxcellence Avenue, Carmolray
v Roda ,e el Pa Jycney P ALSTIG - Inclustial Park 1, Canlubang, Calamba, Laguna,

New Food Coatings Py Lid % New Food Codlings (Phiippines) Inc. 50%
thrum . . ) ) SF Don Jacinto Building, Dela Rosa cor. Salcedo
Suite No. 1959 Diplomafic Commercial Office, Tower 8, Streets, Leaaspi Vilage. 1229 Makati City, Philippines
Buildiing Me. 1565, Road 1722 Diplomatic 239

Area/Manama 317, Bahrain

Crarmkow Supply Chain Sales for Food & Beverage
Ingrediients Bahran 5.P.C.

Brazil

Minas Gerars, Brozit
2C Energia S.A.

Crarmikow Brasil Lida

Praulo, Broz!

China

Columbia

India

1G, 500076, Indlict

Hydcrabad, 500003, india

o 43%

Av Dos Vinhedos, 71, floor 11, room 1101, Uberiandic,

22%
Avenido Presidente Jusceline Kubifschek, n.® 2.041, 11°
andar Viley Oimgia, CEF 04 .543-011, 560 Paulo, Brasil

43%
Av Pres Juscolino Kubitschek, 2041, floor 11, S&o
Cz Energy Comercializado Ra De Flanol S.A -~ 21%
Room 17401, 232 Zhong Shon éth Rogd, Guangzhaou
City, Guangdong Province, 510180, Ching
C. Cramikow Sugar {Guangzhou) Companylid —— 43%
C1 16 Sur #43a-49, £ Poblado, Modelin, £l Pobiado,
Medelin, Antoquic, Colombia
Crarnikow Colombic 5.A.5. L. A%
Plot No N46, House No 4-9-10, Hmt Nagar, Hyderabad
Huoban Energy ¢ Private Limited 34%
House No. 1-8-373/A. Chiran Forl Lane, Begumpel,

43%

C. Czamikow Sugar {India) Private Limited
Indonesia
Komplox Purd Mutiora Biok A21-22, L. Griva Utama,

CZ Phiippines. Inc._

Singapore
3 Phillip Street, #14-01 Roya! Group Building,
Sincanore 048693

C. Czamikow Sugar Pre. Umited

South Africa

I Gledhow Mill Rood, Gledhow, Kwadiukuza, 4450
Gledhow Sugor Company (Pty) Limited

Tanzania S

7t Floor Amoni Place, Ohio Street, PO Box 38568, Dar-
es-Sataam, Tanzania

Camikow Tanzania Linited

rsoiwa pMill Office, Kidatau, Tanzania

Kilombere Sugar Distributors Limited B

Thalland

909 Moo 13, Teparak Road, Tambol Bangsaothong,
King Amphur Bangsaothonag, Samutorakarm, Thaoilond
Newly Weds Foods [Thailond) Lid

1203, 12th Floor. Metropolis Building.

725 Sukhumvit Rd. North Klonalon, Wattana, Banakaok,
Crzamikow {Thailand) Limited
United States

333 SE 2nd Avenue, Suite 2850 Miami, FL 33131, USA
C. Czamikow Sugar nc.

Vietnam

5th Floor, iMC Tower, 62 Tan Quang Khai. Tan Dinh
Ward, Distict 1, Ho Chi Minh City. Vietngm

Czamikow (Vietnam} Limiled

43%

R

50%

43%

43%
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Company balance sheet

at 146 September 2023

Ta023 0 w2
[Redated) !
hoe £m £rn

Non-current assets
Investment property

1
Investments in subsicdianes 2 1,042 1.042
Investments in associates 3 2 3
Delered tax assols 4 2 z
Trade and other receivables ! 5 1,045 918
T 2,091 1.9¢8
Cument assels T
Trade and other receivables ! 5 5 2
Other investments 6 31 28
Income fax - g
Cash ond cash equivalents 9 57
B 45 26
Current fiabilities T
Trade and other payables 7 (27) (18)
Income fax 1) -
Net current assets o . ST Yy s
Non-current liabilities .
3 () i
R N 2,102 2039
Equity
Called up share capital ? - -
Share premium accoun! 382
Retained eamings 1.720
Total equity atliibulable to equity shareholders T 2102
Lo rree i a1 re s & etk
SpastaeT b e 4 12EEn et EAR ST AITY

sae obe 5 ool

The Company's profit for the 52 week period ended 16 September 2023 was £190m (52 week period ended 17
September 2022: £284m).

The financiat statements on pages 74 to 79 were approved by the Board of directors on 15 December 2023 and were
signed on its behalf by:

L
“‘/\:LL‘\

Sir Guy Weston
Chairman
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Company statement of changes in equity

tor the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

shors share Relaned sial
ool pACTIUM EQININGS eql 'y
L1 Lm £ £
Balance at 18 Sepltember 2021 - 3Bz 1474 1,856
Total comprehensi\)e income - B .
Frofit for the period - 284 284
rRemeasurements of delined benecfii schemes - - 4 4
Defered tax associated with defined benefit schemes - - (1) (1]
=Olher cormprahensive income - items that will not be reclassified to profit or - - 3 3
053
Total cofﬁ&éﬁéhs&ve income for the period T ) - 87 287
Transaclions with owners
Dividends paid to equity sharehalders . - - (104 104
Balance al 17 Seplember 2022 - 382 1,657 2,039
Téf&lwcioirﬁbrehensive income i ’ T
Profit for the penod - - 170 190
Remeasurerments of defined benefit schemes - - 1 1
Defered tox associated with defined benelil schemes - - - -
IOiher comprehensive income - iterns that will not be reclassified to profit or - - 1 1
0ss
ﬂ;ré\ comprehéns:ve income for the peridd o - B - 191
Transactions with owners
Dividends paid 1o equity shareholders n - - (128) (128)
Eclance at 16 Seplember 2023 i - 382 1,720 2,102
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Company accounting policies
for the 52 weeks ended 146 September 2023

Basis of preparation

The financial statements are presented in sterling,
rounded 1o the nearest million {except where otherwise
indicated). They are prepared under the historical cost
basis, except that Other Investments are stated at their
fair value, and in accordance with FR$ 101 and the
Companies Act 2004,

As permitted by FRS 101, the Company has taken
advantage of the disclosure exemptions availabte in
relation to financial instruments, capita! management,
presentation of third balance sheet for retraspective
restatements. presentation of a cash flow statement,
standards not vet effective, impairment of assets and
certain related party fransactions. Where required,
equivalent disclosures are given in the consolidated
fincncial stafements.

As permitted Dy section 408(4) of the Companies Act
200é. a separate income statement and statement of
comprehensive income for the Company has not been
included in these financial statements. The principal
accounting policies adopted are described below. They
have alt been applied consistently to all years presented.

Going concern
The conclusion to adopt the gaing cencern basis in
preparing these financial statements is outined in the
Directors' report on page 8 and in the consolidated
accounts on page 18.

Investment property

Investment properties are held at cost less provision far
impairment. Impadirment s determined by reference to
the fair value of praperty estimated sither by
independent valuers or by the directors. Depreciation is
provided where the directors consider that the residual
value of major components of the property is less than
current book value.

Investments in subsidiaries and associates
Investments in subsidiaries and associates are stated at
cost less any provision for impairment,

Impairment

The carrying amaunt of the Company’'s investments in
subsidiaries and other assets are reviewed at each
balance sheet date to determine whethar there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the
assel’s recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment
charge isrecognised in the income statement whenever
the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amaunt.

The recoverable amount of assets is the greater of their
fair value less costs to sell and their value in use. In
assessing value in use, estimated future cash flows are
discounted to present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the fime value
of money and the risks specific to the asset,

Animpoirment charge is reversed if there has beena
change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable armount, but only to the extent that the new
carying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined. net of depreciation or
amortisaticn. if no impairment charge had been
recognised.

7h Wittington Investments Fingnxcial S-atedrents 2023

Financial assets and liabilities

The Company recognises financial assets and liabilities
when it becomes a party to the contractual provision of
the relevant financial instrurment.

Trade and other receivables

The Company records trade and other receivables initially
at fair value and thereafter at amortised cost. This
generdlly results in recognition at nominal value less an
expected credit loss provision, which is recognised based
on management's expectafion of losses without regard to
whether or not a specific Impainment frigger has
occurred.

Trade payables

The Company records tfrade payables initially at fair value
and thereafter at amaortised cost. This generdlly resulfs in
recognition at nominal value.

Other investments

Equily investments where the Company does not have
significant influence, contral or joint control cre measured ot
fair value through profit and loss (FYTPLY. and are camed in the
staternant of financial position at fair value with net changes in
fair value recognised in profit and loss.

Pensions and other post-employment benefits
The Company operctes one defined contribution and
one unfunded post-employment plan. Far the unfunded
plan, the amount charged in the income statement is the
cost of henefits accruing to employees over the year, plus
any benefit improvermeants granted to members by the
Company during the year. It also includes interest
expense calculated by applying the liability discount rate
to the pension liability. The present value of liabilities is
disclosed as o liabillty in the balance sheet. Any related
deferred tax {to the extent recoverable) is disclosed
separately in the balance sheet. Remeasurements are
recognised immediately in other comprehensive income.,
Contribulions payable by the Company in respect of
defined contibution plans are charged 1o operating
profit as incurred.

Income tax

Incoeme lax an profit or loss for the period comprises
current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the
income staterment except 1o the extent that it relates to
items taken directly to equity. Curent tax s the fax
expected to be payable on taxable ncome for the year,
using tax rates enccted or substantively enacled duning the
period, together with any adjustment fo tax payable in
respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability
method, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheel date, providing for temparary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabiltties for financial reporting purpeses and the amounts
used for taxation purposes. A deferred tax assetis
recognised only to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the
asset can be utilised.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise bank and cash
balances, call deposits and short-term investments with
original maturities of three months or less.



Notes to the Company financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 14 September 2023

1. Investment Property

£m

A8 Seplember 2021 3
Adiditions -
A7 Seplember 2022 3
Disposals (3}
At 18 Seplemﬁéribﬁéﬂmw o T Y T -
2. Investments in subsidiaries
e fet e I s R —_

Lo Urilseda Lm
Al 18 September 2021 345 597 1.042
Aclditions -
Al 17 September 2022 345 697 1,042
Additions - - -
Al 16 Seplember 2023 T 345 857 1,042

Investments in subsiciary undertakings are shown at cost less amounts written off. Invesiments include 403.341 215
ordinary shares of 5 1%/::p (2022 - 403,341,215} each in Associated British Foods plc. equivalent to 52.5% of the issued
share capital of thal company, which is listed on The London Stock Exchange. Al 16 Seplember 2023 the market value
of the holding was £8,394m (2022 - £5,342m). Associated British Foods plc is incorporated in Great Britain and registered
in England. Through its subsidiary. Howard Investments Limited, the Company holds a further 28,173,893 (2022 -
28,173.893) shares in Associated British Foods ple. representing 3.7% of the issued share capital of that company. A list of
trading subsidiary undertakings is given in note 32 of the Company's consolidated financial statements. The holding
company structure is complicated and does not necessarily reflect the management Grouping In which the companies
are listed.

3. Investments in associates

g

At 18 September 2021 i
Additions 1
Al 17 September 2022 3
Impairment e [ Rt
At 16 September 2023 2
A list of associate undertakings is given in note 32 of the Company’'s consolidated financial statements,
4. Deferred tax assets

e [, [, =
At 18 September 2021 3
Effect of changes in tax rate on income sialement 1)
At 17 September 2022 2
Effect of changes in tax rate on incoms statement =
At 14 Seplember 2023 A - - 2

Finance Bill 2022 which was substantively enacted on 24 pay 2022 increased the main rate of corporation tax in the UK
to 25% with effect from 1 April 2023, Deferred tax lability on the balance sheet has been measured at 25% which is the
rate expected to apply when the tax liability is settled.

5. Trade and other receivables

2023
£Em

Non-current
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings ! 1,043 218
Gtherdebtors . . _ , . 2 -
s 1,045 718
Eaﬂen_i o _- B
Amaounis owed Dy subsiclicry uﬂder?okinéﬁrrr i ) 5 -
Otherdebtors ) o o o - 2

czran ol el

et can crrngerant b

T2 mantea o

e Cunbko.ebees s Mutee arnnl el vace

The directors consider that the carrying amount of debtors approximates to thelir fair value.
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Notes to the Company financial statements
for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2023

4. Other Investments

Lisreet Unlstec: C;H'w';\l
s G3bmenits rrvestmens [vasmen s
im £ £m
AT 18 Seplember 2021 2% 1 30
Faiir value loss (1] {1 {2)
AT 17 September 2022 28 28
Fair volue gain 3 - 3
At 14 September 2023 . T a0 T T o3
The Group classifies these financial instrurments using a fair value hierarchy oullined on page 52, The table below
analyses the levelin the fair value hierarchy into which their fair value measurement method is categorised for
Investments held at fair value through profit and loss:
o R Capmy T
level 1 Level 2 level 3 Total Lewg! 1 lewe 2 leval 3 To'a
£m £m £m £m £m £m M im
Investments designated FYTPI 31 - - 3 28 _ - 28
7. Trade and other payables
[ e e
£m Fl
Amounts faling due within one year
Accruals and defered income - 1
Am0unf§MQQ§__To subsidiary undertakings 27 7
T 27 13
The directors consider that the carmrying amaount of creditors approximates to their fair value.
8. Employee benefits liabilities
o S wne e v e Em
Al 12 Seplernier 2021 1o
Current service cost T T R
Actuanal gain f4)
At 17 Septermnber 2022 T S 7
Curent service cost A . -
Actuarial gain o {1}
At 16 Septerber 2023 o T o 3

The Company operales one unfunded post-employment plan which is accounted for in the same way as the Group's
defined benefit refirement schemes detailed in note 14 of the consolidated financial statements. Applicable actuarial
assumptions are slated on poge 3%9. The Company's unfunded liability forms part of the Group's £26m (2022: £29m)
unfunded UK licbilities disclosed on page 41.

9. Share capital and dividends

Share capital

JOranary shares Nomina® Values

¢’ 50z =ach £
Authorised - AT 16 September 2023 and 17 Seplember 2022 FC0.000 450,000
Issued and fully paid - Al 16 September 2023 and 17 September 2022 862,022 431.011

Dividends
Details of dividends paid are provided in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Company financial statements
far the 52 weeks ended 14 September 2023

10. Related parties

The Company has o controlling shareholder relationship with the tiustees of the Garfield Weston Foundation and with
certain other individuals who hold shares in the Company. The Company has arelated party relationship with its
subsidiaries, associates and joint veniures and direclors. In the course of normal operations, related party ransactions
entered into by the Company have been contracted on an arm’s length basis.

material transaciions and year end balances with related parties (excluding wholly owned subsidiaries) were s follows:

2023 2033
£:000 £000

Dividends paid by Wittington Investments Limited and received in a beneficial capacily by:
{i] Truslees of The Garfield Weston Foundation 4,745 3.856
{i} Direclors of Wittington Investments Limited who are nol Truslees of The Foundation 1,246 1,012

See note 30 to the consclidated financial staterments for further details.

11. Other information

Emoluments of directors

Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group provides details of Directars remuneration.
Employees

The Company had an average of 32 employeesin 2023 (2022 - 32). Remuneration was £3.2m (2022: £4.2m).
Auditors' fees

Note 4 to the consalidated financial statements of the Group provides details of the remuneration of the Company's
auditors on o Group basis.

12. Post Balance Sheet Event

On 12 December 2023 the Directors declared an Interim dividend. The dividend of £84.50, total value of £74.6m, will be
paid on 23 January 2024 tc shareholders on the register on 12 Decemizer 2023,
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Strategic report

Group Business Model and Strategy

The busingss of Wittington Investrments Limited and its
subsidiaries (the "Group') is the managemeant of
investrments in a wide range of assets.

The Group's investments are managed in five businesses,
being Luxury Retaill, Real Estate, Hotels, Private mMarkets &
Other Investments and Associated British Foods plc ["ABF').
The latter refers to the Group's 56.2% shareholding in ABF
(2022: 54.5%). which is gquoted on The Lendon Stock
Fxchange.

The Group takes along-term approach to investment and
is commitfed to increasing sharehaolder value through
sound business decisicns which will deliver sustainable
growth in earnings and dividends.

Given the materiality of the ABF business and for eqse of
cross-reference to the published financial staterments of
ABF, the directors have elected to provide additional
inforrnation in the notes which follow setting cut the
contribution of the ABF business to the consolidated
financial statements of the Group. For clarity, all
references to the ABF business are shown in ifalics in the
notes to these statements and are consistent with the
published financial statements of ABF.

The Garfield Westan Foundation ("The Foundation™} is an
English charitable trust, established in 1958 by the late W
Garfield Weston. As at 16 September 2023, the Foundation
holds 683,073 shares (2022 - 483.073) in Wittington
investments Limited representing 79.2% (2022 - 79.2%)] of
the Group's issued share capital and is, therefore, the
Group's ultimate controlling party.

The Trustees of the Foundation made total grants of £21.1
million {year to 5 April 2023} in support of 2,147 appeals
(2022: £89.9 million in support of 1.988 appeals). The
Foundation accepts appeals from UK registered charities.
No applications from individuals are considered and the
Trustees do not typically fund projects cutside the UK.

Business Strategies

Luxury Retail

Luxury Retail comprises Fortnum & mason ple and Heal &
Sons Ltd, two long-established retaiters. The aim for each
of these businesses is to build a sustainable and profitable
business over the long term by providing an outstanding
customer experience through all channels and by
developing the praduct offer. They also aim fo develop
their respective digital businesses and, where appropriate,
international achvities,

Real Estate

The Group invests in high-quality investment properties in
the retail, office and distribution sectors across the UK It
also lakes strategic positions in selected development
opportunities, alongside local partners or sector specialists,
where it can use its patient capital to unlock the potential
in those sites.

Hotels

As an extension of its Real Estate strategy, the Group
invests in hotels with high-quality real estate backing and
with a broad mix of customers from corporate, event and
leisure markets,

Private Markets & Other Investments
The Group invests both directly and via externally
managed funds in private equity and private debt

markels. This is a long-term asset class and exposures are
managed to provide a diverse portfolio by sector,
geography and age of company. It also invests selectively
in special situations.

Other investments are principally composed of liquid
investments in short-dated investment grade bonds as well
as listed equities, which provides portfolio diversification
and enables liquidity and portfolio needs 1o bhe met.

Associated Brilish Foods plc

ABF is a diversified international Tood, ingredients and
retall Group with revenue of £19.8bn, 133,000 employees
and operations in 55 countries across Europe, southern
Africa, the Americas, Asia and Australia, Further details
can be tound in ABF's Annual Report 2023 which can be
found at www.ablf.co.uk.

Business Review
Luxury Retail
Fortnum & Mason

Fortnum & Mason's financial year saw a continued
recovery in sales with UK store revenue returning to pre-
Covid tevels at the start of 2023 and growing 34% on FY22,
driven by a resilient domestic market and increased
Internationcl customer footfall, Onling sales saw an 11%
reduction on FY22, not dissimitar 1o the wider market as
consumers rebalanced their behaviour post-Covid.
Fortnum & Mason faced challenging operating conditions
as inflation grew rapidly, particularly in foed and fabour.
Total Revenue grew 12% to £208.6m [2022: £186.5m): Profit
before taxation grew to £7.5m (2022 £5.8m) and EBITDA
grew 1o £146.0m (2022: £14.2m}. Capifal investmeni in the
year amounted to £8 2m (£2022: £4.9m) centred on the
refurbishment of the 3rd floor of the Piccadilly flagship
store. Closing cash was £21m {2022 £17m). with no debt.

Heal's

Heal's has experienced a difficult period for profitability as
inflationary pressure squeezed margin and increased the
cost base (with the exception of its new Tottenham Court
Road lease). Revenue remained materially flat at £37.4m
(2022: £37.0m}, however the dual challenges of supply
chain ond wage inflation drove a 50% reductionin
operating profit fo £0.8m (2022: £1.6m). Perhaps the
biggest challenge was in dealing with old (returned and
cancelled) stock, which led to a very significant write
down which supressed profit. Heals continues to generate
o1 positive operating profit and EBITDA and the underlying
performance remains sound. Excluding the write-down of
stock, profit would have increosed from the prior pericd.
The strategic focus of the company going forward is 1o
capitalise onits new store layout on Toltenham Court
Road and to graw its anline presence, which now
accounts far half of sales revenue.

Real Estale

Three properties were acquired during the year with an
aggregate consideration of £33m; one property was so'd
for £3m. Income grew to £12.3m (2022 £11.5mj while the
aperating loss in the year of £8,3m {2022: profit of £16.3m)
included an aggregate impairmeant charge of £13.6m
(2022: £5.6m) in respect of the canying value of scme of
the office and retail properties and a residential
development. Qver the year, 99.9% of rents demanded
were collected [2022: 99%) comparing very favourably
with the sector as a whole,
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Hotels
Grand Hotel, Brighton

The Grand Hotel, Brighton was sold to the Fattal Group in
May 2023 for £61m.

Richmond Hill Hotel

Richmond Hill Hotel cantinued to benefit from strong
demand in the laisure market. Revenue for the period was
the highest in the hotel's history at £10.1m (2022: £9.2m),
whilst current and future bookings remain strong. Changes
to the market value of the property resulted inan
operating loss of £2.7m [2022: profit of £13.4m., including a
one-off impairment raversal).

Private Markets & Other Investments

Over the year the Group invested £200m in investment
grade credit and ¢.$130m into a global public equities
ndex fund, A further €40m was commifted to private
equity. The public and private equity funds held broadly
flat in GBP terms over the year, whilst the leveraged loan
portfolio, in which the underlying investments are floating-
rate, benefitted from rising interest rates globally. The
rernaining direct portfolioc companies posted modest
gains. There was an unredlised FX impact in the year
which supressed profitability. Profit after tax for the year for
Private Markets & Other Investments was £36.0m (2022
£28.3m).

Associated British Foods plc

ABF performed extremely well despite facing very
significant economic chalenges caused in part by major
geo-political events at the start of the financial year. Itis
now well positioned for the financial yoar ahead.

Trading at Primark was excellent under the circumstances.
At the beginning of the year selective price increqses
were implemented partially to protect profitability, on the
grounds that the significant input cost inflation was
temporary. That careful pricing delivered as intended,
with customers continuing to shop enthusiastically.
Profitability in ABF's food businesses moved ahead as a
result of the appeal of iheir products and the strength of
its brands, both of which supported the recovery of high
levels of input cost inflafion without disrupting customer
relationships.

Although consumer demand rermains uncertain, Primark is
as well placed as it has ever been and that its offer is very
aftractive not just to existing customers but clso fo new
custemers engaged by its digital platform. new store
openings. and word of mouth which remains as powerful
as ever. With Primark margin now maoving back to its
historic levels, the future for this business is viewed with
confidence. ABF's food businesses are also in very good
shape, and its Sugar business especially should see much
beter profitability in the year ohead.

ABF posted statutory operating profit for the year of
£1,383m [2022: £1,178m) aftfer exceptional charges of
£109m (2022 £206m). Given the strength of ABF's balance
sheet and its confidence in the future, ABF announced a
special dividend of 12.7 pence per share and a secend
share buyback programme of up to £500m on Novermber
7th 2023,
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Directors’ duties

The directors are required to actin o way which they
consider, in good faith, is most likely to promote the
succeass of the Company for the benefit of its members as
a whole and, in doing so, have regard to the matters set
out insection 172(1) (a] 1o (f} of the Companias Act 2006.

Stakeholder engagement

The Company engages regularly with stakeholders at
Group and/or business unit level, depending on the
particular issue. Regardless of the legal duties, the
directors consider regular engagement with stakehotders
to be part and parcel of our value of progressing through
collaboration and to be fundamenial to the succeass of
the Group.

The Board has identified the following stakeholder groups
with whom engagement is fundamental 1o the Group's
cngoing success:

1. The Garfield Weston Foundation: The largest single
shareholder of the Group is the Garfield Weston
Foundation. a charitable grant-making body which
suppors a wide range of causes across the UK. The
Group engages regularly with the Foundation to
understand its grant pipeline and to ensure thatilis in
a paosition to pay dividends 1o a level commensurate
with the Foundation's objectives. An additional key
concern for the Foundation is that the Group operate
with high ethical standards s¢ as not to undermine the
Foundation's charitable aims and cbjectives.

2. Governments: The Group s impocted by changesin
laws and public policy. The key issues of concernin
relation to the gavernment are regulatory changes
{including tax legislation), climate and environmental
related matters and support of businesses and workers,
The directors of the Group engage with this
stakeholder group in varous ways including meelings,
responding to requests for inputs (e.g. on sustainability
reporting guidelines) and applications to participate in
gavemnmment schemes.

3. Communities and the environment: As the Group's
controling shareholder, the Foundation is heavily
engaged in natianal efforts 1o mitigate climate
change. This is primarily achieved through the oward
of grants to relevant bodies. Through the ABF businass
segment, the Graup is also engaged in community
retations at a national and international level and with
the design and implementation of strategies to
promaote climate change mitigation and a circular
economy. ABF engages with these stakeholder groups
in vanous ways including coaching and fraining
programmes and cecmmunity programmes and
schemes.

4, Customers / consumers: The Group depends heavily
on its reputation with customers, in the UK and globally,
across its grocery, refail and hotel operatfions. The key
issues of concern to customers are hecalth and safety,
products aond services, value for money, availability of
products and services, impact on the environment,
store and hotel environments and customer relations.,
The business engages with this stakeholder group In
vanous ways including customer surveys, labelling.
social medin and customer/consumer information
linas.
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5. Employees: Our peopie are central to our success. The
Group employs 134,881 people of which 133,000 are
employed by ABF. Given this, responsibility for
engagement with employees lies principally with the
ABF business segment. ABF engages with its employeeas
in various ways including email, health and safety
programmes, intranet, newsletters, surveys, town halis,
training, virtual meetings and notice boards. The key
issues of concem to employees are health and safety,
engagerment & development and diversity & inclusion.

The Group is committed to an active equal
opportunities policy from recruitment and selection,
through training and development, perfarmance
reviews and promotions to retirement. it is our policy to
promaole an envircnment free from discrimination,
harassment and victimisation, where everyone
receives equal treatment regardiess of gender, colour,
ethnic or national crigin, disability. age, marital status,
sexual orientation or religion. All decisions relating to
employment practices are objective, free from bias
and based solely upon work criteria and individual
merit, It is our policy that people with disabilities who
fulfil the minimum criteria should have full and far
consideration for all vacancies. We endeavour 1o
retain employees in the workforce if they become
disabled during employrment. It is the Group's policy to
provide continuing employment wherever practicable
in the same or an alternative position and to provide
appropriate training to achieve this aim.

4. Suppliers: Through the ABF business segment, the
Group is indireclly dependenl on many complax
supply chains operating at an international level. The
key issues of concern with regards to supply chains are
payment practices, responsible sourcing and supply
chain sustainability & responsibility. The Group engages
with this stakeholder group in various ways including
conversations [face-to-face or virtual). training.
communications fora, corespondence, press releases
and audits.

Principal decisions

An example of a principal decision taken during the year
that took stakeholder views into account is the decision to
pay a first interim dividend in January 2023 and o second
interim dividend in July 2023, with the primary beneficiary
of the decision being the Garfield Weston Foundation and
- indirectly — the recipients of the grants awarded by the
Foundation.

The Directars agreed a first interim dividend of £78.50 per
share, paid in January 2023 which, together with the
second interim dividend paid in July 2023 of £469.50 per
share, made a tolal of £148.00 per share tor the year,
representing 42% of distributable profit,

The: decision to pay both dividends factored in the net
cash position before lease llabilities for the Group of £2.8
bn at the 2022 year end,

Non-Financial and Sustainability Information
Statement

The Group Board recognises that climate change
represents a material fisk throughout its supply chains and!
poses challenges to some of its businesses waorldwide. The
Board wholly support policies that are aligned with the
goals of the 2015 Paris Climate Agreement to limit the rise
in global temperatures to well below 2°C abaove pre-
industrial levels, and to pursue efforts to IImit the
temperature increase even further to 1.5°C.

This year the Wittington Group has included climate-
related financial disclosures in accordance with the
Companies [Strategic Report) (Climate-related Financial
Disclosure} Regulations 2022 (S1 2022/31).

Governance

The Board is responsible for overseeing climate-related
issues across the Group. The Board reviews each business
segment in depth every year, which will include o review
of material ESG issues.

Risk management

The Board is accouniabie for effective risk management,
for agreeing the principal, including emerging, risks facing
the Group and ensuring they are successfully managed.

The process for identifying, assessing and managing
climate-related risks is the same as for other risks within the
Group and sits with the business where the risk resides.

These risks, including climate risks, are collated and
reviewed at both o business and divisional tevel, and then
reported to the Chief Financial Officer who reviews the
key risks with the Board.

Strategy and action, metrics and targets

wittington operates a decentralised business madel
because the Group Board believes in giving the leaders of
its businesses the scope and accountability to create and
run the best businesses they can. They are therefore
responsible for identifying and implementing strategies
that both create value and ensure value is profecied by
taking action to mitigate or adapt to the impacts of
climate change. Enabling decision-making by the people
closest to these issues, with the closest relationships with
the stakeholders affected, provides resiience, agility and
flexibility in planning, allowing for guick aclion animpacts
and cpportunifies.

Climate risks and opportunities
The ABF division accounts for the most material cimate
risks andd oppaortunities in the Wittington Graup,

ABF comprises businesses thal provide safe, nutritious and
affordable food, and clothing that is great value for
money. There will be many value creation opportunities
which ABF's businesses will be well positioned to take
advantage of as the world transitions to a low carbon
economy. There will also be physical and transitional
climate risks which they may be susceptible fo. Many of
ABF's businesses rely on agricultural crops with complex
supply chains which are spread acrass the world. Long-
term climate change will impact agricultural crops and
workers while extreme wealher events have the potential
to cause disruption across vatue chains,

Cross-funclional feams within the ABF business worked
with third-party experts to understand climate related,
physical and fransifion nsks and opportunifies. These were
included in the Group's scenario analysis.
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